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Report of Independent Auditors on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001, and have issues our report thereon dated May 10, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
May 10, 2002 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of
Lucas County, Ohio, taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards for the year ended December 31, 2001 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis
as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to

the financial statements taken as a whole.
Sanct ¥ MLLP

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended December 31, 2001

Federal Grant
Pass Through Grantor
Program Title

CFDA
Number

Pass-Through
Entity
Identifying
Number

Federal
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture - Food and Nutrition
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Juvenile Court:
Food Distribution Program
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Juvenile Court:
National School Lunch Program
National School Breakfast Program
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Center:
Summer Food Service Program
Child Nutrition Cluster
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

Federal Highway Administration, Department of
Transportation
Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction

Federal Emergency Management Agency

Passed through Ohio Emergency Management Agency:

Emergency Management Agency:
Participating Partnership Agreement

Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:

Passed through Criminal Justice
Coordinating Council:
Emergency Management Agency:
Communications Equipment
Total Federal Emergency Management Agency

0203-0286433

10.550

10.555
10.553

10.559

20.205

83.552

83.552

IRN: 083097

IRN: 083097
IRN: 083097

IRN: 089243

(1)

(1)

(1)

2,367

59,531
55,431

165,296

280,258

282,625

1,155,426

72,000

100,000

172,000



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Federal Grant
Pass Through Grantor
Program Title

CFDA
Number

Pass-Through
Entity
Identifying
Number

Federal
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD)
Passed through Ohio Department of Development:
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Block Grant/States
Program:
Formula Grant
Community Development Block Grant/Small Cities
Program:
Revolving Loan Fund
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Drug Free Schools and Communities

Passed through Ohio Rehabilitation Services
Commission:

Lucas County Mental Health Board:
Rehabilitation Services Commission Title I

Lucas County Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities:

Rehabilitation Services Commission -
Pathways

Total U.S. Department of Education

0203-0286433

14.228

14.219

84.186

84.126

84.126

(1

(D

(1)

(1)

(1)

322,900

925,976

1,248,876

381,704

198,792

321,675

520,467

902,171



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services -
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Justice Delinqunecy Prevention - Title V 16.548 99JV-1096 84,776
Juvenile Court:
Title V Reaching Out Project 16.548 99-JV-T50-5050 31,806
Effective Collaborations for Timely Adoptions 16.548 90C00870-01 26,615
143,197
Passed through Ohio Attorney General Victim
Witness Assistance Program:
Notification Advocate 16.579 €)) 27,401
Victims Forum 16.579 (1 62,802
90,203
VAW Pros/VW Response 16.588 (1) 45,104
Safe Kids/Safe Street 16.541 (1) 7,518
VOCA V/W 16.575 (1) 105,157
SVAA Hispanic V/W 16.575 (1) 59,469
VOCA-X Felony Crises 16.575 (1) 40,270
Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor -
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Court:
Juvenile/Special Services 16.575 (1) 43,706
248,602
Byrne Grant C.1.T.E 16.579 DG-C04-B1001 63,975
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (1) 16.523 (1 313,854
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (2) 16.523 (1) 27,071

0203-0286433

340,925



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice
Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention -
Title II Block Grant 16.540 99JJ-1095 58,555
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant 16.523 99-JB-1009 118,422
Byrne Memorial Law Enforcement:
Narcotics Control Block 16.579 99DG-1097/ 1,002,645
00DG-1007
Passed through Ohio Office of
Criminal Justice Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice Coordinating
Council:
Violence Against Women:
VAWA Block 16.588 99WEF-1098/ 308,627
Directly received: 00WF-1008
Sheriff
Violence Against Women 16.588  00-WF-VA2-8837 22,701
331,328
Total U.S. Department of Justice 2,450,474
U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through Ohio Department of Job and Family
Services:
Workforce Investment Act - Adult 17.258 459,581
Workforce Investment Act - Youth 17.259 873,533
Workforce Investment Act - Dislocated Workers 17.260 224,033
Total U.S. Department of Labor 1,557,147

0203-0286433



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Development Disabilities:
Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) 93.667 (1) 463,268
Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Health
Community Mental Health Services:
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) 93.667 (1) 328,380
791,648
Community Mental Health Services Block
Grants:
Child Adolescent/CORE 93.958 @) 95,577
Peer/Peck 93.958 (1) 60,000
Community Plan 93.958 (1) 317,653
Safety Net 93.958 (1) 60,022
Program Development 93.958 (N 25,000
JIF 93.958 (1) 62,578
NW Collaborative 93.958 (N 60,000
508R HAP 93.958 @) 170,002
HAP 93.958 (1) 43,613
894,445
PATH Grant 2001 93.150 @) 106,305
Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of
Substance Abuse:
Alcohol and Drug Abuse and MH Services 93.959 () 3,535,433
TASC/Drug Court 2001 93.643 (1) 75,000
Targeted Capacity Expansion Grant 93.230 @) 449,478

0203-0286433



Lucas County, Ohio
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed through Ohio Department of Human Services:
Children Services Board:

Child Welfare Service Grant - Title IV-B 93.645 (1) 221,888
ESAA Family Preservation 93.645 (N 192,260
Non-recurring Adoption Expenses 93.645 @) 82,070
PASSS 93.645 (1) 86,987
Kinship Navigator 93.645 (1) 24,102
607,307

Independent Living Grant 93.674 @) 88,149
Child Abuse & Neglect 93.669 (1) 2,000
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 8,106,912
Total Federal Awards 14,318,484

(1) No pass-through entity identifying number is available for this program.

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

0203-0286433



Lucas County, Ohio
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

December 31, 2001

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of Lucas County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
described in Note A to Lucas County, Ohio’s (the County) basic financial statements. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

2. Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the County provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Amount
CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subrecipient
Juvenile Justice Delinquency
Prevention - Title II Block Grant 16.540 $ 58,555
Juvenile Justice Delinquency
Prevention - Title V Block Grant 16.548 84,776
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block 16.548 118,422
Grant
Narcotics Block Grant 16.579 1,002,645
Violence Against Women 16.588 308,627
Rehabilitation Services Commission Title 1 84.126 198,792
Social Services Block Grants 93.667 328,380
Community Mental Health Services
Block Grants 93.958 894,445

Workforce Investment Act Cluster 17.258,17.259,17.260 1,497,443

0203-0286433 8



Lucas County, Ohio

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

3. Loans Outstanding

The County had the following loan balances outstanding at December 31, 2001. These loan
balances outstanding are also included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule.

CFDA Amount
Program Title Number Outstanding
Community Development Block Grant -
Revolving Loan Fund 14.219 $925,976

4. Workforce Investment Act Programs (CFDA 17.258 17.259 and 17.260)

The Workforce Investment Act programs (WIA) were inadvertently left off the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as initially reported May 10, 2002. WIA has been added to the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and tested as a major program as of November §,
2002.

0103-0167270 9
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Toledo, Ohio 43604

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated May 10, 2002. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However,
we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we have reported to
management of the County in a separate letter dated May 10, 2002.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one
or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to management of the County in a separate letter dated May 10, 2002.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners,
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sanet + MLLP

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global

10

May 10, 2002
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Report on Compliance and Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The County’s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2001.

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global

11
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners,
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sanet + MLLP

May 10, 2002, except for the Workforce
Investment Act programs, as to which
the date is November 8, 2002

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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Lucas County, Ohio
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended December 31, 2001

Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section

(1) Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
(i1) Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? yes X_none
reported
(i) Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards Section
(viii)  Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: 429,554
(ix) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
(v) Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major
programs? Unqualified
(iv) Internal control over compliance:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Were reportable condition(s) identified not considered to
be material weakness(es)? yes X_none
reported
(vi) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133 (Section
.510(a))? yes X no

(vii) Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
16.588 Violence Against Women Formula Grant
84.186 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities State Grants
93.230 Targeted Capacity Expansion Grant
93.645 Child Welfare Services State Grants
93.667 Social Services Block Grant
93.958 Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services
93.959 Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

17.258, 17.259, 17.260

0203-0286433

Workforce Investment Act Cluster
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None

None

0203-0286433

Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Part II - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

Part III - Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
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One Government Center
Fax (419) 218-4899

Larry A. Kaczala

Lucas County Auditor

Suite 600 Toledo, Ohio 43604-2255

(419) 213-4340

May 10, 2002

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
and Citizens of Lucas Qounty,

As Auditor of Lucas County, | am pleased to present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

This report contains basic financial statements,
management’s discussion and analysis, supplemental
financial statements, and other financial and statistical
information which provide a complete and full disclosure of
all material financial aspects of Lucas County. This CAFR
conforms to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). This year’'s CAFR includes an
early implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis-for State and Local Government.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data pre-
sented and the completeness and fairness of the presenta-
tion, including all disclosures, lies with the management of
the County, and in particular the office of the Lucas County
Auditor. In fulfilling this responsibility, the Lucas County
Auditor’s Office has prepared the accompanying financial
statements, schedules and tables. We believe this data
fairly reflects the financial position of the County and the
resuits of its operations.

The CAFR is presented in three (3) sections: the
Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section contains a
table of contents, this letter of transmittal, a list of elected
officials, an organization chart and a copy of the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

*
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v,““"“
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awarded for the 2000 Lucas County CAFR. The Financial
Section contains our independent auditor’s, Emst & Young
LLP, opinion letter, Management’s Discussion and Analy-
sis, the basic financial statements, and relevant supple-
mental financial statements and schedules for 2000. The
Statistical Section presents historical, financial, analytical,
economic and demographic information that may be useful
for further analysis and comparisons.

THE COUNTY

The County was formed by an Act of the Ohio General
Assembly on June 20, 1835, in honor of Robert Lucas, then
Governor of Ohio. The elected three-member Board of
County Commissioners function as both the legislative and
executive branch of the County. Each Commissioner
serves a term of four years. In addition to the County Audi-
tor, who serves as chief fiscal officer, there are seven
elected administrative officials, each of whom operate
independently as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. All of these officials
serve four-year terms. The following judges are elected on
a county-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system: Common Pleas Court Judges, Domestic Relations
Court Judges, Juvenile Court Judges, Probate Court
Judge, and Court of Appeals Judges. Judges are elected
to six-year terms.




REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES

In conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 14, all governmental departments,
agencies, institutions, commissions, public authorities, and
other governmental organizations, for which the County has
significant financial accountability, are included in this
CAFR for financial reporting purposes. Financial account-
ability is determined by the County’s ability to appoint a
voting majority of the Board or financial interdependence.

The County provides general governmental services to
its citizens which include: public assistance, health assis-
tance, community related services, civil and criminal justice
systems, road and bridge maintenance, sewer and water-
line construction and maintenance and other general legis-
lative and administrative support services. The County also
operates and maintains the water supply and wastewater
treatment systems. A further discussion of the reporting
entity and its services may be found in Note A of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND
OUTLOOK

The County is in the center of a trade area comprised
of 14 counties in northwestern Ohio and southeastern
Michigan with a total population of approximately 1.25
million people. The County lies in the central portion of a
triangle formed by the cities of Chicago, Detroit and
Cleveland. The County is in the Toledo Metropolitan
Statistical Area (MSA) and approximately one-third of the
population of the United States resides within 500 miles of
the County.

The County’s economy, historically associated with the
glass and automotive industries, has become increasingly
diversified. While the County remains the home of four of
the nation’s largest glass companies, DaimierChrysier AG,
General Motors Corporation and Dana Corporation also
continue to be major private employers in the County.
However, in recent years, private service industries and
governmental employers have provided more than three-
fourths of the total employment in the Toledo MSA and
approximately 70% of total payrolls in the County

The County’s unemployment rate for 2001 was 5.0%,
which is .7% higher than the statewide rate of 4.3%, and
.2% higher than the national rate of 4.8%.

Three of the 2001 Fortune 500 corporations have their
headquarters in the County. These are Dana Corporation,

Owens-lllinois, Inc., and Owens-Corning Fiberglass
Corporation. The County is also one of the larger oil
refining centers between Chicago and the eastern sea-
board with BP Oil Co. and Sun Refining and Marketing
Company, Inc.

BP Oil Co. has constructed an approximately $235
million upgrade to its Toledo area refinery, which will be
one of its two remaining refineries in the United States.
The improvements will concentrate on improving BP Oil's
ability to process heavy, sour crude oil.

DaimlerChrysler AG completed a $1.2 billion invest-
ment to construct a 1.1 million square-foot Jeep assembiy
plant on Stickney Avenue in Toledo. Construction began
in 1998. The new Jeep Liberty began rolling off the
assembly line in 2001. The project will retain nearly 4,900
jobs.  Daimler Chrysler AG has also constructed a $30
million combination crossdock and parts sequencing facility
in the County to serve its plants in the Midwest

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES

» Current Year Projects

Lucas County continues to promote economic develop-
ment throughout the area. Lucas County officials and
management continue to work closely with state and local
governments, corporations, companies, small businesses,
labor unions and charitable organizations to improve and
expand business opportunities and the standard of living.
The following are highlights of some of the activities Lucas
County is concerned with:

« In 2001, the Board of County Commissioners com-
pleted renovation and expansion of the Emergency
Services Building which will act as a consolidated
emergency communication center for the Lucas County
sheriff, 9-1-1, Emergency Medical Services, the Emer-
gency Management Agency, and the City of Toledo’s
Police and Fire Dispatch.

+  The new Lucas County Criminal Justice Center, which
includes an expanded juvenile detention facility was
dedicated in March 2001. The County received a $6.5
million state grant and a $500 thousand federal grant
to assist with the construction costs. The County
issued $17 million in bonds to finance this project.



»  Construction of the Lucas County Balipark was sub-
stantially completed. The Ballpark will be the home for
minor league baseball’'s Toledo Mud Hens. The team
will relocate to the new facility in 2002 from their
current facility at the Lucas County Recreation Center.
The county issued $20 million in economic develop-
ment revenue bonds and $6 million in economic
development revenue bond anticipation notes in
March, 2001. The County retired the notes in March
2002 after receiving revenue for the naming rights (5/3
Field) and the lease of the luxury suites.

»  Construction of the $1.2 billion Jeep plant was com-
pleted. The county has pledged $2 million by 2002 to
help the City of Toledo acquire and improve the site
for the new plant.

» The County completed construction of a training and
conference center in 711 Adams in downtown Toledo.
The $1.3 million dollar center is a joint project with the
Board of County Commissioners and the Lucas County
Children’s Services Board. Construction is expected to
be completed in June 2001. The training Center will be
under the responsibility of the newly created Training
and Organizational Development Division of the Board
of County Commissioners Department of Human
Resources.

+ Future Projects

The County will continue to provide a variety of ser-
vices required to meet the needs of its citizens and actively
support economic development in the area. We look
forward to the following significant activities made possible
by the citizens of Lucas County and its government:

« The Board of County Commissioners acquired from
the City of Toledo a site at the corner of Speilbusch
and Cherry to locate a new courthouse for the 6th
district Court of Appeals. The cost of the facility is
estimated at $7 million and will be shared by the eight
counties based on the population of each county.
Construction is expected to begin in 2002.

« The Board of County Commissioners and the judges of
the Common Pleas Court are looking into the needs of
the court over the next fifteen years. Alternatives to
meeting the anticipated space needs of the court and
how best to meet those needs while preserving the
historic Lucas County Courthouse will be examined.

The County has received a program and planning
report with 5 alternatives to meet the space needs of
the Common Pleas Court. The alternatives called for
construction ranging from $30 million to $50 million.

» The County has completed a strategic implementation
ptan for a new Human Resources / Payroll, Procure-
ment / Accounts Payable, General Ledger Accounting
System. Selection of the software vendor is complete,
and the implementation has started with the Payroll
module.

» The County will be constructing and equipping a
business continuation center (emergency backup
computer system). The cost is estimated to be $1
million.

« The County is initiating a document imaging project
that will allow multiple county agencies to collaborate
on a single platform.

»  The County is.developing a partnership with the private
sector to open a Career Opportunity Center. This
center will focus on providing career services to assist
people seeking to improve their employment options.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

The County’'s day-to-day accounting records are
maintained on a basis other than GAAP. For financial
reporting purposes, the accounting records for all Govern-
mental and Fiduciary Funds are converted to the modified
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and available within the business cycle (within
60 days after year end) and expenditures are recognized
when the related fund liability is incurred. The accounting
records for the Proprietary Funds are converted to the
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and earned, and expenses are recognized as
incurred.

A further discussion of the three methods of account-
ing (non-GAAP, modified accrual and accrual) and a
reconciliation of non-GAAP basis to GAAP basis of
accounting may be found in Note B and Note L , respec-
tively, of the Notes to the Financial Statements.



BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Under Ohio law, the Lucas County Board of Commis-
sioners must adopt an appropriations budget by January 1
of a given year, or adopt a temporary appropriation mea-
sure with final passage of a permanent budget by April
1st. No expenditure can be made from any budgetary
account without the Certificate of the County Auditor
certifying that funds are available or in the process of
collection. When a purchase order is issued or a contract
is entered into by any County department or agency, the
County Auditor encumbers the necessary funds to pay for
the expenditure. Contracts or purchase orders are
rejected and are invalid under Ohio law if sufficient
funds are not available to permit the County Auditor to
certify the transaction. A further discussion of the budget-
ary accounting system and its controls may be found in
Note B of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The County Auditor issues a monthly budget report to
the Board of Commissioners and to ail departments and
agencies showing the monthly and year-to-date expendi-
tures, encumbrances, and the cash balances, as well as
the unencumbered balance by fund and account. On a
quarterly basis, these reports are made public and are
available to the news media.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
The design of the internal control also recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance,
the County is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by
management.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County Treasurer utilizes cash management and
forecasting techniques and procedures to provide for

efficient and optimum use of the County’s cash resources
as permitted by applicable State of Ohio law.

Among the County’s many investments, the County
participates in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR OHIO) Investment pool. The statewide investment
pool is administered by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio.

Certain deposits are collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust depart-
ment or agent but not in the County’s name. The pool of
securities so pledged must have a current market value at
least equal to 110% of ali public monies on deposit with the
depository including the amount covered by federal insur-
ance.

Cash resources of all funds with the exception of
Water, Sewer, and certain Fiduciary Funds are pooled for
investment purposes. Currently, interest income derived
from these pooled resources is credited to the County’s
General Fund with the exception of the equitable share
distributed to the Self-Funded Health Insurance fund and
the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax fund.

INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS
{Amounts in 000's)

investments and Earnings 2001 2000
Total investments and
Deposits at year-end: $ 263,490 $ 243,157
Interest revenue: 12,468 13,221
RISK MANAGEMENT

The County Risk Manager monitors and directs the
entire insurance program of Lucas County. The County is
self-insured for a portion of its general business insurance
and insurance coverage after $500 thousand per occur-
rence.

The County participates in the State of Ohio Retro-
spective Rated Workers’ Compensation program with a
maximum liability of $300 thousand per accident.

Both programs, along with the self-funded health
program for dental benefits, provide savings with proper
risk management and loss control.



INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report on page 14 is an unqualified
audit opinion rendered by Ernst & Young LLP with respect
to the basic financial statements of the County as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2001. As part of the
annual preparation of a CAFR, the County subjects all the
financial statements to an annual independent audit. This
annual audit arrangement serves to strengthen the Coun-
ty's accounting, budgetary and internal control of financial
and operational systems.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR
EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The County prepared its first CAFR in 1984 in accor-
dance with the program guidelines for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certifi-
cate) awarded by the Government Finance Officers Associ-
ation of the United States and Canada (GFOA). Each
annual report must also satisfy generally accepted account-
ing principles and disclose applicable legal compliance
requirements. The County was awarded the Certificate for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 1984 - 2000.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year. We
believe that our current report continues to conform to the
guidelines and requirements of the program and will be
submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another Certificate.
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for Excellence
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Reporting
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For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2000

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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RING OF BEERS.
i

Construction of the Lucas County Ballpark was In March, 2001, the County issued $20 million in
substantially completed in 2001. The ballpark is home to economic development revenue bonds and $6 million in
a triple (A) minor league baseball team named The economic development revenue bond anticipation notes
Toledo Mudhens, which is one of the oldest existing to finance the project

baseball franchises in America. The Ballpark named,
Fifth Third Field opened to great fanfare including the
throwing of the first ball by celebrity Jamie Farr along with
several other dignitaries on April 9, 2002
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Report of Independent Auditors

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, msofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component units, 1s based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented
component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas County, Ohio, as
of December 31, 2001, and the respective changes in financial position and the cash flows, where
appropriate. thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General, Job and Family
Services, Board of Mental Retardation, and Children Services Board Funds for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note Q to the accompanying financial statements, during 2001, the County
changed its method of reporting in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statemenis—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
for State and Local Governments.

Ernst & Young tLp is a member of Ernst & Young International, Ltd.

— 14 —
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Page 2

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 16 through 22 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries to management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express
no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
May 10, 2002 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical tables are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
é/vmt ¥ MLLP

May 10, 2002
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

The discussion and analysis of Lucas County’s financial
performance provides an overall review of the County’s
financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2001.
The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the
County’s financial performance as a whole. Readers
should also review the transmittal letter, and the basic
financial statements to enhance their understanding of the
County’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2001 are as follows:

. The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the year ended December 31, 2001, by
$515,575 (net assets). Of this amount, $271,785 may
be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

. The County’s total net assets increased by
$128,808, which represents a 33% increase from
2000.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s

governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $165,079, an increase of $31 million from
the prior year. Of this amount, $129,192 is available
for spending (unreserved fund balance) on behalf of its
citizens.

. At the end of the current year, unreserved fund
balance for the general fund was $33,722, which
represents a 8.7% increase over the prior year, and
represents 34% of total general fund expenditures.

. Lucas County's total debt increased by $28,292 during
the current year. The key factor for this increase was
the issuance of $20 million in bonds for a new baseball
stadium, and $17 million in bonds for a new juvenile
justice center.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial
statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand
Lucas County as a financial whole or as an entire
operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide
an increasingly detailed look at specific financial
conditions.

The County's basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) County-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

County - Wide Financial Statements

The County-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The statement of net assets presents information on all
of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. The statement
of activities presents information showing how the
County’s net assets changed during the current year.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using
the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting
used by the private sector companies. This basis of
accounting takes into account all of the current year’s
revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets
and the change in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader whether, for
the County as a whole, the financial position of the County
has improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the
overall position of the County, nonfinancial information
such as changes in the County’s tax base and the
condition of County capital assets will also need to be
evaluated.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities, the County is divided into three kinds of
activities:

* Governmental Activities-Most of the County’s services
are reported here including public safety, social
services programs, administration, and all
departments with the exception of our Water and
Sewer funds and Wastewater Treatment.

— 16 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

14 Business-Type Activities- These services have a
charge based upon the amount of usage. The County
charges fees to recoup the cost of the entire operation
of our Water and Sewer and Wastewater Treatment
Plants as well as all capital expenses associated with
these facilities.

+ Component Units- The County includes financial data
of the Toledo MudHens Baseball Club, Inc., Lott
Industries, Inc., Preferred Properties, Inc., and
Community Living Options, Inc. These component
units are described in Note A of the Notes to the
Financial Statements. The component units are
separate and may buy, sell lease and mortgage
property in their own name and can sue or be sued in
their own name.

The County-wide Financial Statements can be found on
pages 23 - 25 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objects. The County,
like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
County can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund
financial reports provide detailed information about the
County’s major funds. Based on restriction on the use of
monies, the County has established many funds which
account for the multitude of services provided to our
residents. However, these fund financial statements focus
on the County’s most significant funds. In the case of
Lucas County, our major funds are the General, Children
Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation, Job and
Family Services, Capital Projects, Debt Service, Water
Supply System, Sewer System, and Wastewater
Treatment.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to
account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the Government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on current sources and uses of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
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information may be useful in evaluating government's
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower
than the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The County maintains several individual governmental
funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the major funds, which were identified earlier.
Data from the other governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere
in this report. The governmental fund financial statements
can be found on pages 26 - 36 of this report.

The County adopts and annual appropriated budget for
its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds: The County maintains two different
types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The County uses enterprise funds to account for its Water
and Sewer and Wastewater Treatment operations
internal Service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County’s various functions. The County used internal
service funds to account for its self-insurance programs,
vehicle maintenance, telephone system, central supplies,
and worker’s compensation programs. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included with
governmental activities in the County-wide financial
statements. The proprietary fund financial statements can
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be found on pages 38 - 45 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds: Are used to account for resources held
for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the County’s own programs.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
of the proprietary funds. The fiduciary fund financial
statements can be found on page 46 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide
additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the County-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 50 - 77 of this report.

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents combining and individual fund statements and
schedules which can be found on pages 80 - 173 of this
report.

ION AND ANALYSIS
1, 2001
000's)

County-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a
useful indicator of a County’s financial position. In the
case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by
$515,575 ($433,220 in governmental activities and
$82,355 in business type activities) as of December 31,
2001. By far, the largest portion of the County’s net
assets (69%) reflects its investment in capitat assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure),
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is -
still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the
County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Business-
Activities  Type Activities  Total
Assets 2001 2001 2001
Currentandotherassets. . ............. ... ...... $362,557 $14,552 $377,109
Capitalassets,net .. ......... ... ... .. ... ... ... 265,867 89.907 355,774
Total Assets . . . ... 628,424 104,459 732,883

Liabilities
Current and other liabilities . . ....................... (73,962) (1,047) (75,009)
Long-term liabilities due withinoneyear. ... .......... (12,562) (715) (13,277)
Long-term liabilities due in more thanoneyear......... (108.680) (20,342) {129,022)

Total fiabilities . . . ....... ... . . (195.204) (22,104) (217,308)
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets netofdebt . ..... .......... 144,625 68,850 213,475
Restricted:

Capitalprojects .. . ...... .. .. i 19,672 - 19,672

Debtservice . ........ ... .. i i 10,542 - 10,542

Other . ... 101 - 101
Unrestricted . . . ... i 258,280 13.505 271,785

Total NetAssets. . .. ...... ... ... $433,220 82,355 $515,575
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An additional portion of the County’s net assets (5.9%)
represents resources that are subject to restrictions on
how they can be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted assets ($271,785) may be used to meet the
County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of December 31, 2001, the County is able to report
positive balances in both the governmental and business -
type activities of $433,220 and $82,355 respectively.
Table 2 (on following page) provides a summary of the
changes in net assets for the year ended December 31,
2001. The County first implemented GASB Statement
No.34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, in 2001, therefore comparative date is not
available. In future years, when prior-year information is
available, a comparative analysis of government-wide
data will be presented. The County’s financial position
improved for both governmental-type and business-type
activities.

Governmental Activities

Human Services accounts for $123,391 of the $436,745
total expenses for governmental activities, or 28% of total
expenses. The next largest program is health, accounting
for $91,586 which represents 21% of total governmental
expenses

Tax revenue accounts for $283,308 of the $560,565
total revenue for governmental activity, or 51% of total
revenue. Operating grants was the largest program
revenue accounting for $187,560, or 33% of total
governmental revenue. The major recipients of
intergovernmental revenue were Job and Family Services,
receiving $83,000, and Children Services Board, receiving
$12,000.

The County's direct charges to users of governmental
services made up $25,022 or 4.5% of total governmental
revenue. These charges are for fees for real estate
transfers, fees associated with the collection of property
taxes, fines and forfeitures related to judicial activity, and
licences and permits associated with building inspectors.
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Business- type Activities

The net assets for the business - type activities for the
County increased by $5,035 during the year 2001. Major
revenue sources were charges for service of $10,183 and
capital contributions of $3,014 that resuited from
assessment on construction projects.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted eariier, the County uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmentai funds: The focus of the County’s
governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful is assessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal years.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s
governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $165.1 million, an increase of $31.5 million in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 78% of this
total amount (129.2 million) constitutes unreserved fund
balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance
is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed 1) to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period
($24.4 million), 2) to pay debt service ($10.5 million), or 3)
for a variety of other restricted purposes ($1.0 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the
County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance of the general fund was $33.7 million, while
total fund balance reached $36 million. As a measure of
the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents 33.9 percent to total general fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 36.2
percent of that same amount.
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Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-
Activities Type Activities Total
Revenues 2001 2001 2001
Program Revenues:
Chargesforservices . ............... ..., $ 25,022 $10,183 $ 35,205
Operating grants and contributions . .. .............. 187,560 3,014 190,574
Capital grants and contributions . .. ................ 5,467 - 5,467
General Revenues:
Taxes .. .. 283,308 - 283,308
Investmentincome. . ... ... ... L. 12,468 - 12,468
Change in fair value of investments . . .. ......... ... 1,346 - 1,346
Grants, contributions,and charges
not restricted to specific programs. . . ............... 2,012 5,790 7,802
Other. ... ... 43,382 I 43,382
Total Revenues . ......... ... ... ... ... ... 560.565 18.987 579,552
Program Expenses
General Government:
Legislativeandexecutive . .. ....... ... .. L. 45,568 - 45,568
Judicalsystem ...... ... ... . 56,599 - 56,599
Publicsafety. . ....... ... ... .. ... 61,840 - 61,840
Publicworks ... ... . . . 29,134 - 28,134
Health .. ... . . . 91,586 - 91,586
Humanservices . ......... ... .. ... ... ......... 123,391 - 123,391
Conservationand recreation . . ............ ........ 7,794 - 7,794
Miscellaneous . ......... ... ... . ... ... 13,858 - 13,858
Interestand fiscalcharges . .. ..................... 6,975 - 6,975
Sanitaryengineer .. ... ... i - 3,600 3,600
Watersupplysystem . . ... ... L - 2,565 2,565
Wastewatertreatment . . . ......... .. ... ... - 3,360 3,360
Sewersystem .. ..... ... .. .. . i - 2,847 2,847
Solidwaste . ... ... .. . . - 1,551 1,551
Parking facilities . .. ...... .. . . - 76 76
Total EXpenses . . . ... i 436,745 13,999 450,744
Increase in Net Assets before Transfers . ......... .... 123,820 4,988 128,808
Transfers .. ... e ____(47) 47 -
IncreaseinNetAssets ............................ 123,773 5,035 128,808
Net Assets-beginning . . .. ......... ... ... ... .. ... 309,447 77.320 386,767
NetAssets-ending . ....... ... ... ... . ... ... ... $433,220 $82,355 $515.,575
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The fund balance of the County’s general fund increased
by $3 million during the current fiscal year. Key factors in
this growth are as follows:

. An increase in the local real-estate tax of $1.7 million
due to the reappraisal of property values.

. A decrease of $1.7 million in transfers from the general
fund to other funds.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $10.5
million, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt
service. The net increase in fund balance during the
current year in the debt service fund was $4.4 million.
This is due to payment from the Toledo MudHens
Baseball Club, Inc. to retire revenue bond anticipation
notes.

Enterprise funds. The County’s enterprise funds
provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Supply System at
the end of the year accounted to $2.3 million, those for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant amounted to $3.8 million,
and total net assets for the Sewer System was $35.6
million. The total growth in net assets for these were $2.2
million, $0.2 million and $1.6 million respectively. Other
factors concerning the finances of these two funds have
already been addressed in the discussion of the County’s
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

Differences between the original budget and the final
amended budgets were $5.3 million. This was due to
increase in operating transfers out to other funds for debt
service and capital projects

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s investment in capital
assets for its governmental and business type activities as
of December 31, 2001, amounts to $355.8 million (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
asset includes land, buildings structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures equipment, and
infrastructure. The total increase in the County’s
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
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7.4 percent (a 9.2 percent increase for governmental
activities and a 2.6 percent increase for business-type
activities.)

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year
included the following:

. Completed construction of a $24 million Juvenile
Justice Center

. Substantially completed a new $39 million Baseball
stadium.
. Completed $5.6 million in infrastructure projects, with

$7.2 million remaining in construction in progress

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can
be found in Note F.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $94.8
million. Of this amount, $61.8 million comprises debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the government and
$13 million is special assessment debt for which the
government is liable in the event of default by the property
owners subject to the assessment.The remaining $20
million is non-tax revenue bonds. The County also had
outstanding $23.5 million on Ohio Water Development
Authority (OWDA) loans and $2.5 million Ohio Public
Works Commission (OPWC) loans.

The County’s total debt increased by $28.2 million during
the current fiscal year . The key factor in this increase was
a $20 million bond issued for the baseball stadium and a
$17 million bond issued for the Juvenile Justice Center.

The County maintains an “A+” rating from Standard &
Poor’s and Fitch and an “A1" rating from Moody’s for
general obligation debt. The bonds for the baseball
stadium have been rated “A2" by Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of unvoted general
obligation debt the County may issue to one percent of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for
Lucas County is $77.8, which is significantly in excess of
the County’s outstanding unvoted general obligation debt.
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Additional information on the County’s long-term debt
can be found in Note H.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

. The unemployment rate for the County is
currently 5.0 percent, which is a increase from the
rate of 4.9 percent a year ago. The state average
unemployment rate was 4.3, and the national
average was 4.8.

. Inflationary trends in the region compare
favorably to national indices.

These factors were considered in preparing the County’s
budget for the 2002 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance
in the general fund increased to $33.7 million. The County

has prepared a budget for 2002 without appropriating any
of the unreserved balance. The County prepared a
balance budget for 2002 without an increase in taxes or
an increase in rates in the enterprise funds.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of Lucas County’s finances for all those with an
interest in the governments’ finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report,
or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to:

Larry A. Kaczala, Lucas County Auditor
One Government Center

Suite 600

Toledo, OH 43604-2255
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................ $ 54,905 $ 2,811 $ 57,716 & 2,187
Pooled Investments....................... 153,403 7,697 161,100 5,848
Segregated cash accounts........................ 6,331 6,331
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables)... ... 137,383 4,020 141,403 1,721
Due from otherfunds.............................. 181 181
Due from other governments................. 9,703 9,703
Prepaid eXpenses...........c..ooceiiiiiiiiiii - 213
Inventory of materials and supplies...................... 651 24 675 215
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)... 265,867 89,907 355,774 14,784
Totalassets. ................................... 628,424 104,459 732,883 24,968
Liabilities:
Accounts payable......................... 18,708 3685 19,073 1,697
Accrued wages and benefits........................ 29,288 679 29,967 382
Duetootherfunds............................... 178 3 181
Due to other governments................................ 1,843 1,843
Deposits...............oo 6,331 6,331
Matured bonds payable........................ 16 16
Matured interest payable........................ 17 17
Deferredrevenue.................................... . - - 485
Claimspayable................................. 6,841 6,841
Notes payable.......................o 10,740 10,740
Long-term liabilities
Due withinoneyear.............................. 12,562 716 13,278 136
Due inmore thanonevyear...................... 108,680 20,341 129,021 7,114
Total liabilities......................... 195,204 22,104 217,308 9,814
Net assets:
invested in capital assets, net of
relateddebt............... 144,625 68,850 213,475
Restricted for:
Capital projects...............coooo 19,672 19,672
Debtservice................ccooiii 10,542 10,542
Other purposes.............ccocoviiiiiiiine 101 101
Unrestricted.............oi 258,280 13,505 271,785 15,154
Total netassets.................... $ 433220 § 82,355 § 515575 § 15,154

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government -
Legislative and executive....... .. 3 45568 $ 17,188  § 3540 % -
Judicial.............. 56,599 5579 14,719 439
Publicsafety........................... 61,840 2 12,068
Publicworks.................... ... 29,134 233 14,532
Health.......................... 91,586 1,370 44,370
Human services....................... 123,391 96,881
Conservation and recreation....... 7,794 649 1,450 5,028
Miscellaneous.......................... 13,858
interest and fiscal charges.......... 6,975
Total governmental activities.. . 436,745 25,022 187,560 5,467
Business-type activities:
Sanitary engineer..................... 3,600 3,015 1,000
Water supply .......................... 2,585 799 692
Wastewater treatment............... 3,360 3,592 -
Sewer................ 2,847 507 1,322
Solidwaste............................. 1,551 1,970 -
Parking facilities....................... 76 300 -

Total business-type activities. ... 13,999 10,183 3,014 -
Total primary government............... $ 450,744 % 35205 § 190,574 % 5,467
Component Units:

Lott Industries............................ 3 8,174  $ 5632 % 822 § -
Preferred Properties.................... 1,158 301 942
Community Living Options............ 5913 2,121
ToledoMudHens....................... 2,284 914
Total component units.................... $ 15,529 $ 6,847 $ 3,885 $ -
General Revenues:
Property TaX... ...
SIS TaX. ..o
OtNer TaX. ..
Charges for services not restricted to specific programs................
Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs........
Investment INCOME. ...
Net change in fair value of investments................................
Miscellaneous. ... ...
Capital contributions not restricted to specific programs................
Transfers. ..
Total general revenues and transfers......................
Changesinnetassets...................i i
Net assets - beginning.............
Net assets - ending. ...

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (24,839) § - $ (24,839) § -
(35,862) (35,862)
(49,770) (49,770)
(14,369) (14,369)
(45,846) (45,846)
(26,510) (26,510)
(667) (667)
(13,858) (13,858)
(6,975) (6,975)
(218,696) - (218,696) -
415 415
(1,074) (1,074)
232 232
(1,018) (1,018)
419 419
224 224
- (802) (802) -
(218,696) (802) (219,498) -
280
85
(3,792)
(1,370)
- - - (4,797)
192,534 192,534
73,740 73,740
17,034 17,034
286 286
1,726 1,726
12,468 12,468 -
1,346 1,346 -
43,382 43,382 3,211
- 5,790 5,790
(47) 47 -
342,469 5,837 348,306 3,211
123,773 5,035 128,808 (1,586)
309,447 77,320 386,767 16,740

$ 433220 82,355  § 515575 § 15,154
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Children Board of Job and
Services Mental Family
General Board Retardation Services
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents.......... 7,024 § 7982 % 1414  § 6,543
Pooled investments.....................c..o.... 22,259 21,862 3,874 17,922
Segregated cash accounts..................... 5,245 1,023
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectables)
TAXES. .ot 27,345 19,847 33,794
ACCOUNES...oiiiiiiii 147 54 207
Special assessments....................... 1
Accruedinterest....................oall. 2,318
LOoans. ..o,
Due from other governments.................. 531 822 517 1
Inventory: materials and supplies...........
Total assets........cc.coeveiiiiiieiinnn. 64870 $ 51,590 § 39,806 $ 24,466
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable............c...co..nll 1,281  § 213§ 2470 % 5,180
Accrued wages and benefits............. 4,784 1,223 2,003 1,569
Due to otherfunds.......................... 98 18 23
Due to other governments................ 1,841 2
Deferred revenue........................... 15,609 19,311 32,902
Deposits.....coveviiiiii 5,245 1,023
Matured bonds payable...................
Matured interest payable.................
Notes payable.............ooceeii,
Total liabilities.............ccocoviiiiinn. 28,858 21,788 37,375 6,774
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances..............coceiiiiiiin 2,290 752 3,376 513
INVeNtOry....oooiiiiii
Loans receivable............................
Debtservice.........cocoeevivnnniiininn. ..
Other purposes.............ooeeveeeeiinnn.
Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
Generalfund............cooovin 33,722
Special revenue funds..................... 29,050 (945) 17,179
Capital projects funds......................
Total fund balances...................... 36,012 29,802 2,431 17,692
Total liabilities and fund balances........ 64,870 $ 51,590 $ 39,806 $ 24,466

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Nonmajor Total

Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
improvements Service Funds Funds
$ 9674 % 1463  § 12,215  § 46,315
26,500 4,009 33,453 129,879
63 6,331
28,974 109,960
3,648 316 4,372
20,376 20,377
2,318
352 352
5,028 2,804 9,703
514 514

$ 39822 % 30,876 $ 78691 § 330,121

$ 3381 § - $ 5,395 $ 17,920
2,087 11,666

39 178

1,843

20,301 28,208 116,331

63 6,331

16 16

17 17

10,740 10,740
14,121 20,334 35,792 165,042
6,235 11,212 24,378
514 514

352 352

10,542 10,542

101 101

33,722

30,514 75,798

19,466 206 19,672
25,701 10,542 42,899 165,079

$ 39,822 % 30,876 % 78,691 $ 330,121




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31,2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Total governmental fund balances $ 165,079

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 265,696

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost
of insurance and other services to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. 24,806

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore deferred in the funds. 116,331

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, OWDA loans,
OPWC loans, capital leases, and compensated absences
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are

not reported on the funds. (138,692)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 433,220

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Children Board of Job and
Services Mental Family
General Board Retardation Services
REVENUES
T B ettt et e $ 86,117 § 21,014 § 21,916 % -
Charges for services...........c.oeeviiine . 12,565 5
Licenses and permits.............ccoeveveninnnnnn, 34
Fines and forfeits..............cooiiiinniinn, 540
Special assessments.........c.ooeviiiiiiiine. 24
inergovernmental revenue .................c..nl 18,495 12,048 1,292 83,387
Investmentincome........cooveiivii i 12,179
Net change in fair value of investments....... 1,346
Miscellaneous revenue...............co.oovnnnne. 3,554 3,117 10,131
Total revenues........ccoocvvii i, 134,854 36,179 33,344 83,387
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive..................... 23,436
Judicial..c.oo 37,659
Public safety........ooovivvinciii ' 33,319
Public Works. ... 222 .
Health. oo 825 41,535
HUMan ServiCes........cvveviiieeiiiiienaiaans, 1,342 33,503 78,765
Conservation and recreation................... 1,853
Miscellaneous......ccoveeiieiiiiii 701
Capital outlay........coooveveiiiiiii
Debt service:
Principal retirement...............c
Interest and fiscal charges......................

Total expenditures..........c..ccceeeiiiennn.. 99,357 33,503 41,535 78,765

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures.................... 35,497 2,676 (8,191) 4,622
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

OPWC loan proceeds.........cceeuvennnen

Proceeds of bonds............cocooii

Proceeds of capital lease transactions.... 21
Transfers in.......cooooviviiiii i, 3,341
Transfers out.........cocovveiieieiieieeen (32,455) (1,383)

Total other financing sources (uses)..... (32,455) (1,383) - 3,362
Net change in fund balances.................. 3,042 1,293 (8,191) 7,984
Fund balance at beginning of year.............. 32,970 28,509 10,622 9,708
Fund balance atend of year.................... $ 36,012 § 29,802 § 2,431 $ 17,692
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Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
Improvements Service Funds Funds
$ - $ 5308 § 30,041 § 164,396
12,038 24,608
34
126 666
871 1,686 2,581
2,320 77,211 194,753
12,179
1,346
7,296 7,408 11,876 43,382
10,487 14,402 131,292 443,945
10,428 33,864
14,586 52,245
24,628 57,947
14,457 14,679
45,736 88,096
3,754 117,364
5,778 7,631
13,132 13,833
42,528 5,783 48,311
10,846 10,846
883 6,092 6,975
43,411 16,938 138,282 451,791
(32,924) (2,536) (6,990) (7,846)
746 746
38,585 38,585
21
12,826 6,986 11,177 34,330
(72) (47) (420) (34,377)
51,339 6,939 11,503 39,305
18,415 4,403 4,513 31,459
7,286 6,139 38,386 133,620
$ 25,701 $ 10,542  § 42899 $§ 165,079
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation
in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities.

31,459

22,367

116,331

(28,506)

(17,469)

(409)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $

123,773

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Revenues:

Charges for services.
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits.......
Special assessments.......... .

Intergovernmental revenue...............ccccoe...
Investment income....... .
Miscellaneous revenue..................oceeeune. .

Total revenues........cc.ooccvvvvieeeii

Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive...........c..........
Judicial....oi
Public safety.........cocooevcnniiee
Public works..
Health. ...
Human Services..........ccoeevncccninennn.
Conservation and recreation.
Miscellaneous........ccceevevveiiviivinece e
Capital outlay......cocooeeeeeiiiiii
Debt service:
Principal retirement..............ccccooiven
Interest and fiscal charges........cc...c.co......

Total expenditures...........cccvevverveennnne..
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOtES.......cccoceeivieiinieiieen
Proceeds of bonds...........cocvvevveviecinnenn
Operating transfers in..............cccocveeceneen.
Operating transfers (out).......c.cccocceveene.

Total other financing sources (uses)........

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses (Note N)

Fund balance at beginning of year................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund balance at end of year..........c...c.........

(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amount

Variance:
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 88206 $ 88,206 S 85,532 $ (2,674)
11,906 11,906 12,515 609
52 52 34 (18)
534 534 555 21
40 40 24 (16)
18,885 18,885 18,558 (327)
10,495 10,495 12,566 2,071
1,762 1,792 3,527 1,735
131,880 131,910 133,311 1,401
28,537 28,667 26,504 2,163
38,868 38,958 37,853 1,105
34,402 35,359 33,990 1,369
310 358 267 91
1,053 1,083 788 295
1,515 1,538 1,514 24
2,009 1,984 1,948 36
2,192 978 810 168
0
0
0
108,886 108,925 103,674 5,251
22,994 22,985 29,637 6,652
0
0
0
(25,903) (30,986) (30,786) 200
(25,903) (30,986) (30,786) 200
(2,909) (8,001) (1,149) 6,852
19,517 19,517 19,517 0
2,822 2,822 2,822 0
$ 19,430 $ 14,338 $ 21,190 $ 6,852




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILDREN SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES. .ttt e $ 20,499 $ 20,499 $ 20,880 $ 381
Intergovernmental revenue ................cc.ooiieniiiinnn, 13,324 13,324 12,071 (1,253)
Miscellaneous revenue  ............c..ovvviiviiinnnnn, 3,667 3,667 3,067 (600)
Total revenue  ........cccooiiiiiiiii e 37,490 37,490 36,018 (1,472)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal services  ...........coooooiiiiiiiiiinee 19,393 19,393 18,237 1,156
Materials and supplies ............oooveveevvininii, 1,137 1,238 1,109 129
Charges and ServiCes .........oo.ooovveiiiiiiieiinnenni, 17,854 17,753 15,958 1,795
Capital outlay and equipment ............................ 651 651 611 40
Total expendituresS — ........cccccccoiiiiiiiiaiiiai, 39,035 39,035 35,915 3,120
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (1,545) (1,545) 103 1,648
Fund balance at beginning of year........................... 27,423 27,423 27,423 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 1,006 1,006 1,006 -
Fund balance atend of year.....................c.o...o... $ 26,884 $ 26,884 $ 28532 $ 1648
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BOARD OF MENTAL RETARDATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES et ettt et $ 21,330 $ 21330 $ 21,403 $ 73
Charges for services ...........ccoooiiiiiininn, 65 65 5 (60)
Intergovernmental revenue .............cooceiiiini, 7,008 7,008 2,082 (4,926)
Miscellaneous revenue ... 5,523 5,523 9,935 4,412
Total revenue  ..........ccoeviiiiiiiiiii i, 33,926 33,926 33,425 (501)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal services  .......ocoiiiiiii 30,987 30,118 29,203 915
Materiais and supplies .......cc..ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiial 952 1,182 1,170 12
Charges and services ..........coovviveviiiininiiinnnnnnn., 12,093 12,731 12,155 576
Capital outlay and equipment  ........................ 786 786 739 47
Total expenditures — .....c.ocociiiiiiiiiiii 44,818 44,817 43,267 1,550
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (10,892) (10.891) (9,842) 1,049
Fund balance at beginning of year..................c....... 8,385 8,385 8,385 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 2,506 2,506 2,506 -
Fund balance atend of year.................coooeeeenn, $ €] $ - $ 1,049 $ 1,049
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
' Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue ... $ 66,790 $ 66,790 $ 83,386 16596

Miscellaneous revenue  ...........cccooeeerviniii i - - - -
Total revenue  .................ccccoiieiieieeeee 66,790 66,790 83,386 16,596

Expenditures:

Current:

Human services
Personat services  ..............ccoooeii 25,957 26,770 25,982 788
Materials and supplies ..o 556 596 545 51
Charges and services  ............ccoooevvveeeeiii 42,786 54,599 51,725 2,874
Capital outlay and equipment  ........................ 961 661 183 478
Total expenditures — .........cocoeiiiriiiiii 70,260 82,626 78,435 4,191
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (3,470) (15,836) 4,951 20,787

Other financing sources:

Operating transfersin = ... 3,341 3,341 3,341 -
Total other financing SoUrces.............c..cc.ovuvvn..., 3,341 3,341 3,341 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures ............................... (129) (12,495) 8,292 20,787

Fund balance at beginning of year........................... 14,977 14,977 14,977 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 599 599 599 -

Fund balance atend ofyear.................................. $ 15,447 $ 3,081 $ 23,868 $ 20,787
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise

Water
Supply Wastewater Sewer
System Treatment System
ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................... $ 517  § 715§ 635
Pooled investments....................... 1,416 1,957 1,738
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables) 442 1,392 553
Due fromother funds.....................
Inventory: materials and supplies................... 24 :
Totalcurrentassets...................coooeis 2,375 4,088 2,926
Noncurrent assets - capital assets:
Land....oooii 199 39 10
Land improvements...................co 52,976 57,136
Buildings, structures, and improvements......... 2,839 17,442
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment................. 1,641 9,279
Less accumulated depreciation..................... (21,012) {12,506) (21,162)
Total noncurrent assets......................... 36,643 14,254 35,984
Total @assets........cooviiiiiiiiii, $ 39,018 § 18,342  § 38,910
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.................... $ 57 § 78 % 68
Accrued wages and benefits........................... 182
Duetootherfunds.....................
Claims payable -current....................o.oo
Current portion of long-term debt.................... 113 366 209
Total current liabilities................................ 170 626 277
Noncurrent liabilities:
Obligations under capital leases......................
OWDA loans payable...............cocooiiivnin. 4,957 10,821 2,900
Claims payable - noncurrent..........................
OPWC loans payable...................oooiin 206 62
Total noncurrent liabilities........................... 4,957 11,027 2,962
Total liabilities...............ccocoi . 5,127 11,653 3,239
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....... 31,573 2,861 32,813
Unrestricted.............ooo 2,318 3,828 2,858
Total netassets..........ccooooviiiiiiiiiinn, 33,891 8,689 35,671
Total liabilities and netassets........................ $ 39,018 § 18,342  $ 38,910

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 38 —



Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds
$ 944 % 2,811 $ 8,590
2,586 7,697 23,524
1,633 4,020 4
- 541
24 137
5,163 14,552 32,796
154 402 83
110,112
3,006 23,287 30
2,137 13,057 1,187
(2,271) (56,951) {1,129)
3,026 89,907 171
$ 8,189 § 104,459 § 32,967
$ 162§ 365 % 788
497 679 153
3 3 360
3,618
28 716
690 1,763 4,919
- 19
1,395 20,073
3,223
268
1,395 20,341 3,242
2,085 22,104 8,161
1,603 68,850 171
4,501 13,505 24,635
6,104 82,355 24,806
$ 8189 § 104,459 § 32,967
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise

Water
Supply Wastewater Sewer
System Treatment System
Operating revenues:
Charges for services.........ccevvvivveeneerecrnenn . $ 799§ 3592 § 507
Miscellaneous. .......coovvceviiiieiiiiccieec e 692 1,322
Total operating revenues.................... 1,491 3,592 1,829
Operating expenses:
Personal services.........cccoevvvvveeiveveenenn, 1,024
Contract Services......c.ocveveveeenreecreennen. 542 284 1,008
Materials and supplies.........cccoeeeeveeennn. 19 303 3
- Heat, light and power.......ccccveeceinniennnn... 301 591 196
Depreciation..........cccveevveecieeciiee e, 1,384 459 1,412
Miscellaneous........cccccevvviveiiiiei i
Employee medical benefit..............................
Total operating expenses.................... 2,246 2,661 2,619
Operating income (10SS).......cvcovveeennnn. (755) 931 (790)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interestincome.........coooiviiiiiciii
Interest and fiscal charges....................... (319) (699) (228)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)......... (319) (699) (228)
Income (loss) before contributions and
operating transfers...................ocovn. (1,074) 232 (1,018)
Capital contributions............coovviniiiiiciircece e, 3,206 - 2,584
Transfer iN. ..o 47
Change in net assets.........cc.ccoveevveeeenneen. 2,179 232 1,566
Net assets at beginning of year
as restated (Note Q )........coooiiiiiiiinnt, 31,712 6,457 34,105
Netassetsatendofyear..................cocooiiiininil, $ 33,891 3 6,689 $ 35,671

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Funds Governmental

Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds
$ 5285 § 10,183  § 28,015
1,000 3,014 181
6,285 13,197 28,196
3,132 4,156 1,239
1,200 3,034 3,332
432 757 1,412
34 1,122
270 3,525 74
72 72 4
22,833
5,140 12,666 28,894
1,145 531 (698)
291
(87) (1,333) (2)
(87) (1,333) 289
1,058 (802) (409)
5,790
47
1,058 5,035 (409)
5,046 77,320 25,215
3 6,104 § 82,355 § 24,806
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Waste-
Supply Water Sewer
System Treatment System
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from CUSIOMErS.........coeoeveviiieeiren. $ 1,441 $ 3,874 $ 1,846
Cash paid to SUPPlIEIS......ccevcveerieircr i, {871) {1,172) (1,149)
Cash paid to emplOYeesS........ceouieivviiieeie e, - {1,001) -
Net cash provided by
operating activities...........cccoeeniivi i, 570 1,701 697
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transters iN.....ovviier e 47 - -
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities.........cooeevveeiiiiees e 47 - -
Cash fiows from capital and related
financing activities:
Proceeds of 10aN........ccoooiiiniie i 1,268
Principal payments - OWDA loans.................... (197) (690) (366)
Principal payments - OPWC loans.................... - (14) (32)
Purchase of capital assets...........cccccee i, - (43) -
Interest paid..........cccoeevviiciniicieeec e, (319) (699) (228)
Principal payments - capital lease................... - - -
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities........ccoceeeeeinnne 752 (1,446) (626)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments............... - 3,302 3,271
Payments for investments.........cccccccoeevvvennns (931) (3,186) (3,034)
Interest received........cccovecieieennnen. - - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
ACHVITI®S...oovi i (931) 116 237
Net increase in cash........c.ccco....... 438 371 308
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1.............. 79 344 327
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31........ $ 517 $ 715 $ 635

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Nonmajor Activities
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds

$ 6,051 $ 13,212 $ 28,195
(1,613) (4,805) (26,817)
(3,081) (4,082) (1,241)
1,357 4,325 137

- 47 0

- 47 -

1,268 -

(56) (1,309) -

- (46) -
(74) (117) (20)
(87) (1,333) 2)
- - (7)
(217) (1,537) (29)
2,617 9,190 45,500
(3,152) (10,303) (41,818)

- - 291

(535) (1,113) 3,973

605 1,722 4,081

339 1,089 4,509

$ 944 $ 2,811 $ 8,590
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Operating income (I0SS).......ccccovvievveeeeeeererenan .

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation expense............. [P

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable......cocveveeeeei e

INVENTONY ..ot

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable.......ccceovieiiicnieee,

Due to other governments............cc.ccocvecveeennnnn.
Accrued wages and benefits............c...cooe......
Due to other funds........c.ocoeeieieiiiiiiieie.
Total adjustments.........cccccevvvvviiiiceeeeen,

Net cash provided by

operating activities........cccccoeviieeii e,

Noncash capital and related
financing activities:

Business-Type Activities

Water Waste-
Supply Water
System Treatment

$ (755) $ 931
1384 459

(50) 282
- (6)

9) 12

: 23

1 ,325; 77(;

$ 570 $ 1,701

Enterprise funds received approximately $5.8 million of contributed fixed assets, approximately $3.2
million to the Water Supply System, and $2.6 million to the Sewer System.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enterprise Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Sewer Enterprise Internal Service
System Funds Total Funds
$ (790) $ 1,145 531 $ (698)
1412 270 3,525 74
17 (234) 15 2
(4)
- - (6) 79
58 124 185 676
- - 0
. 51 74 )
- 1 1 10
1,487 212 3,794 835
$ 697 $ 1,357 4,325 $ 137
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Agency
Funds
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................ $ 22,311
Segregated cash accounts.............ccccoeeeuene. 1,820
Total assets.....cccoevvrvivieiiniiiicci e, $ 24,131
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies.........cccceveeveeveeenenn, 22,002
Deposits held due to others..........ccccccoevvee. 1,828
Payroll withholdings..........cccceeevveiiciieceene, 301
Total liabilities. ..o $ 24,131

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Toledo
Mud Hens Lott Nonmajor
Baseball Industries Component
Club, Inc. Inc. Units Total
Assets:
Current assets-
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..........cceeceervecveennnee $ 408 $ 1,417 $ 362 $ 2,187
Investments..........cccoceeeveriennnens et ereereeeererananes 1,207 3,405 1,236 5,848
Receivables (net of aliowances for
uncollectables) accounts 318 950 453 1,721
Prepaid expenses.......c.o.c oo 43 112 58 213
Inventory: materials and supplies.......cccoevveveccvrveerrenn, 108 107 - 215
Total current assets.......ccvvevvervevenreceecannnennne 2.084 5,991 2,109 10,184
Noncurrent assets-
Property, plant and equipment-
LANG. et er e et e eeens - 188 735 923
Buildings, structures and
IMPIOVEMENLS.... ..ot cscsens - 8,413 5,627 14,040
Furniture, fixtures and equipMENt......c.cccoveerverevinnreene, 313 3,783 187 4,283
Construction in progress............... - - 163 163
Less: accumulated depreciation (250) (3,456) (919) (4,625)
Total noncurrent assets........c.coceeeveenneciiieiiinnnnnnn. 63 8,928 5,793 14,784
Total @SSetS....ioiieeec v e $ 2,147 $ 14,819 3 7,902 $ 24,968
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable...........ccccovnieveiiiceniineenveeeeenenn, $344 $331 $1,022 $1,697
Accrued wages and benefits...........ccviieieiincincnneneen, 173 195 14 382
Deferred revenue..........oovveeveniveeeiie e vneesieanes 485 - - 485
Current portion of long-term debt........c..c.oocvivennnnnnn. - 115 21 136
Total current liabilities.........cccevevvvererriennn. 1,002 641 1,057 2,700
Noncurrent liabilities-
Notes Payable..........ccccccovvninniccicccinniec e, - - 50 50
Bonds Payable - 4,185 - 4,185
Other long term obligations........c.ccocveceenrrcencncnenrnnnnas - - 2,879 2,879
Total noncurrent liabilities-............cccoeceevennnenn 0 4,185 2,929 7,114
Total Habilities.........cooeivvvicenerriinceenceeecerane, 1,002 4,826 3,986 9,814
Net Assets:
Unrestricted........ocovvvererrcceencrernnenannes 1,145 10,083 3,916 15,154
Total net aSSetS......vveeerrevrerieirneenns $ 1,145 $ 10,093 $ 3,916 $ 15,154

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integratl part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Toledo Mud Hens

Charges for Grants and Baseball
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Club inc.
Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club
Recreation $ 2,284  § 914  § - $ (1,370)
Lott Industries
Health 6,174 5,632 822
Nonmajor Component units
Health 7,071 301 3,063
Total componentunits.................... $ 15,520  § 6,847 § 3,885 § (1,370)
General Revenues:
Miscellaneous...............ccoocoiiiiiiiii 1,370
Total generalrevenues................................ 1,370
Changesinnetassets............................... -
Net assets - beginning..................c 1,145
Netassets-ending.............oocviiiiii . $ 1,145

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Lott
Industries Total
Inc. Nonmajor Total
$ - $ - $ (1,370)
280 280
} (3,707) (3,707)
$ 280 3 (3,707) $ (4,797)
477 1,364 3,211
477 1,364 3,211
757 (2,343) (1,586)
9,336 6,259 16,740
3 10,093 3 3,916 $ 15,154

— 49 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation

The County: Lucas County is a political subdivision of
the State of Ohio. The County was formed by an act of
the Ohio General Assembly in 1835. The three member
Board of County Commissioners is the legislative and
executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the
chief fiscal officer. In addition, there are seven other
elected administrative officials, each of whom are
independent as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecutor,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. There are also ten
Common Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relations
Court Judges, two Juvenile Court Judges, one Probate
Court Judge and five Court of Appeals Judges elected
on a County-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system.

The accompanying financial statements present the
County (Primary Government) and its component units,
which are legally separate organizations which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. The financial data of the component units
are included in the County’s reporting entity because of
the significance of their operational or financial
relationships with the County. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the government operations.

A discretely presented component unit is an entity that
is legally separate from the County but for which the
County is financially accountable, or its relationship with
the County is such that exclusion would cause the
County’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

The discretely presented component unit column in the
combined financial statements include the County’s
component units. They are reported in a separate column
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
county. A brief description of each component unit, and
its relationships to the County follows:

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. is organized to
own, manage, and operate a professional baseball club.
The board of this component unit is appointed by the
Board of County Commissioners. The County receives
rent from the Mud Hens that is substantially below market

rate, which imposes a financial burden, as defined by
GASB 14 on the County. For report purposes, the Mud
Hens are a proprietary component unit. The Mud Hens are
reported on a fiscal year ending October 31. Complete
financial statements of the component unit can be
obtained from its administrative office at Fifth Third Field,
406 Washington St., Toledo, OH 43604.

Lott Industries, Inc., is a nonprofit organization affiliated
with the Lucas County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities (LCBMR/DD), a special
revenue fund of the County. It provides employment for
individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities by obtaining work competitively from the private
and public sectors. A majority of the board of the
component unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The
LCBMR/DD pays the salaries of the administrative staff,
which is a financial obligation of the County, and the
component unit exists solely to provide service to the
LCBMR/DD. For report purposes, Lott Industries, Inc. is
a governmental component unit. Complete financial
statements of the component unit can be obtained from its
administrative office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio
43620.

Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates is a not-for-profit
corporation organized to provide affordable and
accessible housing to persons with disabilities. One third
of the board of the component unit is appointed by the
LCBMR/DD. Funds for the purchase of housing are
received from the LCBMR/DD which come from board
funds and pass through of funds from Community
Assistance Projects administered by the Ohio
Department of Mental Retardation and Develop-
mental Disabilities. This imposes a financial obligation
on the County. For report purposes, Preferred Properties,
Inc. is a governmental component unit. Preferred
Properties, Inc. is reported on a fiscal year ending June
30. Complete financial statements of the component unit
can be obtained from its administrative office at 2001
Coliingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

Community Living Options, Inc. is a non-profit
corporation that provides residential assistance and
support services to individuals with mental retardation and
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Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

developmental disabilities. The board of the component
unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The component unit
receives the majority of its funding from the State of Ohio,
passed through the LCBMR/DD. The LCBMR/DD has
agreed to fund any losses of the component unit which
imposes a financial obligation on the County. For report
purposes, Community Living Options, Inc. is a
governmental component unit. Complete financial
statement of the component unit can be obtained from its
administrative office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio
43620.

In determining its reporting entity and component units,
the County considered all potential component units,
including the Lucas County Board of Health, Metropolitan
Park District, Lucas County Soil and Water Conservation
District, Lucas County Port Authority, Lucas County
Improvement Corporation, Toledo Zoological Society,
Toledo Area Sanitary District, Toledo Lucas County Public
Library, Lucas County Board of Education and Toledo-
Lucas County Convention and Visitors Bureau and
concluded that such were neither component units nor
related organizations of the County and that it would not
be misleading to exclude their activities from the County’s
reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation: The County’s basic financial
statements consist of government-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of
activities, and fund financial statements which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The state-
ment of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the County as a whole. These
statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds. The activity of the
internal service funds is eliminated to avoid “doubling up”
revenues and expenses. The statements distinguish
between those activities of the County that are
governmental and those that are considered business-
type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial
condition of the governmental and business-type activities
for the County at year-end. The statement of activities
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presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each program or function of the
County’s governmental activities and for the business-type
activities of the County. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a service, program or
department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipient for the goods or services offered by the program,
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program
and interest earned on grants that is required to be used
to support a particular program. Revenues which are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with program
revenues identifies the extent to which each business
segment or governmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenues of the County.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of
taxes and other charges between the County’s water and
sewer function and various other functions of the County.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Fund Financial Statements: During the year, the
County segregates transactions related to certain County
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid
financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to
present financial information of the County at this more
detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise
fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major
fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds
are aggregated and presented in a single column. Internal
service funds are combined and the totals are presented
in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting: The County uses funds to maintain
its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as
a fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of
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Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

accounts, There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are those
through which most governmental functions of the County
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the
sources, use and balances of current financial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various
governmental funds according to the purposes for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned
to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference
between governmental funds assets and liabilities is
reported as fund balance. The following are the County’s
major governmental funds.

+ General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating
revenues and expenditures of the County not recorded
elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use
taxes, property taxes, state and local government fund
receipts, investment earnings and charges for services.

« Children Services Board Special Revenue Fund: This fund
accounts for County-wide property tax levy, state grants and
reimbursements used for County child care programs.

« Board of Mental Retardation Special Revenue Fund; This
fund accounts for a County-wide property tax levy, state
grants and reimbursements used for care and services for the
mentally handicapped and retarded.

+ Public Assistance Special Revenue Fund: This fund accounts
for various federal and state grants and reimbursements as
well as transfers from the General Fund used for human
service programs.

» Capital Improvements Capital Projects Fund: This fund
accounts for renovation and construction of County owned
buildings and facilities, and construction of special
assessment projects.

« Debt Service Fund: This fund accounts for revenues received
and used to pay principal and interest on debt.

Proprietary Fund

+ Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position

and cash flows. These funds are used to account for operations
that provide services which are financed primarily by user
charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control or other purposes. The County reports the following
major proprietary funds.

« Water Supply System Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for
the distribution of treated water to individuals and commercial
users of Lucas County.

» Sewer System Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for
sanitary sewer services provided to individuals and
commercial users in Lucas County and portions of Wood
County.

» Wastewater Treatment Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts
for wastewater treatment services provided to the Sanitary
Engineer, cities of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of
Waterville, Sylvania Township and other portions of Lucas
County and portions of Wood County

Additionally the County reports which Internal Service
Funds account for the goods or services provided by
certain County departments to other County funds,
departments and other governmental units, on a cost

* reimbursement basis. The County also reports agency

funds that account for and maintain assets held by the
County or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other governmental units and other
funds. These assets include: property and other taxes, as
well as other intergovernmental resources that have been
collected and which will be distributed to other taxing
districts located in Lucas County.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Water Supply System,
Wastewater Treatment Plant, and Sewer System, and of
the County’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The County also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees
intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
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and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non operating revenues and
expenses.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County
are prepared in conformity with GAAP for local
government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the GASB and other recognized
authoritative sources. The County has elected not to
apply FASB Statements and interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The
government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the economic resources measurements focus. All assets
and liabilities associated with the operation of the County
are included on the Statement of Net Assets.

Fund Financial Statements: All governmental funds are
accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurements focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the
sources (i.e.,revenues and other financing sources) and
uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from the
manner in which the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the
relationship between the government-wide statements and
the statements for governmental funds.

Like the governmental-wide statements, all proprietary
fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included
on the statement of net assets. The statement of changes
in fund new assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The

statement of cash flows provides information about how
the County finances and meets the cash flow needs of its
proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting determines
when transactions are recorded in the financial records
and reported on the financial statements. Government-
wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis accounting. Governmental Funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary
funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis
of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Tran-
sactions: Revenue resulting from exchange transactions,
in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available.
Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the County, available means
expected to be received within thirty days of fiscal year-
end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County
receives value without directly giving equal vatue in return,
include property taxes, grants, entitlement and donations.
On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
(See Note K). Revenue from grants, entitlement and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify
the year when the resources are required to be used or
the year when use is first permitted, matching
requirements, in which the County must provide local
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resources to be used for a specified purpose, and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the County on a reimbursement basis. On
modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be
recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are considered to be both measurable and
availabie at year-end: delinquent taxes, sales tax, grants,
interest, fees and charges for services.

Deferred Revenue: Deferred revenue arises when
assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal
claim as of December 31, 2001 but which were levied to
finance fiscal year 2002 operations, have been recorded
as deferred revenue. Grants and entitiements received
before the eligibility requirements are met are also
recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables
that will not be collected within the available period have
also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures: On the accrual basis of
accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred.The measurement focus of governmental fund
accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are
generally recognized in the accounting period in which the
related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds.

Budgetary Information: Under Ohio law, the Board of
County Commissioners must adopt an appropriations
budget by January 1st of a given year, or adopt a
temporary appropriation measure with final passage of a
permanent budget by April 1st, for all funds except Agency
Funds. Budgets are legally required for each
organizational unit by object (personal services, materials

and supplies, charges for services, and capital outlays and
equipment).

Each County department prepares a budget that is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners.
Modifications to the original budget within expenditure
objects can be made by the budget manager in the
Auditor’s Office. The County maintains budgetary control
within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures and encumbrances to exceed appropriations
at the object level (the legal level of control).
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at
year-end. Encumbered and unpaid appropriations
(reserved for encumbrances) are carried forward to the
next year as authority for expenditures.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major
difference between the budget basis and the GAAP basis
are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as
opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or paid in
cash (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final
appropriation, which include amendments to the original
appropriation, for each fund type by expenditure function
and revenue source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (non-GAAP Budgetary
Basis)- All Governmental Fund Types. The difference
between the accrual and cash basis statements was not
significant. The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year
and is included in the revised budget amounts shown in
the budget to actual comparisons.

Cash Equivalents: Investments of the cash
management pool, and investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the County are considered to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more
than three months are considered to be investments.
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Inventory of Materials and Supplies: Inventory is
valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.
inventory is recorded as an expenditure/expense when
consumed.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include property,
plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount
not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized, as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of proprietary capital assets is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

All reported capital assets are depreciated using the
straight line method over the following extimated useful
lives:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 20 years
Buildings, structures, improvements 20 - 40 years
Land improvements (water and sewer lines) 40 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the basic financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues:
Local Government fund revenues are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and avail-
able. Assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement
are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and
revenues when entitiement occurs. Federal and State
reimbursement type grants for the acquisition or
construction of capital assets are recorded as receivables
and contributed capital when the related expenses are
incurred. All other Federal and State reimbursement type
grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when
the related expenditures/expenses are incurred.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of
operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds. These transactions include charges for
services provided by an Internal Service fund to other
funds and operating transfers. Transfers represent
transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to
a fund through which those resources will be expended
and are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in
Governmental Fund Types and as transfers in Proprietary
funds.

The Internal Service funds record charges for services
to all County funds, departments and other governmental
units as operating revenue. Both Governmental and
Proprietary funds record these payments to the Internal
Service funds as operating expenditures/expenses.

Compensated Absences: The County records
accumulated unpaid vacation, overtime pay, and vested
sick time benefits as accrued wages and benefits payable
when earned by employees. The entire compensated
absences liability is reported on the governmental-wide
financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid
compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid
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using expendable available resources. These amounts
are recorded in the account “compensated absences
payable” in the fund from which the employees who have
accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The non-current
portion of the liability is not reported.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated
for mare than three years. Normally, all vacation time is
to be taken in the year available unless administrative
written approval for carryover is obtained. Unused
vacation is payable upon termination of employment.
Unused sick time may be accumulated until retirement.
Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are
paid one third of accumulated sick time upon retirement
with a maximum of 40 days. In general, employees are
eligible to be paid for unused compensatory time upon
termination of employment. All sick, vacation and
compensatory payments are made at employees’ current
wage rates.

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Stateline TPA, Inc., which provides claims
review and processing services. Each County fund is
charged for its proportionate share of the cost for covered
employees. Payment of these benefits is accounted for in
an internal service fund. The County records a liability for
incurred but unreported claims at year end based upon an
actuarial estimate provided by Stateline TPA, Inc. The
County also maintains a Self-Funded Workers’
Compensation fund and a Risk Retention fund to manage
liability insurance County-wide. There have been no
significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and
settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in
any of the last three years.

The County’s Self-funded Workers’ Compensation fund
(an internal service fund) accounts for and finances its
uninsured risks of loss for workers’ compensation claims.
Under this program, the Self-funded Workers'’
Compensation fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $300 thousand for each workers’
compensation claim. The County will pay premiums to the
State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation for
claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. In
addition, the fund will pay assessments to the Bureau of

Workers’ Compensation for administration and payment of
claims.

All funds of the County participate in the program and
make payments to the Self-funded Workers'
Compensation Fund based on their usage of the program
to cover actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay
current-year claims. The claims liability of $6.8 million
reported in the fund at December 31, 2001 is based on
the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standard
Board Statement 10, which requires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. This liability includes an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual
claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,
the process used in computing claims liability does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Liabilities for
losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determine-
able payments over a long period of time are reported at
their present value using an expected future investment
yield assumption of 6.00%.

Fund Balance Reservations and Designations: The
County reserves portions of fund balances that are legally
segregated for specific future uses or that do not
represent available, spendable resources and, therefore,
are not appropriable for expenditures. Designations of
fund balances are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, which are not
legally segregated. Undesignated fund balances are not
reserved nor designated and are appropriable in future
periods.

Prepaid Items: Payments made to vendors for services
that benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.A
current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the
time of purchase, and the expenditure is reported in the
year in which services are consumed.
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Note C - Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund
financial Statements

I. Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a
reconcilement between fund balance - total governmental
funds, and net assets - governmental activities as reported
in the government-wide statement of net assets. One
element of that reconcilement explains that “long-term
liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore not reported in the funds.” Details of this
difference are as foliows: (Amounts in 000's)

Bonds payable ................. $ 94,786
OWDA loans payable .. .......... 2,709
OPWC loans payable .. .......... 2,242
Capital leases payable . .......... 9,231

Landfill liability payabie . .......... 12,255
Compensated absences .......... 17,469
Net adjustment to reduce

fund balance - total govern-

mental funds to arrive at net

assets - governmental funds. . ... ..... .. $138.692

lIl. Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconcilement between net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities. One element of that
reconcilement explains that “Governmental funds re-
port capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of these assetsis
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
deprecation expenses.” The details of the difference are
as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Capitaloutlay ........ .... $48,311
Capital outiay in excess

of fixed asset additions. . . . . (6,680)
Depreciation expense . . .. .. {19.264)
Net adjustment ... .... .... $22.367

Another element of that reconcilement states that “The
issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.” The
details of this difference are as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Proceedsofloans ........... $ 746
Proceedsofbonds .. ......... 38,585
Proceeds of capital
lease transactions .. ......... 21
39,352
Principal retirement . ......... (10,846)
Net adjustment . ........... $28,506

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, Segregated
Cash, Investments and Deposits

To improve cash management, cash received by the
County is pooled in a central bank account which is
managed by the County Treasurer. Amounts for all funds
including proprietary funds, are maintained in this account
or are temporarily used to purchase short term
investments.  Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the County’s records. Each fund’s interest in the
pooled bank accounts is presented as cash and cash
equivalents, and investments on the balance sheet.
During 2001, investments were limited to STAR Ohio,
certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury Obligations and
Mortgage-backed Securities, and a revenue Bond
anticipation note. These investments are stated at fair
value. Money market investments that mature within one
year of acquisition and participating interest-earning
investment contracts that mature within one year of
acquisition are reported at amortized cost. The County’s
investments are covered by Custodian Safekeeping
Agreements with all securities dealers of County owned
purchased securities, whereby such securities are held for
the County by a third party custodian.
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Investment income is recorded in the General and Self-
funded Health funds. Investment income in the General
fund includes earnings on all pooled investments.
Investment income earned during 2001 totaled approxi-
mately $12.5 million.

The County uses separate bank accounts for resources
not deposited with the County Treasurer. These interest
bearing depository accounts are presented in the
Combined Balance Sheet as “Segregated Cash
Accounts.”

Legal Provisions: The County Treasurer is permitted
by Ohio law to deposit or invest County funds provided
that they mature or are redeemable within two years from
date of purchase. The Treasurer is permitted to invest or
deposit in the following classification of obligations:

1) Obligations of, or backed by the faith of, the United
States Government.

2) Obligations issued by any Federal agency.

3) Deposits in institutions eligible under Ohio law. All
deposits are coliateralized with eligible securities, as
described by state statutes, which are pledged to a collateral
pool for each individual financial institution, in amounts equal
to at least 110% of the carrying value of all public deposits
held by each institution.

4) Obligations of the State.

5) Repurchase agreements with institutions eligible under
Ohio law not to exceed 30 days, where the institution agrees
unconditionally to repurchase any of the securities listed in
(1) or (2).

6) Commercial paper issued by any corporation
incorporated under the laws of the United States or a state if
both of the following conditions apply. Two nationally
recognized rating agencies rank the commercial paper in
either of their two highest categories; the total amount

invested in commercial paper at any time does not exceed
five per cent of the county’s total average portfolio, as
determined and caiculated by the investing authority.

7) Bankers acceptances, if the following conditions are
met: The acceptances mature in two hundred seventy days
or fewer from the date of settlement; the acceptances are
eligible for purchase by the federal reserve system; the total
amount invested in bankers acceptances at any time does
not exceed ten per cent of the county’s total average
portfolio, as determined and calculated by the investing
authority.

8) The State Treasurer's Investment pool (STAROhio).
Investment authority for the State Treasurer’'s Investment
pool is established by the State Legislature and reflected in
the Ohio Revised Code.

9) No-load money market mutual funds consisting
exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or (2) of
this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions.

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB
Statement 3) has established credit risk categories for
deposits and investments.

« Category 1 - Investments that are insured or registered, or
securities held by the County or its agent in the County's name.

Deposits that are insured or collateralized with securities held by
the County or its agent in the County’s name.

« Category 2 - Investments that are uninsured and unregistered,
with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or
agent in the County’s name.

— B8 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Deposits that are collateralized with securities held by the Deposits that are uncollateralized or collateralized with securities

pledging ﬁnan,cial institution's trust department or agent butnot 4 by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department
in the County’s name. or agent but not in the County’s name.

« Category 3 - Investments that are uninsured or unregistered, o i
with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust Based on the above criteria, the County’s deposits and
department or agent but not in the County’s name. investments at December 31, 2001 are classified as foliows:

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment {Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled .. .......... ... .. ... $ 241,127
Segregated . ........ ... ... 8,151
Outstanding Checks . ......... 14,288
Other reconciling items (net) .. .. (76}

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments) . ............ $ 263,490
Deposits: At year-end the County Risk Category Bank Fair
had the following deposits 1 2 3 Balance Value

eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . ... ... .. $ 1,459 $ - $ - $ 1,459
Insured by the financial
institutions collateral pool . .. .. - - 11,055 11,055
Money Market Account .. ... ... - - 10,091 10,091
Certificates of deposit .. ... .. .. - 38.913 - 38,913
Total deposits . .. ........... 1,459 $ 38,913 $21,146 $ 61,518

investments: At year-end
the County had the following

investments:
U.S. Treasury Notes .. ........ $ 19,259 $ - $ - $ 19,259
U.S. Treasury Bills . .......... 922 - - 922
United States Agency Securities . 141,748 - - 141,748
Revenue Bond Anticipation Note . 6,000 - - 6,000
Investment in the state treasurer’s
Investment pool (1) . ......... - - - 34,043
Total investments . .......... $167.929 $ - $ - $201,972

" The County’s investment in the State Treasurer’s investment program is not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The fair value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Based on the above criteria, the Discretely Presented
Component Units of the County have deposits and
investments classified as follows:

e e ———

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment (Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:
Pooled..................... $8.035

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments) . ............ $8.035
Deposits and investments: At year- Risk Category Bank Fair
end the discretely presented 1 2 3 Balance Value

component units had the foliowing
deposits eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . .......... $279 $ - $ - $ 279
Insured by the financial

Institutions collateral pool .. ... .. - - 1,625 1,625
Certificates of deposit . .......... - 3.76 - 3.769
Total deposits . . .............. $279 3.769 1,625 $5,673
Investments: at year-end the
discretely presented component
units had the following
investments:
US Treasury Notes ............. $ 928 $ - $ - $ 928
United States Agency Securities . . . 494 - - 494
MoneyMarket ................. 204 - - 204
CorporateBonds . .............. 602 - - 602
Mortgage Backed Securities ... ... 134 - - 134
Total investments .. ........... 2,362 $ - $ - $2,362
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Note E - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Due to / Due from other funds balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2001 follow:

Payable Fund

Receivable Fund

Amounts in (000's)

General Central Supplies $ 10
Children Services Board Central Supplies 1
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Central Supplies 5
General Vehicle Maintenance 16
Children Services Board Vehicle Maintenance 1
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Vehicle Maintenance 15
General County Telephone 48
Children Services Board County Telephone 16
Job and Family Services County Telephone 23
Nonmajor Governmental Funds County Telephone 19
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds County Telephone 3
General Centralized Drug Testing 24

181

|

Due to / due from balances resulted from the routine lag
between the dates interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions

are recorded in accounting system, and payments
between funds are made.

Transfer To

Transfer Special Debt Capital  Water Supply
From Revenue  Service  Projects System Total
General ................... $14,518 $5,111 $12,826 $ - $32455
Children Services Board. . . . ... - 1,383 - - 1,383
Debt Service ............... - - - 47 47
Capital Projects . . ........... - 72 - - 72
Nonmajor governmental. . . .. .. - 420 - - 420

Total ................... $14.518 $6,986 $12.826 $47 $34377

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund
required by statute or budget to collect them to the fund
required by statute or budget to expend them 2) move
receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting

the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
payments become due, and 3) use unrestricted revenues
collected in the general fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds.
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Note F - Capital Assets

Construction-in-progress: The County has active Capital asset activity for the County for the year ended
construction projects as of December 31, 2001, of December 31, 2001, appears on following page:
$34,700 thousand for the new baseball stadium, $3,873

thousand for the 911 Communications Center, $1,272 Depreciation expense was charged to functions and
thousand for a training center, and $1,425 thousand in programs of the County as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

other miscellaneous projects. The estimated cost to
complete these projects is $13.8 million.

Governmental activities:

General government $ 3,667
Public Safety 746
Public Works 13,979
Health 603
Human Services 260
Recreation 83
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $19,338
Business-type activities:
Water $ 1,384
Wastewater Treatment 459
Sewer 1,412
Other 270
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $3,525

Activity for the Discretely presented component units for
the year ended December 31, 2001 as follows:

Beginning Changes Ending
Balance in Assets Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: (Amounts in 000's)
Land $ 877 $ 46 $ 923
Construction in progress 1.707 (1,544) 163
Total capital assets, not being deprecieated 2,584 (1,498) 1,086
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements 7,905 6,135 14,040
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3.853 430 4,283
Total, capital assets being depreciated 11,758 6,565 18,323
Total accumulated depreciation (3.826) _(799) _(4.625)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net _7.932 5,766 13,698
Component units capital assets, net 10,516 4,268 $14,784
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2001
Note F - Capital Assets (continued) Beginning
_Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land . ... $ 15,023
Construction inprogress . .......................... 36.053
Total capital assets, not being depreciated . . ... ..... ... 51.076
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, structures, and improvements . ... ......... . 125,076
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . .. .................. 27,002
Infrastructure . . ... ... ... 273,763
Total capital assets being depreciated . . ... .......... $425.841
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, structures and improvements ............. $ 54,773
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . .................. 19,275
Infrastructure . ...... ... ... .. .. 159,326
Total accumulated depreciation . .................... 233,374
Total capital assets being depreciated, net. . ... ....... 192,467
Governmental activities capital assets, net. ... ... .. .. $243 543
Business-type ativities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land ... . $ 402
Constructioninprogress .......................... 2,265
Total capital assets, not being depreciated ............ 2,667
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements . .......... ... 23,287
Land improvements .. ............. ... ... ... ... . ... 102,191
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . ................. . 12,963
Total capital assets being depreciated .. .............. 138,441
Less accumulated depreciated for:
Buildings, structures and improvements ... ......... .. $ 4,464
Land improvements .......... ....... ... ... ....... 36,775
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ... ....... ......... 12,211
Total accumulated depreciation ...................... 53,450
Total capital assets being depreciated, net ............ 84,991
Business-type activities capital assets, net ... ........ 87,658

Ending
Increase Decrease Balance
(Amounts in 000's)
$1,995 3 - $17,018
32,808 27,591 41,270
34,803 27.591 58,288
25,241 66 150,251
2,385 1,932 27,455
6.954 - 280,717
$34.580 1,998 $458.423
$3,213 $35 $57,951
2,735 1,833 20,177
13.390 - 172,716
19,338 1,868  250.844
15,242 130 207.579
$50.045 $27.721 265.867
$ - $ - $ 402
- 2,265 -
2.265 40
. - 23,287
7,921 - 110,112
143 __49 13,067
8.064 49 146,456
$ 600 $ - $ 5,064
2,708 - 39,483
217 24 12,404
3,525 __ 24 56951
_4,539 __25 89505
$4,539 2,290 89,907
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Note G - Notes Payable

All notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the
County and mature within one year. The notes are issued
in anticipation of long-term bonded financing, and the

County intends to refinance the notes until such bonds are
issued. All notes are in the capital projects fund. Notes
outstanding at December 31, 2001 follow: (Amounts in 000’s)

Beginning Ending

Note issue Rate Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Sewer and Waterlines. .... 4.50 $ 4,600 $ 4,600

Juvenile Facility. . ......... 4.56 14,860 14,860

Sewer and Waterlines. ... .. 3.00 $1613 $1,613
Sewer and Waterlines . .. .. 3.00 3,127 3,127
Baseball Stadium. . ... ..... 5.00 6,000 6,000
Total capital project notes . . $19.460 $10.740 $19,460 $10,740

Lucas County Recreation, Inc. and Toledo Mud Hens
Baseball Club, inc. have available a $500,000 line of credit
with an interest rate at 2% above the rate paid on
certificates of deposit (4.07% at October 31, 2001). There
were no outstanding borrowings at October 31, 2001.
Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates have a note
payable of $6 thousand with an interest rate of 9.7% due
in July of 2002, a note payable of $16 thousand with an
interest rate of 8.58% due in July 2005, and a note
payable of $28 thousand with an interest rate of 7.5% due
in June 2006. They also have various mortgages payable
totaling $3,267 thousand secured by real estate with
interest rates varying from 0% to 9.00%. Preferred
Properties, Inc. has available a $150,000 line of credit with
an interest rate at 1.5% over prime (6.75% at June 30,
2001). There were $115 thousand of outstanding
borrowings at June 30.

Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
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long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term
of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund
types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Long-term Bonds: All long-term debt issued for
governmental purposes of the County and special
assessment bonds are retired from the Debt Service Fund.
General Obligation bonds are secured by the County’s
ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax within
limitations of Ohio Law.

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for
governmental-type activities. The original amount of
general obligation bonds issued in prior years was $135
million. During the year, general obligation bonds totaling
$17 million were issued for a Juvenile Justice Center.

Self-supporting bonds are secured by an unvoted
property tax levy (special assessments);, however, each
appropriate bond indenture provides for principal and
interest to be paid from user charges.

The County issued $1.585 million of special assessment
debt in 2001 to provide funds for the construction of
various sewers and water lines. These bonds will be
repaid from amounts levied against the property owners
benefited by this construction. In the event property
owners default on their special assessment obligations,
the County is obligated to meet the debt service
requirements from County funds. At December 31, 2001,
the County had $383 thousand set aside for the retirement
of this debt. These funds are included in pooled cash and
investments.
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The County also issued $2,014 in Ohio Water
Development Authority Loans (OWDA) and Ohio Public
Works Commission (OPWC) loans in 2001.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code,
the County has the capacity to issue approximately $43.3
million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Lott Industries, Inc., a discretely presented component
unit of the County has bonds payable of $4.3 million that
mature on August 1, 2021, with a variable interest rate that
was 1.8% at December 31, 2001.

Nontax Revenue Bonds: In 2001, the County issued
$20 million of Nontax Revenue Bonds for a new baseball
stadium which the County owns and leases to the Toledo
Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. In 2001, the County also
issued $6 million of Nontax Revenue Notes for that project
which were prepaid and retired in April, 2002. The Nontax
Revenue Bonds do not represent or constitute a general
obligation debt or pledge of the faith or credit or taxing
power of the County. The Nontax Revenue Bonds are
special obligations of the County payable solely from the
Nontax Revenues. The County has covenanted to
appropriate in its annual appropriation measure for each
year, and to pay to the Trustee for the Nontax Revenue
Bonds by January 15, of such year, Nontax Revenues in
an amount sufficient to pay all bond service charges due
and payable on the Nontax Revenue Bonds during the
then current year.

Capital Lease Obligations: The County entered into a
lease agreement for a portion of the Government Center.
The lease is classified as a capital lease. The portion of
the Government Center leased by the County has been
recorded as land and building for $16.9 mition.

The County has entered into certain other agreements to
lease equipment and other assets. Such agreements are,
in substance, lease purchases (capital leases) and are
classified as capital lease obligations in the financial
statements.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

Long-term Debt: Long-term debt and other obligations of the County were as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
issued Rate through 2001 Additions Deductions 2001 One Year
Bonds
General Obligation Bonds-
Unvoted
1986 County public
assistance building........c..ceeecn... 8.000% 12/01/11 $ 2420 $ - $ 220 2,200 $ 220
1986 Convention center
fang....ooivevieccce 6.500% 12/01/112 4,045 - 335 3,710 335
1988 Family Court Center
construction & Courthouse
reNOVAtioN.......coeevveeverreenerriaenns 7.375% 08/01/07 6,125 - 875 5,250 875
1992 Regional jail.........ccoceeuneee. 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/07 2,290 - 275 2,015 290
1994 County building.................. 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/04 5,590 - 1,285 4,305 1,355
1995 Correctional fagilities......... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 2,040 - 90 1,950 95
1995 Court services building....... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,840 - 85 1,755 85
1996 Refunding........cccovvvrvvnrene 4.250%
5.375% 12/01/11 8,635 - 605 8,030 640
2001 Juvenite Justice Center....... 4.375%
5.000% 12/01/21 - 17,000 - 17,000 565
General Obligation Bonds-
voted
1996 Library improvement........... 4.300%
6.000% 12/01/05 10,405 - 2,550 7,855 2,675
1997 Library improvement........... 3.800%
5.300% 12/01/05 9,200 - 1,500 7,700 1,500
Total general obligation
bonds voted and unvoted....... 52,590 17,000 7,820 61,770 8,635
Special Assessment-
Govemmental Commitrent
(Self-Supporting)
1964 Sanitary sewer.................. 3.500% 12/01/04 $ 4 $ - $ 1 3 $ 1
1974- 5.125%
1977 Sanitary sewer................ 7.625% 11/0114 198 - 13 185 13
1981- 9.625%
1984 Sanitary sewer.............. 12.000% 12/01/04 161 - 48 113 48
1987 Sanitary sewer. 7.500% 12/01/07 105 - 15 90 15
1988 Sanitary sewer 7.500% 12/01/08 240 - 30 210 30
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Note H - Long-tem Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Years
issued

Bonds

Special Assessment-
Govemmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting) (continued)

1989 Sanitary sewer................
1990 Waterline.........ccccceueuenee
1992 Briarfield Parkway...........
1992 Sewers & waterlines.......

1992 Sewers & wateriines.......

1994 McCord

Road improvements...............
1994 Sewer & waterlines.........
1995 Sewers & waterlines.......
1996 Sewers & waterlines.......
1997 Sewers & watertines.......
1998 Sewers & waterlines.......
1999 Sewers & waterlines......
2000 Sewers & waterlines.......

2001 Sewers & wateriines.......

Total special assessment
bonds- governmental com-

mitment-(self-supporting).........

Non-Tax Revenue Bonds

2001 Basebalfl Stadium...........

Total bonds......cccrreeeemrrarnns

Ohio Water Development

Authority (OWDA) Loans

Special Assessment-

Govemmental Commitment
1983-

1984 Sewers........ccccceeeveerenne
1991 Sewers.....ccoocceriieneererenns

1994 water.........oocevveeeeeivrninnne

Enterprise Funds

1984 Sewer system.................
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Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Interest Date January 1, December 31, DueIn
Rate through 2001 Additions Deductions 2001 One Year
6.750%
7.000% 12/01/09 735 - 60 675 65
6.800%
6.850% 12/01/10 265 - 20 245 20
3.400%
6.200% 12/01/02 475 - 230 245 245
3.400%
6.650% 12/01/11 345 - 25 320 25
3.400%
6.650% 12/01/12 705 - 40 665 45
. 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/03 45 - 15 30 15
4.000%
6.050% 12/01/13 720 - 40 680 40
4.300%
6.800% 12/0114 555 - 30 525 30
4.250%
6.500% 12/01/16 2,200 - 75 2,125 60
4.900%
5.450% 12/01/17 1,115 - 50 1,065 50
4.250%
5.000% 12/01/18 2,310 - 90 2,220 90
4.000%
6.000% 12/01/19 525 - 15 510 20
5.200%
5.600% 12/01/20 1,560 - 35 1,525 50
4.100%
5.100% 12/01/21 - 1,585 - 1,585 45
12,263 1,585 832 13,016 907
6.375%
6.625% 12/01/21 - 20,000 - 20,000 480
$64,853 $38,585 $8,652 $94,786 $10,022
7.380%
7.670% 01/01/07 $ 1,426 $ - $ 196 $ 1,230 $ 106
6.160%
7.450% 07/01/11 1,216 - 80 1,136 42
6.720% 07/01/19 353 - 10 343 5
6.240% 01/01/07 2,695 - 330 2,365 175



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Note H - Long-temn Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Years
Issued

Enterprise Funds (continued)
1980-
1984 Wastewater treatment.......
1990 Water supply system.........
1991 Water supply system.........

1993 Water supply system..
1994 Sewer system.........
1994 Wastewater........................
1995 Water supply system........
1997 Water supply system........
1997 Sanitary Engineer......
2001 Water supply system........
Total OWDA loans................

Ohio Public Works
Commission Loans
Govermnmental Commitment
1993 Road improvements...
1994 Road improvements.. .
1995 Road improvements..........
1997 Road improvements..........
1999 Road improvements...
2000 Road improvements..
2001 Road improvements..........
Enterprise Funds............uuu.........
1994 Wastewater.........................
1994 Sewer system..
Total OPWC loans........cocereenneee

Other Obligations
Capital lease Obligations
Governmental..........ovvevreeeverneen
Internal Service

Accrued wages and benefits-
governmental.........c.cccearvnnnn..

Landfill obligation.........................

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due in
Rate through 2001 Additions Deductions 2001 One Year
6.250%

11.190% 07/01/13 2,348 - 252 2,096 133
7.760% 01/01/10 375 - 3t 344 16
7.450%

7.500% 07/01/11 649 - 45 604 24
6.160% 07/0118 943 - 31 912 16
6.720% 07/01/14 765 - 37 728 19
5.770% 07/01/15 9,521 - 437 9,084 225
6.350% 01/01/21 452 - 12 440 6
5.860% 07/01/17 1,702 - 164 1,538 31
5.860% 07/01/17 1,478 - 55 1,423 29
§.390% 01/01/21 - 1,268 36 1,232 19
$ 23923 $ 1,268 $1,716 $23,475 $846

0.000% 07/01/04 $ 95 - $ 27 $ 68 $ 14
0.000% 07/01/05 370 - 48 322 57
0.000% 07/01/06 209 - 38 171 19
0.000% 07/01/07 142 - 21 121 10
0.000% 07/0110 404 - 44 360 22
0.000% 07/01/11 587 363 107 843 49
0.000% 01/01/11 - 383 26 357 24
0.000% 01/01/16 226 - 13 213 7
0.000% 07/01/04 110 ~ 32 78 16
$ 2143 $ 746 $ 356 $ 2,533 $ 218

$ 10,807 $ 21 $ 1,597 $ 9,231 $ 2,185

26 - 7 19 7

$ 10,833 $ 21 $ 1,604 $ 925 $ 2192

$ 17,230 $ 3248 $ 3,009 $ 17,469 $ 3,000

$ 12,255 $ - $ - $ 12,255 $ 162
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Note H - Long-tem Debt and Other Obligations

A summary of the County's future long-term debt funding requirements
as of December 31, 2001 follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Bonds
Special Assessment-
General Obligation Government Commitment Non-Tax Revenue
Year of Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 8635 $ 3,388 $ 907 $ 743 $ 480 $ 1,322
8,920 2,928 679 675 515 1,291
8,225 2,437 699 636 550 1,258
6,955 1,990 668 596 590 1,223
3,435 1,588 793 559 635 1,186
2007-2011 13,575 5,239 4,050 2,111 3,915 5,261
2012-20186.. 6,255 2,357 3,665 1,013 5,525 3,805
2017-2021 5,770 893 1,555 194 7,790 1,662
Totah ..o, $ 61,770 $ 20,820 $ 13,016 $ 6,527 $ 20,000 $ 17,008
Loans
OWDA OPWC
Year of Principal Interest Principal Interest
Eunding
$ 846 $ 743 $ 218 $ -
1,660 1,402 380 -
1,656 1,292 380 -
1,658 1,184 321 -
1,660 1,077 309
8,277 3,841 853 -
6,618 1,319 69 -
1,100 130 3 -
TOotal ..o, $ 23,475 $ 10,988 $ 2,533 $ ~
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(continued)

Operating Leases: At December 31, 2001, the County
had 12 operating leases for office space and equipment.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expen-

ditures/expenses for the current period.

Government
activities
Year Capital Leases

2002 ... ... $2,185
2003 . ... 1,915
2004 ... ... 1,915
2005 ...l 1,915
2006 ... ...l 1,915
2007 -2008 ............ 2.938
Total minimum

lease payments ........ 12,783
Less: amount representing

interest . .............. 3,552
Present value of future

minimum lease

payments . ............. 9,231

Accrued Wages and Benefits: Unpaid vested hours at
December 31, 2001 representing this liability for all

governmental funds are as follows (Amounts in 000's):

Hours
Vacation ........ 463
Sick ........... 341
Compensation ... 41

The County’s future minimum fease payments under
lease obligations which have been capitalized and
operating leases as of December 31, 2001 are as
follows (Amounts in 000's):

Business type

activities Operating
Capital Leases Leases
$ 7 $ 41
8 16
7 7
- 3
- 1
$22 $ 68
3
$19

Deferred Compensation: County employees have the
option of participating in three state-wide deferred
compensation plans, created in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under these plans,
employees elect to have a portion of their pay de-
ferred until a future time. According to these plans, the
deferred compensation is not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

emergency. The deferred pay and any income earned
thereon is not subject to income tax until actually received
by the employee.

All amounts of compensation deferred under these
plans, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.

Conduit Debt Obligations: From time to time, the
County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds, Hospital
Facilities Bonds and Commercial Housing Revenue Bonds
to provide financial assistance to private, profit and non-
profit sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
industrial, hospital and commercial facilities deemed to be
in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the
bond issuance. Neither the County, the State nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

As of December 31, 2001 there were 155 series of
Industrial, Hospital and Commercial Housing Revenue
Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 14 series issued after January 1, 1995
was $274,908,154. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 141 series issued and with bonds
outstanding issued prior to January 1, 1995, could not be
determined; however, their original issue amounts total
$1,324,032,000.
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Note | - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plan

All eligible employees of the County, other than the
teachers for the Board of Mental Retardation, participate
in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio
(PERS), a statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. Teachers for the Board of
Mental Retardation participate in the State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio (STRS). STRS is also a
statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement system administered and controlled by the
State. County employees are not currently covered under
the Federal Social Security Act. The plan provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is
provided by State statute under Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code.

Law enforcement officers in the County Sheriff's depart-
ment contribute 10.1% of their annual compensation and
the County contributes 16.7% of the same base. The
County is required to contribute 22.05% of annual
compensation for employees of the County engineer
based upon a contract with their respective union. All
other eligible County employees contribute 8.5% of their
annual compensation with the County contributing
13.55% of the same amount. The County’s contribution
to PERS for the years ending December 31, 2001, 2000,
and 1999, were $19.2 million, $14.9 million, and $17.2
million respectively, equal to the requested contribution for
each year. All contributions to PERS were made within
the required due dates. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions.
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Note | - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension
Plans (continued)

STRS contribution rates are established by the State
Teachers Retirernent Board, upon recommendations of its
consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates
of 10% for members and 14% for employers. State
statute provides authority for employee and employer
contributions. Contribution requirements for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were 9.30%
of covered payroll for employees and 14% for employers.
The county’s contribution requirement to STRS for the
years ending December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $6
thousand, $70 thousand, and $148 thousand respectively,
equal to the required contribution for each year. All
contributions to STRS were made within the required due
dates.

Note J - Other Post-Retirement Obligations

in addition to pension benefits, the County provides
post-retirement healith care benefits to employees who
retire from the County under the PERS and STRS plan
discussed in Note |.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority
requiring public employees to fund post-retirement health
care through their contributions to PERS. PERS provides-
post-retirement health coverage to age and service
retirants with ten (10) or more years qualifying Ohio
service credit. Health care coverage for disability
recipients and to primary survivor recipients of such
retirants is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an
Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in
GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer’s
contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of
post retirement health care. The Ohio Revised Code
provides statutory authority for employer contributions.
For local government empioyers, the rate was 13.55% of
covered payroll and 16.70% for law enforcement
employers, with 4.3% used to fund healthcare for regular
employees and law enforcement employees.

The following assumptions and calculations were based
on PER’S latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2000.
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An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation
is used in determining the present value of OPEB. .The
differences between assumed and actual experience
(actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of unfunded
actuarial accrued liability.

All investments are carried at market value: For
actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market
approach is used. Under this approach, assets are
adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market
appreciation or depreciation on investment assets. - The
investment assumption rate for 2000 was 7.75%.

An annual increase of 4.75% annually, is the base
portion of the individual pay increase assumption. This
assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the
4.75% base increase, were assumed to range from .54%
to 5.1%. Health care costs were assumed to increase
4.75% annually.

OPEBs are advance-funded on an actuarially
determined basis. The number of active contributing
participants was 411,076. The rates stated above are the
actuarially determined contribution requirements for
PERS. The employer contributions to fund post-
employment benefits in 2001 was $5.9 million. The
portion of employer contributions used to fund post-
employments benefits can be determined by multiplying
actual employer contributions times .3173 for local
government employers and .2575 for law enforcement
employers.

The actuarial value of the Retirement System’s net
assets available for OPEB was $11,735.9 million at
December 31, 2000 (the latest information availabie). The
actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability were $14,364.6 million and $2,628.7
million, respectively,

STRS provides comprehensive health care benefits to
retirees and their dependents. Coverage includes
hospitalization, physician fees, prescription drugs and
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Note J - Other Post-Retirement Obligations
(continued)

reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. All benefit
recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for
health care coverage. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority allowing the STRS Board of Trustees to
provide heaith care coverage to all eligible employees.
The Board has the discretionary authority over how much,
if any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed
by the plan. All benefit recipients are required to pay a
portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly
premium. By Ohio faw, the cost of the coverage paid
from STRS funds shall be included in the employer
contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. The
Board allocates employer contributions equal to 4.5% of
covered payroll to the health care reserve fund within the
employer’s trust fund from which payments for health care
benefits are paid. The balance in the health care
reserve fund was $3,256 million at June 30, 2001 (the
latest information available). The 4.5% contribution for
Lucas County amounted to $2 thousand. The number of
participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of
July 1, 2001 was 102,132. The STRS plan’s net heaith
care expenses for the year ended June 30, 2001 as a
whole was $301 million. The health care reserve fund
allocation for the year ended June 30, 2001, will be 4.5%
of covered payroll.

The PERS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
277 EAST TOWN STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-4642

PHONE: (614) 466-2085

The STRS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

STATE TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM
275 EAST BROAD STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-371

PHONE: (614) 227-4090

Note K - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real,
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public utility and tangible personal (business) property.
The assessed value by property classification, upon which
taxes collected in 2001 were based is as follows:

Amounts in 000"

Realproperty . ................. $6,388,629
Public utility and tangible
personal property . ............. 1,300,310
Total assessed property value . . . $7.688.939

in 2001, real property taxes were levied on January 2,
2001, on the assessed values as of January 1, 2000, the
lien date. Assessed values are established by the County
Auditor at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation
of real property is required to be completed no less than
every six years, with a statistical update every third year.
The most recent revaluation was completed in 2001.

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on
equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible
property is assessed at 25% of true value (as defined). In
2001, each business was eligible to receive a $10
thousand exemption in assessed value which was
reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-
annually. In 2001, if paid annually, payment was due by
February 9th. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at
least 2 of amount billed) was due February 9th, with the
remainder due July 20th.

By July 2001, the final collection date, 95.1% of the total
current and delinquent property taxes billed in 2001 were
collected.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected
to all taxing districts when completing periodic settlements
of Real and Public Utility property taxes in February and
August and Tangible Personal Property taxes in June and
October for the first and second halves of the year,
respectively. The County accrues billed but uncollected
property taxes as receivables at their estimated net
realizable value.
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Note K - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues (continued)

The delinquent real property taxes outstanding and
available to the County within the first 60 days of 2002
were recorded as 2001 revenue, the remaining taxes
receivable are offset by a credit to deferred revenue.
Although total property taxes levied for the next fiscal year
are measurable, amounts to be received during the
available period are not subject to reasonable estimation
at December 31, 2001, and are not available for
appropriation and use until 2002. The deferred revenues
are offset by these property tax receivables and special
assessment receivables related to future capital service
projects.

In 1970, the County Commissioners, by resolution,
imposed a .5% tax on all retail sales, including motor
vehicles, made in the County. In 1982, the County
commissioners increased the sales tax by .5% to 1%. In

November, 1993, Lucas County voters approved
a permanent increase of .25% to 1.25% in the sales tax.
Vendor collections of the tax are paid to the State
Treasurer by the twenty-third day of the month following
collection. The State Tax Commissioner certifies to the
State Auditor the amount of the tax to be returned to the
County. The Tax Commissioner's certification must be
made within forty-five (45) days after the end of each
month. The State Auditor then has five (5) days in which
to draw the warrant payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the General
Fund. Amounts that have been collected by the State and
are to be received within 60 days of year end are accrued
as revenue, as measurable and available. Sales tax
revenue for 2001 amounted to $69.8 million.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all
taxing authorities in excess of 10.00 mills of
assessed value without a vote of the people.
Presently, the County levies 2.00 mills of the 10.00

mill limit for the General Fund. An additional 15.80
mills have been levied for voted millage. A
summary of voted millage follows:

Rate
Levied for
Current Year .
P Aux:gfi;ed Aggggﬁﬁ?;/ Commercial/ Co::l:ancat:on

-Hurpose Rate(a) Residential/(b) Industrial Year
Senior services . ........ A5 360917 406460 2004
Metroparks ............ 1.40 1.120661 1.264543 2008
Community mental heatth . 1.50 1.075894 1.260178 2005/2009
Board of mental
retardation ............ 4.50 2.168848 3.176684 continuous
Children services ....... 3.50 2.406417 3.089351 2001/2003
Port authority .......... .40 0.272544 355276 2004
Library ................ 1.70 1.416903 1.603245 2005/2007
Zoo improvements .. .... .95 .680659 .858083 2005
Zoo operating .......... .70 .501832 .632272 2002
911 Telephone system . . .70 501538 632272 2001
Total ................. 15.80 10.506213 13.278364

(a) Dollars per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

(b) Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property. The voted levies

are subject to change.
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Note L - Reconciliation of Budget Basis to GAAP Basis

A reconciliation for the major governmental funds at
December 31, 2001 from the budget basis to a GAAP
basis for excess of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other uses follows:
(Amounts in 000's).

Children Board of Job and
General Services Mental Family
Fund Board Retardation Services
BudgetBasis...................... (3$1,149) $103 ($9,842) $8,292
Net adjustments for
revenueaccruals .. ............... 1,543 161 81) 1
Net adjustments for
expenditure accruals . . ............ 2,027 1,660 (1,644) (843)
Net adjustment for
encumbrances . .................. 2,290 752 3,376 513
Net adjustments for other
Financing sources (uses) accruals . . . (1.669) (1,383) - 21
GAAPBasis .. ............... 3,042 1,293 $(8.191) 7,984

Note M - Amendments to Original Appropriations
Budget

Note N - Contingencies

Amendments beyond the object level must be approved
by the Board of County Commissioners. In 2001, the
original appropriation measure was increased for the
major funds by the Commissioners approximately as
follows: General Fund, $5.1 million; Job and Family
Services, $12.5 million; Debt Service, $1.5 million; Water
Supply, $30 thousand, Capital Projects, $24.5 million;
Sewer System, $461 thousand.

The County owns and operated a landfil} site located in
the western portion of the county. The site accepted sofid
waste from a number of private and industrial waste
haulers from 1954 to its closure in 1976. A solid waste
transfer station was operated from May, 1980 through
July, 1991. This site is now closed and the County no
longer operates a landfili. State and federal laws require
the County to cleanup, monitor and maintain the site.
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Note N - Contingencies (continued)

The County engaged a consuiltant to complete a study
regarding the cleanup, monitoring and maintenance of the
site. This study will be subject to review by the Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency. The study estimates
approximately $12.4 million will be needed to enact the plan,
of which approximately $162 thousand of the costs are to be
incurred in the next year. The current liability of $162
thousand is included in accounts payable in the Capital
Projects Fund with the remaining $12.3 million recorded as
a long-term liability due in more than one year. Actual cost
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Funding is expected to be obtained
from the issuance of General Obligation notes or bonds,
and from the State Infrastructure Bond Fund. Other
potential sources of revenue include indemnification by
generators for response costs incurred.

The County is a defendant in a number of other claims and
lawsuits which may be classified as routine litigation. In
addition, the County is a defendant in numerous other

claims and lawsuits ranging from tort liability to civil rights .

litigation. Management believes that any settlement related
to these claims and lawsuits will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the County.

The County participates in a number of Federal and State
assisted grant programs. The major programs are through:
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction; Community
Development Block Grant; Ohio Department of Human
Services; and Ohio Department of Mental Health. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by
grantors or their representatives. Audits of certain
programs have been completed under guidance of OMB
Circular A-133 and are included in a separately issued
report. There were no material instances of noncompliance
or findings noted within these reports.

Note O - Joint Venture

Lucas County has entered into a contractual agreement
with the City of Toledo, Defiance County, Fulton County,

Henry County, and Williams County to form the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio to operate a regional jail in
northwestern Ohio. Each entity is responsible for a portion
of the capital and operating budget as follows:

Cityof Toledo .......... 35.65%
LucasCounty .......... 31.84%
Defiance County ... ... .. 9.35%
Fulton County .......... 8.65%
Williams County ........ 8.65%
Henry County .......... 5.86%

100.00%

The Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio is an 18
member board made up of the president of the Board of
County Commissioners, Sheriff, presiding judge of the Court
of Common Pleas for each County, the Mayor, Chief of
Police, and presiding Municipal Court Judge for The City of
Toledo. Each participating entity has an equal degree of
control over budgeting and financing.

All debt for the construction of the jail was incurred by the
participating governmental agencies, and are not liabilities
of the Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio. Lucas
County has approximately $2.0 million of bonds outstanding
at year end for construction of the regional jail.

Complete financial statements of the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio can be obtained from its
administrative office as follows:

CORRECTIONS COMMISSION OF NORTHWEST OHIO
03151 ROAD 24.25 RT. 1, BOX 100-A
STRYKER, OHIO 43557
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Note P - Risk Management

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Stateline TPA, Inc., which provides
claims review and processing services. Each County fund
is charged for its proportionate share of the cost for
covered employees. Payment of these benefits is
accounted for in an internal service fund. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at
year end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Stateline TPA, Inc. The County also maintains a Self-
Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and a Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.

The claims liability of $6.8 million reported in the
internal service funds at December 31, 2001, is based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 which
requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not reported
claims, be reported (see table below). Changes in the
funds’ claims liability amounts for 2000 and 2001 were:

Note Q - Change in Method of Accounting

In 2001, the County implemented GASB Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-of State and Local Govern-
ments, which requires a change in format of the financial
statements. The new governmental reporting model has
the following sections: Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Governmental-wide financial Statements, and
Fund Financial Statements. Under the new reporting
model, the infrastructure has been added to the capital
assets and appropriately depreciated.

Due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34,
the prior year retained earnings and contributed capital for
the enterprise funds were restated to reflect the net
assets. Also, the prior year fund balance for the nonmajor
Governmental Funds was restated to reflect the allocation
of expendable trust funds related those funds as follows
(Amounts in 000's):

Change in
Provision
Balance at Current for Workers Balance
Beginning Year Compensation Claim atEnd
of Year Clams Claims Payments of Year
2000.. $6,817 $18,280 $(361) $18,483 $6,253
2001.  $6,253 $23,040 $381 $22,833 $6,841
Nonmajor Water
Governmental  Supply Wastewater Sewer
Funds System Treatment System
Fund Balance / Retained Earnings at
December 31, 2000, as previously reported. . . . .. $32,783 $ 3,492 $2,445 $(5,658)
Contributed Capital at
December31,2000 ........................ - 28,220 4,012 39,763
Expendable Trust Fund balance
at December 31,2000....................... 5.603 - - -
Net Assets at December 31, 2000 as restated. . .. . . $38.386 31,712 6.457 34,105
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Combining Financial
Statements and Schedules

The new Lucas County Juvenile Justice Center, which million state grant, and a $500 thousand federal grant to
includes an expanded juvenile detention facility, was assist with the construction costs. The County issued

dedicated in March, 2001. The County received a $6.5 $17 million in bonds to finance this project.



General Fund - The General Fund accounts for all

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
December 31, 2001

financial resources and expenditures except for those to be

accounted for in other funds or account groups.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
General Government-
Legislative and executive
Training & Development
Personal services........ccocceeceveenevcnnenn.n. $ 90 $ 87 $ 83 $ 4
Materials and supplies............ccocoeeeeeennn.. 20 22 22 0
Charges and services.........ocoeuevuvennrene.n. 8 6 4 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 5 5 0
Department of Personnel-
Personal Services.......occcvevvvvnvvviecveeennnn.. 536 546 540 6
Materials and supplies.........cccocvevnniiine. 7 10 8 2
Charges and services.........c.ccccoeevenenes.. 149 147 139 8
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 14 13 12 1
Commissioners-
Personal services.......coovvcvvvicveenciienen.., 440 433 421 12
Materials and supplies..........cccceeevenenen . 12 12 11 1
Charges and services...........covevevevivecnnn..n 94 92 83 9
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 3 6 5 1
Management and Budget-
Personal Services........cccoveeniceriveennenens. 419 399 368 31
Materials and supplies.........cccccevvevercnnn.n. 8 13 13 0
Charges and services.........cccvvveercieiinnnansnn 134 134 104 30
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 16 16 11 5
Auditor-
Personal ServiCes.....ccovvviveeeeiiiivnneninnn 1,359 1,341 1,307 34
Materials and supplies......cc.cccoeeevevrieeenn . 9 79 76 3
Charges and services..........ccccoceevveenienenn 274 277 269 8
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 22 24 23 1
Auditor Personal Property-
Personal services.......ccccceecveevenrcnenieenan.s 410 407 386 21
Materials and supplies........c.oocvevciireneenen 19 17 16 1
Charges and services.........cocceeeeveencennnen. 14 21 18 3
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 7 8 8 0]
Auditor Real Property Evaluation-
Personal services........cccc.cococvveeeecnnnee ... 751 751 736 15
Materials and supplies.........ccccccevveriannn.. 8 8 7 1
Charges and services..........ccocoeveereenecnn. 18 19 16 3
Capital outlay and equipment................... 8 3 3 0
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued :
Legislative and executive - continued
Treasurer-
Personal Services.........ccceceecevvnnreeennnn. 981 975 963 12
Materials and supplies.........cceeecvvveneen... 25 23 22 1
Charges and services........c..ccocuvvareenennen.. 212 213 206 7
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 13 13 1 2

Treasurer Personal Property-

Personal services.........cccccvvveceeeiinnnnnnenn, 207 200 188 12
Materials and supplies........c..ccoeuvenennenn, 2 0 0 0
Charges and services........ccceeververenane.... 10 12 11 1

Budget Commission-

Personal services.........cocoeevveevveninenn.s 85 85 84 1

Materials and supplies.........cccoevevnvennne.. 0 0 0 0

Charges and services...........ccoceeuvenvennnn... 2 2 1 1
Board of Revision-

"Personal services.......ccovvveeecvveeerenesinne 156 155 148 7
Materials and supplies...........c.ceccvvvne..n 9 15 15 0
Charges and services........cccoevververcnnnnn.n. 2 0 0
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 9 9 9 0

Audit-
Charges and services..........covveevvcrvnnrnn., 164 164 155 9
Planning Commission-
Charges and services..........coocvveeennean.. 585 585 585 0
Data Processing-
Personal services.........ccccoveervenvvriennen.., 1,821 1,780 1,739 41
Materials and supplies........c.cccceeveevuenn.. 30 30 21 9
Charges and services.........c.ccocvvvvervennnnen. 368 366 274 92
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 594 594 508 86



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Hotel Motel Administration-
Personal Services.........ccevevvvecvernrenrens.. 59 58 50 8
Materials and supplies...........ccccceuvennne.n. 2 2 0 2
Charges and services..........ccovvevuveenn.... 3 6 4 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 2 1 1
County Administrator-
Personal services.........coccceevvrvesivivenines 524 ’ 520 498 22
Materials and supplies........c.cccoeuvrunnee... 8 9 8 1
Charges and services.......c.oovvvvrverennnnn.. 97 105 71 34
Capital outlay and equipment................... 4 5 3 2
Department of Purchasing-
Personal services...........cccvvverervivncnnenn 351 351 350 1
Materials and supplies.......c.c.cocvveeuvennnee... 9 10 10 0
Charges and Services..........cocovvnvveirennn.n. 11 8 8 0
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 10 16 16 0
Board of Elections-
Personal services........coovcvvveverierierernnenn .. 1,124 1,184 1,164 20
Materials and supplies............cccouvennnen. 133 178 172 6
Charges and services..........cccovveevnene.. 692 584 580 4
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 13 24 23 1
Capital Maintenance-
Charges and services.......c.coeveveeneene.... 856 776 339 437
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 277 276 220 56
Facilities-
Personal services.....c.ccccvevevivenneennneenn, 3,745 3,600 3,327 273
Materials and supplies........c..ccveveeeriennnens 314 316 286 30
Charges and Services........c.occeveevvrerivnnens 7,558 7,907 7,433 474
Capital outlay and equipment................... 78 72 71 1
Recorder-
Personal services........ccccovvveeccveeeveeinnnnn. 689 704 694 10
Materials and supplies..........cccvvvvnnneee... 51 47 36 11
Charges and services........cccocvevevruernrenneen. 48 50 48 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 3 1 2



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Legislative and executive - continued
Dept. of Public Service-
Personal services.......cccccvvvverrieecinrenenene. 148 145 135 10
Materials and supplies.......cc.ccoeeeeunneen... 3 3 1 2
Charges and Services..........cccoeevevverveennenns 47 43 23 20
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 3 7 6 1
Centralized Records Center-
Personal Services........coccevveevcrevcneecnennen. 32 32 31 1
Materials and supplies......c....ccccovvveennnen. 1 1 1 0
Charges and services........cc..ceceeverccnnnnn. 2 2 1 1
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 7 7 6 1
Taxes-
Charges and services..........ccocccevvrvnnnnn. 247 277 258 19
Insurance-
Personal services.......cocecveerceieeeencrieanannn. 75 77 21 56
Charges and Services.........cccoovvrereivinennnn 951 950 813 137
Other-
Charges and ServiCes........ccccuvmrecvrnrieensnn 144 193 161 32
Total legislative and executive................ 28,537 28,667 26,504 2,163
Judicial
Prosecutor-
Personal services.......coovevivevrciiiiiccennnnn 4,843 4,845 4,799 46
Materials and supplies.........c.cceeevvnenen.n 55 62 56 6
Charges and services...........ccoveveerurenenen. 129 131 127 4
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 14 14 12 2
Court Rehabilitation & Correction-
Personal services......cccoocvvervveevinceeennannn. 436 428 426 2
Materials and supplies.......c.cccceevvervnennen. 10 10 7 3
Charges and services.........cccevevrevnnienenen 45 43 41 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 16 16 16 0
Court of Appeals-
Materials and supplies........c.ccccceevevrrurenee. 47 45 39 6
Charges and services.........cccoccevverevrennnnn 181 171 158 13
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 24 16 9 7
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
General Government - continued Budgeted Amounts Positive
Judicial - continued Original Final Actual (Negative)
Common Pleas Court-
Personal Services.......ccocoveeeevciieneeerenans 2,694 2,708 2,684 24
Materials and supplies.......ccccccvevereneenn.nn 104 101 89 12
Charges and services...........cccceeeuveneennenn. 388 315 255 60
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 43 45 43 2
Work Release-
Personal services.........cccocuveeeevvicnincnnn.. 1,661 1,628 1,618 10
Materials and supplies..........ccccvvievnne... 103 i1 110 1
Charges and services............ccceevvvvevevenens 267 263 256 7
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 51 58 58 0
Jury Commission-
Personal services........coccevvrivecciennnneene. 75 75 75 0
Materials and supplies........ccccocovvvenreennen, 21 21 15 6
Charges and services.........c.ccccevrinrenn.. 251 242 236 6
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 36 43 42 1
Adult Probation-
Personal services.........ocveeevieicciiinneeenenns 1,328 1,327 1,279 48
Materials and supplies.........ccccceeenrnnann.. 106 105 104 1
Charges and services.........cccoceeervrneneenn.. 35 31 26 5
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 2 0 0 0
Pretrial Presentence Division-
Personal services........ccccvrveievinneinnivnnnns 1,692 1,652 1,625 27
Materials and supplies........c.cccoevevnncnnnes 111 111 103 8
Charges and services..........cccoccoveeennnnn. 47 42 32 10
Capital outlay and equipment................... 14 14 14 0
Domestic Relations Court-
Personal services......cccccvvveveiiiiieeneeinnennn.n 2,223 2,231 2,224 7
Materials and supplies..........c.ccccevrunnnn... 19 22 20 2
Charges and services.........c.ccooeeeereeennen. 186 193 172 21
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 47 27 25 2
Juvenile Court-
Personal services.....cc.cocovvvveevenrecninnennn.. 6,594 6,613 6,572 41
Materials and supplies..........c.ccccceeveennnn. 260 288 263 25
Charges and services.........cc.cceeverrnneeen. 696 612 574 38
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 183 221 218 3
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Common Pleas Security-
Personal services.......c.ccvoevvivevvevenenennn.. 855 954 954 0
Materials and supplies...........ccoeuevuren..... 2 2 2 0
Charges and services...........cccccvvvunnen.... 43 40 33 7
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 9 11 10 1
Detention Home-
Personal services........cocovveeveecrovneevnnnn 2,653 2,640 2,565 75
Materials and supplies..........cocoourvenen... 302 321 310 11
Charges and services..........cccouvuvvureenn.... 387 369 365 4
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 44 53 38 15
Probate Court- v
Personal services......c.cocvvveeiveveveeneeennnnn, 1,688 1,793 1,792 1
Materials and supplies...........cccovvenee..... 32 34 33 1
Charges and services............co.oouvneuen... 120 101 95 6
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 33 33 33 0
Integrated Justice System-
Personal services.........ococovevirveeveeveennn.. 120 118 110 8
Materials and supplies..............coveereeen.... 2 2 1 1
Charges and Services.......c..cccovevcrerevnnn... 273 261 250 11
Capitat outlay and equipment.................... 43 56 47 9
Clerk of Courts-
Personal services.........ccevovevvenvvrenen.n. 1,680 1,673 1,613 60
Materials and supplies............ccccevuene.... 276 276 260 16
Charges and services.............oouuen...... 74 78 75 3
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 57 53 45 8
Community Supervision-
Personal services...........cccoevevercvennnnnn... 475 483 481 2
Materials and supplies............ccccovevn..... 2 2 2 0
Charges and services.............c.c.ccuennn..... 114 113 98 15
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 4 4 2 2
Public Defenders
Charges and services............coccovvucnne.n. 3,492 3,637 3,220 317
Municipal Courts-
Personal services........c.ooeovevvereeerennenn. 618 619 599 20
Charges and services...........co.ouu........ 106 102 92 10



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Law Library-
Personal services........c.ovcvveevnviiininiinnnnan. 122 118 90 28
Miscellaneous- ‘
Charges and Services..........couuemnrersieneees 205 232 216 16
Total judiCial...........cccovervevvuerirecrcrernsenn. 38,868 38,958 37,853 1,105
Public safety
Medical Corrections-
Personal Services. .....ccccevvcviiienirinninianinss 699 707 697 10
Materials and supplies........ccoccmvvniiiiinnnnn 3 4 3 1
Charges and Services.......c...oovveeerinnnenn. 348 668 666 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 10 11 11 0
Coroner-
Personal ServiCes....c.c.ceveereviariinrneereeseenees 1,000 976 904 $72
Materials and supplies.........c.ccovnvviviiinnnss 16 19 13 6
Charges and Services.........cocenunrenneneeneas 144 141 105 36
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 1 1 1 0
Sheriff - New Class-
Charges and Services..........cceveviennnecene 39 38 0 38
Sheriff - Corrections center-
Personal ServiCes....cccccvvvvvivereereeceeciinnenss 14,741 14,400 13,903 497
Materials and supplies.......cccccovvniiiiinnnss 231 240 232 8
Charges and ServiCes........ccuouevvrvrnieneenes 1,348 1,201 1,072 129
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 55 51 41 10
Sheriff - Law Enforcement-
Personal ServiCes.....ccccvovvimicrcinneiiicnncnns 3,632 4,273 4,260 13
Materials and supplies......c.ccocvnerierinnen. 142 168 147 21
Charges and ServiCes........ccccevvreiencnennns. 570 571 545 26
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 8 8 8 0
Sheriff - Administration
Personal ServiCes. ....cccccceviiiiinninninnenanen 1,952 1,794 1,619 175
Materials and supplies.........cccceeviviinnnnss 40 60 49 11
Charges and ServiCes...........oeeevercennes 365 413 376 37
Capital outlay and equipment.................. 9 12 12 0
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Public safety - continued
Sheriff - 911 Call Takers-
Personal Services.........ocuvvrvenereericenenes 622 624 582 42
Charges and services............ccccoeivunennnee. 19 19 6 13
Public Safety Contracts-
Personal Services.........uveeveeeeveevecnreneennns 1,112 846 830 16
Charges and services..........c.ccovcvveervunnen. 21 17 7 10
Public Safety Court Security-
Personal Services........cccevvvvvvvevennnnnnan. 3,198 4,012 3,845 167
Charges and services........cccccoeveerenvennenn. 74 67 38 29
Incarceration Facility-
Charges and services............ccocvvrveinnnen. 3,423 3,423 3,423 0
Other-
Charges and services...........ccooceerirvrnnnn.n 580 595 5985 0
Total public safety............ccveevveeveeann... 34,402 35,359 33,990 1,369
Public works
Engineer-
Personal Services.........cceccvvvnrienciiricnnen. 144 1650 148 2
Materials and supplies........cccceeoevevneeennn. 15 15 15 0
Charges and services............cocceineiinnn. 33 71 69 2
Capital outlay and equipment................. 5 5 5 0
Ditch Maintenance-
Personal services.........ccccocvvevereneiecennnn. 11 11 0] 11
Charges and services..........cccoeeniiniininn 102 106 30 76
Total public WOrKS.........ccccoveeevvevecenene... 310 358 267 91
Health
Maumee Valley Historical Society-
Charges and services..........ccecenviniieinnn. 30 30 30 $0
Registration of Vital Statistics-
Charges and services............c.ccoeininnnn. 9 9 0 9
Other Health-
Charges and services........c.ccovveeecrenncnneen 1,014 1,044 758 286
Total health.............cccocoveoiiionvvvenencnne 1,053 1,083 788 295
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Public safety - continued
Human services
Veterans Service Commission-
Personal services..........occeveneeeceniiennen. 360 357 346 11
Materials and supplies........cccceeereeriinnens. 9 10 8 2
Charges and services...........occeeevriinennenss 923 945 936 9
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 15 17 16 1
Veterans Service-
Charges and services.........cooveveenverinnnss 22 22 21 1
Miscellaneous
Charges and services..........ccccooveecveiincnan. 186 187 187 0
Total human services................eeeeeeen. 1,515 1,538 1,614 24
Conservation and recreation
Recreation-
Personal services......ccoccovvvrereiericcricinenee 695 696 673 23
Materials and supplies........ccccceeeieriiiennee 187 129 129 0
Charges and Services.........cocccmeenniinnen. 603 612 601 11
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 112 85 84 1
Agriculture-
Charges and Services..........ococcevinniniiinness 353 403 402 1
Miscellaneous-
Charges and services.........c.occvciviinianne 59 59 59 0
Total conservation and recreation........... 2,009 1,984 1,948 36
Miscellaneous
Contingencies-
Charges and Services...........cccecuvevieniiennnn. 1,059 134 0 134
Other-
Charges and services.........c.cccocvvivinnnnnns 1,133 844 810 34
Total miscellaneous...............cccceeeeeee.. 2,192 978 810 168
Total expenditures.............ccccccvccveecncn.. $108,886 $108,925 $103,674 $ 5,251
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
December 31, 2001

Special Revenue Funds- The Special Revenue funds
account for all specific financial resources (other than
expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted for specified expenditure purposes. The following
are the Special Revenue funds which Lucas County
operates:

Community Mental Health- To account for revenues
received from a county-wide property tax levy, federal and
state grants, and reimbursements used for various county
mental health programs.

Real Estate Assessment- To account for state mandated
county-wide real estate reappraisals.

Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax- To account for monies
received by the County for State gasoline tax and vehicle
registration fees used for county road and bridge improve-
ments programs.

Emergency Medical Services- To account for
emergency medical care financed by a county-wide sales
tax.

Emergency Telephone System- To account for a
county-wide property tax levy used for emergency
telephone assistance

Zoo Operating- To account for a county-wide property
tax levy. Monies are distributed directly to the Toledo
Zoological Society.

Child Support Enforcement Agency- To account for
revenues from: fees, fines, federal and state grants and
other similar revenue sources, and to account for legally
restricted expenditures used for the collection and protec-
tion of support payments made and owed to parents and
children.

Capital Projects Funds- Capital Projects funds account
for financial resources to be sued for the construction of
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those
finances by proprietary funds and ftrust funds). The
following are the Capital funds which Lucas County
operates:

Other Special Revenue Funds- To account for revenues
from: fees, taxes, fines, federal and state grants, licenses
and other similar revenue sources, and to account for
legally restricted expenditures for specified purposes.
Summarized information on the financial activity and
balances of the following Special Revenue funds inciude:

Dog and Kennel!

Hotel Lodging Tax

Community Development Grant
Emergency Management Agency
Marriage License

Coroner's Lab Fund

Law Enforcement Drug Fund
Delinquent Real Estate Tax and Assessment Collection Fund
Tax Instaliment Payment Plan
Emergency Planning Fund
Indigent Guardianship

Drug & Alcohol Services Board
Community MR/RES Services
Senior Services

Economic Development

Indigent Drivers

Probation Service

Motor Vehicle Enforcement and Education
Building Regulations

Certificate of Title Administration
Recorder Equipment

Juvenile Treatment Center
Juvenile Felony Care

Adult Probation Grant
Correctional Treatment Facility
Common Pleas Civil Mediation
Sheriff's Policing

Workforce Development

Family and Children First Council

When compared to combined Special Revenue fund
totals, other special revenue funds comprise less than 10%
in each of the following categories: assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenditures.

Permanent Zoo Improvements- To account for a
County-wide property tax levy used for renovation and
construction of buildings, facilities and infrastructure for the
Toledo Zoo.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Nonmajor Special

Community Real Motor Emergency
Mental . Estate Vehicle and Medical
Health Assessment Gas Tax Services
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents........ $ 2,135 § 600 §$ 1,098 § 360
Pooled investments................cooiin 5,847 1,643 3,008 987
Segregated cash accounts.....................
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectables)
TaXeS. ..o it 9,561
Accounts.......oooviiiiiiii 1 38
LOANS. . .ovvirireiiee e
Due from other governments.................. 1,485 5
Inventory: materials and supplies........... 514
Total assets........coooevveiiiiiieieinn, $ 19,028 § 2244 4683 $ 1,347
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.................... $ 1,372 § 247 8 848 § 206
Accrued wages and benefits................... 73 135 343 83
Duetootherfunds........c....cooiiiniiinnn, 1 2 9
Deposits.....coooviiiiiii
Deferredrevenue.............cocoeviinen. 9,312
Total liabilities.. ...l 10,758 384 1,191 298
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances..............coon 975 406 1,694 536
INVeNtory.......ooiiiviiii e 514
Loans receivable.................cc.oeenn.
Other purposes........c.ccoeevieiinenne.
Unreserved undesignated................. 7,285 1,454 1,264 518
Total fund balances...................... 8,270 1,860 3,472 1,049

Total liabilities and fund balances.... $ 19,028 § 2244 % 4663 $ 1,347
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Revenue Funds Capital Project

Other Total
Emergency Child Support Special Permanent Nonmajor

Telephone Zoo Enforcement Revenue Zoo Governmental
System Operating Agency Funds Total Improvements Funds

$ 1,148 & 9 8 1,085 § 5788 $ 12,203 § 12§ 12,215

3,145 24 2,917 15,850 33,421 32 33,453

63 63 63

5,616 4,537 3,105 22,819 6,155 28,974

82 195 3186 316

352 352 352

1,314 2,804 2,804

514 514

3 9908 § 4570 & 4,127  $ 26,604 § 72492 § 6,199 § 78,691

$ 215§ - § 56 ¢ 2,452 § 539 § - § 5,385

28 563 862 2,087 2,087

1 14 12 398 39

63 63 63

5,463 4,417 3,023 22,215 5,993 28,208

5,707 4,417 695 6,349 29,799 5,893 35,792

2,158 253 5,190 11,212 $11,212

514 514

352 352 352

101 101 101

2,044 153 3,179 14,612 30,514 206 30,720

4,202 153 3,432 20,255 42,693 206 42,899

$ 9,909 § 4570 § 4,127 § 26,604 $ 72492 % 6,198 § 78,691
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Community Real Motor Emergency Emergency
Mental Estate Vehicle and Medical Telephone
Health Assessment Gas Tax Services System
REVENUES
A, o eeneie et e, $ 9,127 $ - 8 - 8 - 8 4,360
Charges for services....................coo 3,492 167
Fines and forfeits........................... 36
Inergovernmental revenue ..................... 29,374 13,060
Miscellaneous revenue........................... 701 41 230 18 2
Total revenues.........o.ocvuvevveeneinnnennnnn. 39,202 3,533 13,493 18 4,362
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive................... 3,441
Judicial.......oooooo
Public safety................ccoovieiini 8,425 7,420
Public works..........cooooviiii 14,457
Health............. 31,807
Human services..................oocoeeeiinn..
Conservation and recreation.................
Miscellaneous............................
Capital outlay........c.oevveveneiiieiiin e,
Total expenditures..................ooovnee. 31,807 3,441 14,457 8,425 7,420
Excess of revenues over (under)
expendifures............coeeiiiiiiniiinnl, 7,395 92 (964) (8,407) (3,058)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
OPWC loan proceeds.............. 748
Operating transfersin............................ 8,500
Operating transfersout.......................... (277) (120)
Total other financing sources (uses)..... - - 469 8,500 (120)
Net change in fund balances............... 7,395 92 (495) 93 (3,178)
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 875 1,768 3,967 956 7,380
Fund balance at end of year.................... $ 8270 $ 1860 § 3472 $ 1,049 §$ 4,202
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Capital Projects

Other Total
Child Support Special Permanent Nonmajor
Zoo Enforcement Revenue Zoo Governmental
Operating Agency Funds Total Improvements Funds
$ 4,328 % - 8 6,355 $ 24,170 §$ 5871 § 30,041
1,835 6,544 12,038 12,038
90 126 126
9,234 25,543 77,211 77,211
1 103 10,779 11,875 1 11,876
4,329 11,172 49,311 125,420 5,872 131,292
6,987 10,428 10,428
11,319 3,267 14,586 14,586
8,783 24,628 24,628
- 14,457 14,457
13,929 45,736 45,736
3,754 3,754 3,754
4,262 1,516 5,778 5,778
13,132 13,132 13,132
0 5,783 5,783
4,262 11,319 51,368 132,499 5,783 138,282
67 (147) (2,057) (7,079) 89 (6,990)
746 746
2,677 11,177 11,177
(23) (420) (420)
- - 2,654 11,503 - 11,503
67 (147) 597 4,424 89 4,513
86 3,579 19,658 38,269 117 38,386
$ 153 § 3432 § 20,255 $ 42693 § 206  § 42,899
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES.1ut ceeerneiieiieenaeiren e eeeanee e ee e e et e et aaanns $ 8,674 $ 9,174 $ 9,052 $ (122)
Intergovernmental revenue ... 26,138 29,638 29,798 160
Miscellaneous revenue  ..........cooeevvviiiiiniiniinennen. 157 657 701 44
TOtal reVENUE  ...oocoveeveiieeeee e 34,969 39,469 39,551 82
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal services  .......ooiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,031 990 869 121
Materials and suppiies  ...c.coovviniiiniinii 26 31 25 6
Charges and services  ....ccccceevieiiiiiiiiiniiiinnnnnns 37,384 37,418 36,500 918
Capital outlay and equipment  ............ooeeeneene. 58 59 35 24
Total expenditures — .......ccoceeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienn, 38,499 38,498 37,429 1,069
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (3,530) 971 2,122 1,151
Fund balance at beginning of year..............cccc...co... (3,953) (3,953) (3,953) -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 7,482 7,482 7,482 -
Fund balance atend of year.............ccoovvvvevvenennnn, $ (1) $ 4,500 $ 5,651 $ 1,151
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes  ....ccvcovrriiriiieinineniiennennnnen $ 3,800 $ 3,800 3 3,491 $ (309)
Miscellaneous revenue  ...........covvviiiiciiineicennen. 50 50 41 (9)
Total revenue  ....cocvvveeiiiiiiiiice e, 3,850 3,850 3,532 (318)
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services  ....cocoveeiiiiniiiiiiinir e, 2,341 2,275 2,162 113
Materials and supplies  ........c.ccoiiiiiiiiiiiniie 61 56 41 15
Charges and Services  .....cooiciiviiiiiiiinecninennienns 948 1,069 919 150
Capital outlay and equipment ...l 317 604 538 66
Total expenditures — .......cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiees 3,667 4,004 3,660 344
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ 183 (154) (128) 26
Fund balance at beginning of year.............c.....cc.o..... 1,611 1,611 1,611 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.. 324 324 324 -
Fund balance atend of year.........cccceeiiiiiiinninnnn $ 2,118 $ 1,781 $ 1,807 $ 26
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MOTOR VEHICLE & GAS TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts , Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SErVICES .......c.vvverriiriuieiirriireiiaeenanns 3 75 $ 75 $ 167 $ 92
Fines and forfeits  ...cocoiiiviiiii s 55 55 66 11
intergovernmental revenue...............coon 15,246 15,246 14,532 (714)
Miscelianeous revenue  ........cociiiiiiiiiiieniennns 115 115 192 77
Total revenue  .....ccooociiiiiiiii e 15,491 15,491 14,957 (534)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works
Personal ServiCes  .iivriii e 5613 5,452 5,319 133
Materials and supplies ..o, 859 1,186 1,048 138
Charges and services  ......cooceiiiiiiiviiininnennnnnns 11,638 11,465 9,744 1,721
Capital outlay and equipment  ................oeel. 419 426 423 3
Total expenditures — ..c..ciiiieeiiiiiiiin s 18,529 18,529 16,534 1,995
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (3,038) (3,038) (1,577) 1,461
Fund balance at beginningof year................cccoceo... 1,772 1,772 1,772 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 1,711 1,711 1,711 -
Fund batance atend of year...................ccevvinnnen. $ 445 $ 445 $ 1,906 $ 1,461




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:

Miscellaneous revenue ...........cccoceeeiniiciiiiiinnnnnn, $ 74 $ 74 $ 18 $ (56)

Total revenue  ........cccceeiiiiiiciiiinii e, 74— 74 18 (56)

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety
Personal services  .......ooceviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 1,333 1,311 1,199 112
Materials and supplies ..........cccoevvviveiiiiinnnnnn, 510 590 468 122
Charges and Services .......ccccvvvvvreinenirerenneinnnnnns 7,358 7,354 7,208 146
Capital outlay and equipment ...........cccocoeeenneene. 364 310 139 171
Total expenditures — ......ccccceveuivenieiinieinnieniinnn, 9,665 9,565 9,014 551
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (9,491) (9,491) (8,996) 495

Other financing sources:

Operating transfersin - ........ooocovviviivinin e, 8,592 8,593 8,500 (93)
Total other financing sources ..............coeeeuvuun... 8,592 8,593 8,500 (93)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures .................cc.c.ceeeennnn. (899) (898) (496) 402

Fund balance at beginning of year........................... 423 423 423 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated..................... 688 688 688 -

Fund balance atend of year..............ccoeevvvnnennnnn.n. $ 212 $ 213 $ 615 $ 402
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

TAXES.cceuenniieniiiireieineenmrireaie st erneeneeen e reeraaaeens $ 4,235 $ 4,235 $ 4,290 $ 55

Miscellaneous revenue .............occevvrvenvvnenrenennnnen. 50 50 2 (48)
TOtal reVENUE  .....eeeviiiin i ceererereinrneevrecenenans 4,285 4,285 4,292 7

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety
Personal services  ......coiiiiiiiiciiiiiir e, 723 723 413 310
Materials and supplies  ....coooiiiiiiiiiiien, 16 31 27 4
Charges and Services  ....ccccceerreirineierieerennnnn. 7,106 10,868 9,778 1,190
Capital outlay and equipment  ............cc.oeeninnl. 177 177 168 9
Total expenditures .........ccceeeiveeiieniiiieeneninnnnn, 8,022 11,899 10,386 1,513
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures......... (3,737) (7,614) (6,094) 1,520

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in . .....coooveiiiiciiiiiniinneceinnnn. - - - -
Total other financing SOUrCes ..........ccccvvvvvunneenn. - - - -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures .........cccccceueeuriniennennns (3,737) (7,614) (6,094) 1,520

Fund balance at beginning of year.............cccceeeen. 5,292 5,292 5,292 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 2,823 2,823 2,823 -

Fund balance atend of year..........c.o.ocoeeniiivnneens, $ 4,378 $ 501 $ 2,021 $ 1,520




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
Z0OO0 OPERATING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES. e iemrenreninrrnrernererorieenasrunrerosanassrnonsnaseenseans $ 4,305 $ 4,255 $ 4,292 $ 37
Miscellaneous revenue .............ccciiiiiiiiiiiiinnenns - 50 1 (49)
TOtal reVenUE  ..cevviiiiiiiiiici et 4,305~ 4,305 4,293 (12)
Expenditures:
Current:
Conservation and recreation
Charges and Services .........coceuvviiiiiiinvennninennne. 4,290 4,305 4,262 43
Total expenditures ............cocvveiiiiciiiiineicinnann, 4,290 4,305 4,262 43
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ 15 - 31 31
Fund balance at beginning of year.............cccuveeeenee. 2 2 2 -
Fund balance atend of year..........cocecvevvennverunneeene. $ 17 $ 2 $ 33 $ 31
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services  oooveveeeveeneneseeeeee, $ 1,417 $ 1,417 $ 1,757 $ 340
Intergovernmental revenue  ...........coeoinevnennnnn. 9,824 9,824 9,234 (590)
Miscellaneous revenue  ....oooooovvecviieeeeeeeennin, 49 49 99 50
Total revenue  ..........ccccceeeeeieeeeeeeeeee e, 11,290~ 11,280 11,090 (200)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal SEIVICES  ......ovvveeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 9,205 9,117 8,917 200
Materials and supplies  ......occeveeeenneeeeneeeneni 374 374 231 143
Charges and Services . ......ccoovevueevvomoneoiiiee, 3,518 3,605 2,236 1,369
Capital outlay and equipment ...........cccccoevveiiiiinl 131 131 103 28
Total expenditures  .......cccceeeeeeveneiiiiarannnnn. 13,228 13,227 11,487 1,740
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (1,938) (1,937) (397) 1,540
Fund balance at beginning of year................o.oo....... 3,567 3,567 3,567 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 511 511 511
Fund balance atend of year..............occovvvuvnvveninnnn, $ 2,140 $ 2,141 $ 3,681 $ 1,540
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DOG AND KENNEL - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Charges for services  ......ccoevvvveeerivrencerivennrnnens $ 926 $ 926 $ 1,018 $ 92

Fines and forfeits  ....ooovuvimvvceeiii i 54 54 51 (3)

Miscellaneous revenue  ........cocceeeeeviirincriinnnnn, 136 137 120 (17)
TOtal reVeNUE  o.cceveeeeeeeeie e 1,116 1,117 1,189 72

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Health

Personal ServiCes ....ooceceviveeeiiiiniiniieieeeee e, 1,137 1,108 1,048 60

Materials and supplies  .....ccceeviiiiiiiiiiiiiriiniinn, 108 117 86 31

Charges and Services  ......cceeeviveriviieeeeennnneennne, 199 220 197 23

Capital outlay and equipment ............ccoeeeeuiinnne.e. 35 35 34 1
Tolal expenditures — ........ccecvveviviiiiinninneneiinnnn, 1,480 1,480 1,365 115
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (364) (363) (176) 187

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in - ........coooeeeeiivivnnneienerivnnnnn, 301 301 301 -
Total other financing sources .............ccoccvveun.... 301 301 301 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures — .................ccoeevuunn. (63) (62) 125 187

Fund balance at beginning of year.......................... 65 65 65 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 67 67 67 -

Fund balance atend of year...........cc.cceoeeieiiniinn.n $ 69 $ 70 $ 257 $ 187
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
HOTEL LODGING TAX - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
' Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES. e eeereueeeinereneieniiaaintenrasereetieieernssaeerteennransens 4,100 4,100 3,398 (702)
Total revVenUe  ....oceeeniiiiieeiiie e 4,100 4,100 3,398 (702)
Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous
Charges and ServiCes ......ccoccevvvnviioeinieeneinnennns 4,100 4,100 3,730 370
Tolal expenditures  .....ccovvvmeniiiieiiiriiiiieiienennn, 4,100 4,100 3,730 370
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ - - (332) (332)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... - - - -
Fund balance at end of year........c.c...cceeeveeivnivennnnn. $ - $ - $ (332) $ (332
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue  ...........cceoiiiieininnnn, $ 14,000 $ 14,000 $ 4,557 (9,443)
Total revenue ........c.ccc.ceiviviieiiiiiiiiii e, 14,000 14,000 4,557 (9,443)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal services .........c..ccoiviiiiiniiii i, 106 323 138 185
Materials and supplies  .......ccocoviiiiiiiiin 53 52 1 51
Charges and services  .........occovvvvviveenneenennnnnn. 775 2,945 1,501 1,444
Capital outlay and equipment...............o.coeveneenn... 72 174 77 97
Total legislative & executive.......................co........ 1,006 3,494 1,717 1,777
Judicial
Personal services  ....ooocoiiiiiiiin 482 1,123 656 467
Materials and supplies ....c..ccoovviiiiininniin, 1 23 16 7
Charges and ServiCeS ......c..covevvivericinninnivinniones 339 1,983 1,593 390
Capital outlay and equipment ..................ccc..eel 31 586 570 16
Total judicial — .......c.ccoovviviiiiiiiiiiei 853 3,715 2,835 880
Public safety
Personal services  ....occoiieiiiiiieiie i 109 177 107 70
Materials and supplies  .....cccoceiiiiiiiiiie i 1 1 1 -
Charges and services ..............ccoeeiiiiiiiiinneinnnn, 211 578 545 33
Capital outlay and equipment  ...........c..cocoeennnnn. 35 49 45 4
Total public safety — ........cccccccooviiiiiiiiieiiiiiie 356 805 698 107
Health
Charges and services  ...........ooceeviiieiiiicennninn. 3 19 12 7
Total health ..o, 3 19 12 7
Conservation & recreation
Charges and ServiCes ...........covevvvirneriieineriarnnnnn 707 2,722 1,628 1,094
Total conservation & recreation ...................c........ 707 2,722 1,628 1,094
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) :
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Miscellaneous
Charges and ServiCes ..........ccccoviverveeinveriiierrninneenns $ 59 $ 128 3 66 (62)
Total miscellaneous ..............cccccoveiviiiiiiiinininininnn 59 128 66 (62)
Total expenditures  .......cccccovviiiiiiiiiiiininiein 2,984 10,883 6,956 3,927
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........... 11,016 3,117 (2,399) (5,516)
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers in - .......ceeevvveinn i $ - $ - $ 300 $ 300
Operating transfers out .........cooceeiiiiiiiii e, (4,345) (4,345) - 4,345
Total other financing sources (US€S) ............cooceunne... (4,345) (4,345) 300 4,645
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
finanCiNg USeS ... 6,671 (1,228) (2,099) (871)
Fund balance at beginning of year...................ccoeenn 1,589 1,589 1,589
Prior year encumbrances appropriated ...................... 988 988 988 -
Fund balance atend of year ............ccoeccevirnniernnnnnnnn. $ 9,248 $ 1,349 $ 478 $ (871)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue .............cooociiiieiiannn. $ 243 $ 243 $ 208 $ (35)
Miscelianeous revenue ..........cooceiiviviiiiiniin, - - 22 22
Total reVeNUE  ...c.ceoveiiiii e 243 243 230 (13)
Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Personal ServiCes .......c.cocvcevvveirivinieiinininnnns 264 263 255 8
Materials and supplies .........ccoeiieiiiiiiiiniinnn, 8 8 6 2
Charges and Services .......c.ccceevveivnnvivnnennnnn., 98 90 72 18
Capital outlay and equipment..................c..eo.... 11 19 19 -

Total expenditures...........cccoccveeivureaninnennnnn... 381 380 352 28
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (138) (137) (122) 15
Other financing sources:

Operating transfersin = ..........cccooeiiirninnni.. 151 151 155 (4)
Total other financing SOUrCES............cc.c..vvuven... 151 151 155 4)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures  .........cooiiiiiiiniinn, 13 13 33 20

Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 89 89 89

Prior year encumbrances appropriated............... 23 23 23 -

Fund balance at end of year ...........ccoceevveeinnnn.nn. $ 125 $ 125 $ 145 $ 20
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MARRIAGE LICENSE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services .....occcviviieeerviiiiiineeneennnes 3 200 $ 200 $ 174 $ (26)
Total revenue  ......c...ceveeeiiiiiciiniiiieeiieiniieei, 200 200 174 (26)
Expenditures:
Current;
Health
Charges and ServiCes .......c.ccevvvrnreinerenneennnnns 260 260 183 77
Total expenditures. .......c..cccuvviiiiiinivunecinnninnn.n, 260 260 183 77
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (60) (60) 9) 51
Fund balance at beginning of year.........cc............. 103 103 103 -
Fund balance atend of year ...............oovvviinnnnen $ 43 $ 43 $ 94 $ 51
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CORONER'S LAB FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SErVIiCeS  .......ccceeeiveriinrriiinreennneennns $ 276 $ 276 $ 296 $ 20
TOtal reVeNUE  ...cveeeeeeeeeiieicree e 276 276 296 20
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Materials and supplies  ....ccoeoveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiann, 85 85 56 29
Charges and Services  .......ccovveviviiinnvinienneennnn 140 150 139 11
Capital outlay and equipment..........ccceeviveenennnen, 94 84 58 26
Total expenditures............ccoviviiiivenneriieennennnen 319 319 253 66
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (43) (43) 43 86
Fund balance at beginning of year...........ccccccuvee. 522 522 522
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 43 43 43 -
Fund balance atend of year ............cooocuvevinnnnnnn. $ 522 $ 522 $ 608 $ 86
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

LAW ENFORCEMENT DRUG FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits........c..cccvvvivvnnineniinnieiiiei e, $ 25 $ 25 $ $ (25)
Total revenue ..........coeeeiiiiiiiiiii e, 25 25 (25)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Charges and Services  ........covcceeeivenevennerinnnnnn. 25 25 25
Total expenditures............ccceevenvieniiiiiniinnnnn, 25 25 25
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 18 18 18
Fund balance at end of year.........ccccooevvvevvvnnnnnn... $ 18 3 18 $ 18 $
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAX AND ASSESSMENT
COLLECTION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
: Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Charges for services  .....ooiiveviiiivinieeeeeeeseinnnn, $ 800 $ 800 $ 1,309 $ 509
Miscellaneous revenue................ceeevvivieviniiinnennn, 850 850 466 (384)
TOtAl FEVENUE oo 1,650 1,650 1,775 125

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal SemviCes .....oovvvviieniiiii e, 1,061 1,061 926 135
Charges and SErViCeS.....c...c.uvevieinnneiiineineaennn, 62 637 490 147
Materials and supplies..........coocovviiivnvenennnen, 635 60 32 28
Capital outlay and equipment.............ccccovreeenn... 30 30 20 10
Total expenditures............ccccccovvvveeeeivinenenninnnn, 1,788 1,788 1,468 320
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (138) (138) 307 445
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 410 410 410
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 34 34 34
Fund balance at end of year............coooeeevuereeennn., $ 306 $ 306 $ 751 $ 445
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TAX INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PLAN - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SErVICES .......cccveviirinieernerenineennnennn. $ 55 3 55 $ 52 $ (3)
Total FEVENUE .o 55 55 52 3)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies  ...cooeiiiiiiiiiii 7 6 1 5
Charges and ServiCes  .......ooecevervievcceninnennenns 19 21 14 7
Capital outlay and equipment .............c.cceeeeit 12 11 11
Total expenditures.............cccoeviiviiininiiinnennne. 38 38 26 12
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 17 17 26 9
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 174 174 174
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 5 5 5 -
Fund balance atend of year.........c..covevvveeneinnaanns $ 196 $ 196 $ 205 $ 9
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AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

EMERGENCY PLANNING FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Revenues:

Charges for services .........
Miscellaneous revenue........

Total revenue ................

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Materials and supplies ..
Charges and services ..

Capital outlay and equipment
Total expenditures...........
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of year

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ $ 37 $ 28 $ (9)
20 18 (2)
57 46 (1)
1 - 1
59 43 16
25 19 6
85 62 23
(28) (16) 12
51 51 51
$ 51 $ 23 $ 35 $ 12
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actuai Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue............cceeeeieviiiiininn e, 3 85 $ 85 $ 52 $ (33
Total revenue ..........cccccccocevvviiiiiiiiii, 85 85 52 (33)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Charges and services............c..coeeeivveiieneennnn..., 85 85 67 18
Total expenditures..................cooiiiiieiniiiiiennn., 85 85 67 18
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures...... - - (15) (15)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 62 62 62
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 1 1 1 -
Fund balance atend of year............................... $ 63 $ 63 $ 48 3 (15)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES BOARD - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues: )
Intergovernmental revenue .......ccovevivviviniiciiiniannns $ 7,215 $ 8,100 $ 9,145 $ 1,045
TOtAl FOVENUE et 7,215 8,100 9,145 1,045
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal ServiCes .......c.coveeviiiniiniiiiiiineinninnn, 430 414 412 2
Materials and supplies 15 8 8 -
Charges and services 7,466 9,051 9,020 31
Capital outlay and equipment  ............coeeenni. 7 10 10 -
Total expenaitures. ...........cccvvveeeeiieiiiiiiniinninn 7,918 9,483 9,450 33
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (703) (1,383) (305) 1,078
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 680 680 680
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 703 703 703 -
Fund balance atend of year...............ocovvinenn.n. $ 680 $ - $ 1,078 $ 1,078
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MR/RES SERVICES - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
: Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue ..........c.coceevevenienneinnnne. $ 4,915 $ 4,915 $ 3,134 $ (1,781)
Tolal revenUe ..........o.ooeeeeiiiiiiiieieieieeaans 4915 4,915 3,134 (1,781)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and services..........vvveveeeeiiviniincvnnnnnns 5,213 5,213 3,432 1,781
Total expenditures............covvveeeeeiaineeniiiiisennnn 5,213 5,213 3,432 1,781
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (298) (298) (298)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 538 538 538
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................... 298 298 298
Fund balance atend of year.............ccceeevevvennnnnnn $ 538 $ 538 $ 538 $

- N4 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SENIOR SERVICES - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES. cevniiis teeniiieeiiern e tb e et a e re e aaane $ 2,895 $ 2,896 $ 2,933 $ 37
Intergovernmental revenue ..............cevevenniiinninnn. 68 68 1 (67)
TOlal FEVENUE  ..coeeevciiiviniiniiiiciivi e, 2,963 2,964 2,934 (30)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Charges and Services.........covevvivvniiiinninininninn, 3,436 3,436 3,395 41
Total expenditures. .......coceeeeveeveencivenninennannannn, 3,436 3,436 3,395 41
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (473) (472) (461) 11
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 9 9 9
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 473 473 473
Fund balance atend of year ...........cceoeviiniiinnnnnne. 3 9 $ 10 $ 21 $ 11
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue ................coevvnvinninnenn. $ 199 $ 199 $ 51 $  (148)
Total revenue .........ccoceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieen, 199 199 51 (148)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes .......cccceevieiiiiiiriiniininneernneen, 367 371 345 26
Materials and supplies  ......ccocviiiiiiviniiiiii 6 6 5 1
Charges and ServiCes........coc.vvvvneeinerniinainennnn, 1,620 1,616 894 722
Capital outlays and equipment .................ocouve. 3 3 - 3
Total expenditures............ e 1,996 1,996 1,244 752
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,797) (1,797) (1,193) 604
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in - ......oooviivinneineiiinennn 1,794 1,820 1,920 -
Total other financing soUrces ............c.cccevuuueen... 1,794 1,820 1,920 -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses......... (3) 123 727 604
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,246 1,246 1,246 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 32 32 32 -
Fund balance atendofyear...............cooovvnvenenns, $ 1,275 $ 1,401 $ 2,005 $ 604
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT DRIVERS FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits .........ccmieviieiiiiiiieecee i, $ 10 $ 10 $ 39 $ 29
Total reVENUE  ......oeeveeeeiieiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeean 10 10 39 29
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and Services.........ccuuvvevecvriniivinennn... 10 10 - 10
Total eXpenditres...........co...vuiieeeiieiieeeeneennn.n, 10 10 - 10
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - - 39 39
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 98 98 98 -
Fund balance atend of year.............ccocevuveeennn.... $ 98 $ 98 $ 137 $ 39
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PROBATION SERVICE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services  ......coovveeivivvveneeereeeenennnnn, $ 120 $ 120 $ 148 $ 28
Total revenue .............ooeveiiiiiiiiiniiiiesieeeaa, 120 120 148 28
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services - 121 35 86
Materials & supplies - 20 17 3
Charges and Services .......cccoeeeevvuvervevenneeennnnnn, 290 246 142 104
Capital outiay and equipment  ...........ccc.......... 10 13 13 -
Total expenditures............coceeeeiiiiseeeeiiesinean, 300 400 207 193
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (180) (280) (59) 221
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 286 286 286
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 75 75 75 -
Fund balance atend of year.................cc...coeen. $ 181 $ 81 $ 302 $ 221
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MV ENFORCEMENT AND EDUCATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services ......ccooviiiieieiieinininicnnnn.. $ 20 $ 20 $ 12 $ (8)
Total revenue .......cccoceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 20 20 12 8)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and Services..........covevrvrveevernnieinnennnn. 20 20 16 4
Total expenditlures.............cvverveeieiieeesiiiniinineenns 20 20 16 4
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - - 4) 4)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 28 28 28 -
Fund balance at end of year..............cccoecvveevnnnnen. $ 28 $ 28 $ 24 $ (4)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BUILDING REGULATIONS - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCeS  ..uvuviiiiiverieineeeeeveeeieannnnns $ 1,120 $ 1,120 $ 1,341 $ 221
TOlal reVENUE  ..veveeiieeesei e 1,120 1,120 1,341 221
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services .........ccuvcviiineiineiiiiniinnnnnn. 1,022 1,022 9989 23
Materials and supplies ........c...ccccovviiiineinnnnnn. 27 33 30 3
Charges and Services ............coouvviinveernieeinnnnnn, 164 181 152 29
Capital outlay and equipment ........................ 24 36 21 15
Total expenditureS.......cc..coveveeeeeiiiieiiiiieieennnn, 1,237 1,272 1,202 70
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (117) (152) 139 291
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,032 1,032 1,032
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 9 9 9 -
Fund balance atend of year.................ccovevevnneenn. $ 924 $ 889 $ 1,180 $ 291
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE ADMINISTRATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes  .....ccoviciiirvrneineinneiieiinnes

Total revenue .....c.....ooeeeeiiniieiiiiiiiieeeiaa

Expenditures:
Current;
Legislative and executive
Personal services .........ccevviiviiiiiiiiiiiiennnnn.
Materials and supplies ......ccoocevevveiiiviiniininninnn,
Charges and Services ......c....ccevveveneeiiiiieninnnnn.
Capital outlay and equipment ........................

Total expenditures............ccccocvveuiiiiiiiiniinnan,
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....
Fund balance at beginning of year......c................

Prior year encumbrances appropriated....
Fund balance atend of year..............ccceeevinvinninns

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
3 1,400 $ 1,400 $ 1,537 $ 137
1,400 1,400 1,537 137
1,399 1,400 1,267 133
64 64 29 35
246 244 129 115
46 46 25 21
1,755 1,754 1,450 304
(355) (354) 87 441

1,202 1,202 1,202

32 32 32 -

$ 879 $ 880 $ 1,321 $ 441
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RECORDER EQUIPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
: Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SBIVICES  .....ccvveervveivneieiiiiereiiaees $ 350 $ 350 $ 402 $ 52
Total revenue  ........cocviieiveniiiiiiieeie i 350 350 402 52
Expenditures:
General government:
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies ......cooocevevviriiviiiniininn, 11 21 12 9
Charges and ServiCes ........covvevviveiuieernneernnnnnn. 166 216 146 70
Capital outlay and equipment  .................c..e.ll 558 498 74 424
Total expenditures............cccovevvvecveieieniennennannenn, 735 735 232 503
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (385) (385) 170 555
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 736 736 736
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 115 115 115 -
Fund balance at end of year...........c.ccceeeevvvennnnnnn. $ 466 $ 466 $ 1,021 $ 555
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE TREATMENT CENTER - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
: Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue......c..cccoeeuvvvneenninnnnnnn.. $ 1,400 $ 2,800 $ 1,996 $ (804)
TOAl reVENUE  ..occevvceieeeeeieeecie e 1,400 2,800 1,996 (804)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services  ......cocvciiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 1,744 1,818 1,737 81
Materials and supplies  ........ccocceiiviiiiininnnen. 116 115 77 38
Charges and ServiCes ...........oviviveerrireveniivnnnenn, 233 222 185 37
Capital outlay and equipment  ........................ 2 14 2 12
Total expenditures............c.ovceeeveeeiiriiinianeaenannn. 2,095 2,169 2,001 168
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (695) 631 (5) (636)
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in ......cooveeeviviieiiiiniienneennnnen. - - - -
Total other financing SOUICes ..........ccovevvvvvuneene. - - - -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures — ..........cc.ccoeueenn..n. (695) 631 (5) (636)
Fund balance at beginning of year........c.............. 186 186 186
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 13 13 13 -
Fund balance at end of year..................cc..ocoeven. $ (496) $ 830 $ 194 $ (636)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE FELONY CARE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..........ccoveeeeveineiiinnnnne.s $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 1,330 $ (1,170
Tolal revenue ..........coeveeiieiiiiiiiiiiieeeea, 2,500 2,500 1,330 (1,170)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services  ........ccccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeniinean 430 463 449 14
Materials and supplies  .....coooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, - 2 1 1
Charges and Services ......c..cceuvivieieinreniinininnnn. 1,860 2,126 1,749 377
Capital outlay and equipment  ........................ 5 5 - 5
Total expenditures..........cccovveivecciiciniinennnnnnnnan, 2,295 2,596 2,199 397
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 205 (96) (869) (773)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,705 1,705 1,705
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 539 539 539 -
Fund balance atend of year...........ccoeevvvvivnrennnnns $ 2,449 3 2,148 $ 1,375 $ (773)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FELONY DIVERSION PROGRAM - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.........c.c..cevuieveerinnnnnnn, $ 600 $ 1,160 $ 909 $ (251)
Total revenue ..........ccceevveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinninnnnn, 600 1,160 909 (251)
Expenditures:
Current
General government
Judicial
Personal services  ......cc.ccovviviiiiiiniiniiniiieenann, 747 790 692 98
Materials and supplies .......ccoveeviiiiiiiriiiieinnns, 4 7 3 4
Charges and Services .......cc.ccccvvvvereeirivnnnennnnnn. 209 362 220 142
Capital outlay and equipment  .............coeene... - - - -
Total expenditures............c..ccveveiiiiiiiiinnnninennnn.. 960 1,159 915 244
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (360) 1 (6) (7)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 35 35 35
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 13 13 13 -
Fund balance atend of year..........c..coovvvevvniennnn, $ (312) $ 49 $ 42 $ (7)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CORRECTIONAL TREATMENT FACILITY - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
intergovernmental revenUEe........cocoeveeneeerinrrieennan $ 3,600 $ 3,600 $ 3,251 $ (349
Miscellaneous Revenue $ 244 $ 244
TOtal FOVENUE  eveveeee vt eir e 3,600 3,600 3,495 (105)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services  ......cooviviiiniiniincin e 2,611 2,602 2,467 135
Materials and supplies  ....ccoeiiiiiiiiiirenn. 60 180 172 8
Charges and ServiCes ..........coceviviiiincininnnnninne 722 939 589 350
Capital outlay and equipment  .............ccoeeeent 34 111 105 6
Total expenditures.............cocoeeviiiiiiiniennninenns 3,427 3,832 3,333 499
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 173 (232) 162 394
Fund balance at beginning of year........... 284 284 284
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... 84 84 84 -
Fund balance at end of year..........ccoovviieenivennnns $ 541 3 136 $ 530 $ 394
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMON PLEAS CIVIL MEDIATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.....................cc..o...... $ - $ 125 $ 104  § (21)
Total reVenUe.............cccooovieiiiiiiiiiicis i - 125 104 (21)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal Services ..................cccoviinvieininnnnn, 45 45 29 16
Materials and supplies ...........o.coveveveevennnnnn.n. 1 1 1
Charges and services..............cccoeereeevevennn.n.. - 5
Capital outlay and equipment ........................ 10 10 9 1
Total expenditures.............c.c.cccveeeeieniiesennnnn, 61 61 38 23
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (61) 64 66 2
Fund balance at beginning of year.......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. -
Fund balance atendofyear............................ $ (61) $ 64 $ 66 § 2
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SHERRIF'S POLICING - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue....................oeeeenen. $ 600 $ 600 $ 150 $ (450
Total revenue..........ccoeeciiiiiiiiniiniiiiie, 600 600 150 (450)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services...........cooeeiiiiiiiivniinennnn, - 242 226 16
Materials and supplies........ccoovvvviininininnn, - - -
Charges and ServiCes...........ocoveveineinninnnnn. - 136 - 136
Capital outlay and equipment....................... - 102 100 2
Total expendifures...........cccocvviiviiiniinennnnnn, - 480 326 154
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures... 600 120 (1786) (296)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............... -
Fund balance atendofyeat....................ceeeee $ 600 $ 120 $ (176) $ (296)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.................coeevviiiin. $ - $ 3,500 $ - $ (3,500)
Total reVENUE .......c..cooeeiiii e - 3,500 - (3,500)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services ...........coovcoiveiieeinnaninnn, - 129 80 49
Materials and supplies .............ocoeevvveeiinnnn, - 3 3 -
Charges and services.........................c..o...... . 3,169 390 2,779
Capital outlay and equipment ........................ - 198 101 97
Total expenditures..................c.cceeiiieiiiinii, - 3,499 574 2,925
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - 1 (574) (575)
Fund balance at beginning of year......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ -
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ - $ 1 $ (574 $ (575)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FAMILY & CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
intergovernmental revenue...................coeeveenn... $ $ 4,000 $ 1,408 $ (2,592)
Total revenue ...............ccccoueeiii e 4,000 1,408 (2,592)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services .......cooviiiiiiiiiiiiieinieinn, - 149 68 81
Materials and supplies ..............ccoviiiieeniinl, - 40 5 35
Charges and Services .............ovvvveeeeivinnnnnn. - 3,768 3,160 608
Capital outlay and equipment ............c........... - 40 13 27
Total expenditures.............coocoieiiiiiiiiiiinininn, 3,997 3,246 751
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - 3 (1,838) (1,841)
Fund balance at beginning of year.......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. -
Fund balance atend of year.................cooeeeunen. $ - $ 3 $ (1,838) $ (1,841)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Special as5eSSMeNtS.......ccevevevimerinicneneneens $ - $ - $ 871 $ 871
Intergovernmental revenue........c.cocccevencerieennnes - - 2,320 2,320
Miscellaneous revenue............ccccecrvercecvenrennan. 57,000 57,000 4,916 (52,084)
TOtal FEVENUES. .......oeeeeereevieveeresereiversssseeraanns. 57,000 57,000 8,107 (48,893)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay- 47,171 63,150 50,850 12,300
Debt service
Principal retirement.........coeceenviiinerneecsnnnnen. - 19,460 18,460 -
interest and fiscal charges........cccevvveveennnnnnen.. - 883 883 -
Total expenditures.........ceweweeeeeerverevvrceennnns. 47,171 83,493 71,193 12,300
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. 9,829 (26,493) (63,086) (36,593)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOtES.......coviveveverieiieiicrires e - - 10,740 10,740
Proceeds of bonds......uveevevecveevieiiiiiiveiiireeenens - - 38,585 38,585
Operating transfers iN.........cccceeeevevccvnenrncenennnns - - 12,826 12,826
Operating transfers (Out).......ccccoeverenereervennnn.. (8,600) (898) (72) 826
Total other financing sources (uses,................ (8,600) (898) 62,079 62,977
Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses........ 1,229 (27,391) (1,007) 26,384
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 21,248 21,248 21,248 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 8,183 8,183 8,183 -
Fund balance at end of year........cccccoevverenennnnn $ 30,660 $ 2,040 $ 28,424 $ 26,384
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PERMANENT ZOO IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES. c.ceeeeeenieiencerere et ereesieses st strarsnrsassaseesenssonsenes e $ 5,750 $ 5,750 $ 5,823 $ 73
Miscellaneous revenue...........ccoececccverenneneneniereesennsee e 50 50 2 (48)
TOAI FEVENUES........ceeeeivreecrercreniaeeecresenserseeesessressaess 5,800 5,800 5,825 25
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay-
Construction Contracts.......ccvvveervevirnnrevrernsessenrvisrinnens 5,800 5,800 5,783 17
Total eXPENUIUIES.......ovvveeeeerecreneeerreeseeereartsrenessssesss 5,800 5,800 5,783 17
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.................... 0 42 42
Fund baiance at beginning of year........ccccccovvvvvervrernennennn. 3 3 3 0
Fund baiance (deficit) at end of year......ccccccvveeevvcnenennnne. $ 3 $ 3 $ 45 $ 42
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BOND RETIREMENT-DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES.uiiiiiiriiiiiieeirccsie et eniee s ne e s $ 4,967 $ 4,967 $ 5,307 $ 340
Special assessments.......ccoccevvviiieiiniinninnn, - - 1,699 1,699
Miscellaneous revenue..........cccveevvvnennenss 1,450 1,450 2,466 1,016
Total revenUeS.......cccuveeeevveeeneeeesrreeinnras 6,417 6,417 9,472 3,055
Expenditures:
Current:
Debt Service-
Principal retirement...........ccccccvvvvenvnnnnenn. 8,914 8,941 8,939 2
Interest and fiscal charges.........c.c.cvivvenee. 3,821 5,516 5,409 107
Total expenditures...........ceveveeevrnveeennee.. 12,735 14,457 14,348 109
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.. (6,318) (8,040) (4,876) 3,164
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOteS......cccccevveervivnivinienienns e - - - -
Proceeds of bonds........ccccceveeeiencieniciinnne - - - -
Operating transfers iM......ccccoeeveveneecncenecnnnn 5,325 5,325 4,397 (928)
Operating transfers (Out)....c....occooeerivrieeceecnnen, (500) (327) (47) 280
Total other financing sources (uses,)............ 4,825 4,998 4,350 (648)
Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses.... (1,493) (3,042) (526) 2,516
Fund balance at beginning of year.................. 5,997 5,997 5,997 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............ - - - -
Fund balance at end of year.........ccccccvvenn.n... $ 4,504 $ 2,955 $ 5,471 $ 2,516
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
December 31, 2001

Enterprise Funds- Enterprise funds account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The intent of Lucas
County is that the costs of providing services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. The following are the Enter-
prise funds which Lucas County operates:

Sanitary Engineer- To account for the administrative
costs of operating the water supply system, wastewater
treatment system, and sewer system.

Water Supply System- To account for the distribution of
treated water to individuals and commercial users of Lucas
County.

Wastewater Treatment- To account for wastewater
treatment services provided to the Sanitary Engineer, Cities
of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of Waterville, Sylvania
Township and other portions of Lucas County and portions
of Wood County.

Sewer System- To account for sanitary sewer services
provided to individuals and commercial users in Lucas
County and portions of Wood County.

Solid Waste- To account for the administration of solid
waste disposal county-wide.

Parking Facilities- To account for operation of parking
facilities.
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Combining Chart of Operating Revenues and Expenses

Enterprise Funds

Millions

Sanitary Engineer

Water Supply System

Wastewater Treatment

Sewer System

Solid Waste

Parking Facilities

B Total Operating Revenues & Total Operating Expenses

\Year Ended December 31, 2001]
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM-ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services......c..ccooeveevieninieinn.., $ 710 $ 710 $ 748 $ 38
Miscellaneous..........cocoovviviiiiiiiiieiaen, 1,530 1,530 571 (959)
Total operating revenues....................... 2,240 2,240 1,319 (921)
Operating expenses:
Personal services.........cocovvveiiiiiiniinnn, - - - -
Contract services........ccoovviviviviiiinnneann.. 2,319 1,702 847 855
Materials and supplies.............covevennnnn. 30 30 20 10
Capital outlay and equipment................. - » - -
Miscellaneous..............coovvviviiiiininnn. - - - -
Total operating expense........................ 2,349 1,732 867 865
Operating income (10SS)......c.ccoovvenrennnn. (109) 508 452 (56)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement.............c.cocvvveunen... (227) (227) (197) 30
Interest and fiscal charges.................... (373) (373) (305) 68
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... {600) (600) (502) 98
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (709) (92) (50) 42
Transferin.....cocovriiiii e - - 47 42
Net income (108S)....c...vvveviiiiiiiiniiinn., (709) (92) (3) 89
Net assets at beginning of year................... 443 443 443
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 112 112 112 -
Net assets atend of year........................ $ (154) $ 463 $ 552 $ 89
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

WASTEWATER TREATMENT-ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services........cc.cceeeviiviininnnnnn,

Miscellaneous............coeviiiiiiiinn,
Total operating revenues........................

Operating expenses:

Personal services........cooviiiiciiiiiinnnnn..,
Contract Services......oovvvveeeieeinnieninn..

Materials and supplies..................oo....
Capital outlay and equipment.................
Miscellaneous............oovveviiiiiiniina,

Total operating expense........................

Operating income (10S8).........coocuvvenennnnn

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement..............................
Interest and fiscal charges..................

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Income (loss) before operating transfers..

Transfer iN....cooviiiii

Net income (I0SS)....ccooviviiiiiiiniiiiiiinnn,

Net assets at beginning of year.........
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......
Net assets atendof year........................

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 4,673 $ 4,673 $ 3,874 $ (799)
4,673 4,673 3,874 (799)
1,082 1,083 1,001 82
3,127 1,721 998 723
441 451 352 99
100 90 39 51
4,750 3,345 2,390 955
(77) 1,328 1,484 156
(705) (705) (704) 1
(700) (700) (699) 1
(1,405) (1,405) (1,403) 2
(1,482) (77) 81 158
(1,482) (77) 81 158
2,194 2,194 2,194 -
223 223 223 -
$ 935 $ 2,340 $ 2,498 $ 158
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SEWER SYSTEM-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services..........cccoeveiiininnin.
Miscellaneous..........ccccvvericiiiniiiininvininn,

Total operating revenues. ......................

Operating expenses:

Personal services.........oooviiivviiiniinnininn..
Contract ServiCes.......covvvvviieiiiinneinnnnnn.

Materials and supplies.........cc.cooevennnne
Capital outlay and equipment.................
Miscellaneous..........ccoeveviiinininiiinnn...

Total operating expense........................

Operating income (10SS).......c.ccvvvivnienenn.

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Principal retirement.............ccccccveennan..

Interest and fiscal charges...................

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Income (loss) before operating transfers..

Transfer iN...c.ooovieiiie e

Net income (10SS)..cceevivineeiiiiiiiiniiiiiienn,

Net assets at beginning of year.........
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......

Netassets atend ofyear...............c.ooiens

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 286 $ 190 $ 525 $ 335
1,175 1,271 1,322 51
1,461 1,461 1,847 386.
1,532 707 635 72
10 9 3 6
- 5 - 5
1,642 721 638 83
(81) 740 1,209 469
(1,033) (1,033) (970) 63
(248) (248) (228) 20
(1,281) (1,281) (1,198) 83
(1,362) (541) 11 552
(1,362) (541) 11 552

2,219 2,219 2,219 -

81 81 81 -
$ 938 $ 1,759 $ 2,311 $ 552
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ASSETS
Current assets:

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Pooled cash and cash equivaients...........cccccoeevnivevniinen.

Pooled investments

Receivables (net of aliowances for

uncollectables)

Accounts...........

Buildings, structures, and improvements...............
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment...........cc..coeveivennee.
Less accumulated depreciation..........cccoevvivnnnennne.

Total assets.....

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued wages and benefits...........c.ooeieiin

Due to other funds

Current portion of long-term debt................coo s
Total current fiabilities............cccoeiriiiiiiiin

Noncurrent liabilities:
OWDA loans payabie

Total noncurrent iiabilities..............oocveviiiiivininense

Total liabilities. ...

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..........

Unrestricted............

Sanitary Solid Parking Total Other

Engineer Waste Facilities Enterprise Funds

$ 451 $ 196 $ 297 $ 944

1,237 535 814 2,586

1,411 222 1,633
3,099 953 1,111 5163

154 154

3,006 3,006

1,562 575 2,137

(2,042) (229) (2,271)

$ 5779 $ 1,299 $ 1,111 $ 8,189

50 77 35 162

430 67 497

1 2 3

28 28

509 146 35 690

1,395 1,395

1,395 1,395

1,904 146 35 2,085

1,257 346 1,603

2,618 807 1,076 4,501

3,875 1,153 1,076 6,104

$ 5779 $ 1,299 $ 1,111 $ 8,189
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Operating revenues:
Charges for services..........cccevcevriiviniviennnnes.
Miscellaneous.........cccccveeerreciniciinenenieee .

Total operating revenues....................
Operating expenses:

Personal Services.......coocceevivenrevneeennns
Contract Services........cccoovvveeeerverrenennnn.
Materials and supplies........ccccccocevveennnn.
Miscellaneous.........cccccecieviiniienininneene s
Heat, light and power..........cccovrrieenin
Depreciation......c..cccccvevevrereircceeeieninienna,

Total operating expenses....................

Operating income ..........c.oetvvvncieercennnen.

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest and fiscal charges..........cccoeuuee..

Increase innetassets.................ooenel.
Net assets at beginning of year............

Net assets atend of year....................coonl,

Sanitary Solid Parking
Engineer Waste Facilities
$ 3,015 $ 1,970 $ 300
1,000
4,015 1,970 300
2,614 518
257 867 76
432
72
34
176 94
3,513 1,551 76
502 419 224
(87) - -
415 419 224
3,460 734 852
$ 3,875 $ 1,153 $ 1,076
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Total

5,285

1,000

6,285

3,132
1,200
432
72

34
270

5,140

1,145

(®7)

1,058

5,046

6,104



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking
_Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from CUSIOMErS..........ccvvvveeeeeeeerenennn, $ 3,877 $ 1,848 $ 326 $ 6,051
Cash paid to suppliers.......c.occceeivenviiiiiee e vreeeie s (701) (871) (41) (1,613)
Cash paid {0 employees..........ccvvevveiiiiiiecriiinniiee e, (2,576) (505) - (3,081)
Net cash provided by :
operating activities. .............cco i, 600 472 285 1,357
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal payments - OWDA loans...................... (56) - - (56)
Purchase of fixed assets..............cccoeevie, (74) - - (74)
Interest paid...........cccoooiiiiiiii (87) - - (87)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities..............cccovveeeiennn . (217) - - (217)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments.................... 1,601 31 985 2,617
Payments for investments..............cooeeeeeeenl (1,718) (344) (1,090) (3,152)
Net cash used in investing
ACHVIHIES...eeevriei e (117) (313) (105) (535)
Net increase in cash......cccccovvviiiiiiiinnnnnnnnn, 266 159 180 605
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1.................. 185 37 117 339
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31............. $ 451 $ 196 $ 297 $ 944
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Sanitary Solid Parking
Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Operating iNCOME .......uvvviieeetireircereieesreee e e e eeaens $ 502 $ 419 $ 224 $ 1,145
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation eXpense.......ovvieiviieriviineecrcineeeienes 176 94 - 270
{increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable.........ccoccieiiiiiiiinen s (138) (122) 26 - (234)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADI........ecviiviereereereieree e e eee e 22 67 35 124
Accrued wages and benefits.........ccccveiniien i 38 13 - 51
Due to other funds........cocoveiiieiiiicneec e - 1 - 1
Total adjustments.........cccccoiiiiiinii e 98 53 61 212
Net cash provided by
operating activities........c.ccocevevieiineiecic e $ 600 $ 472 $ 285 $ 1,357
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SANITARY ENGINEER-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services..........cooveviiinninnnnn. $ 3,170 $ 2,600 $ 2,882 $ 282
Miscellaneous..........c.cocevvvviiiiiiiiiinnnn, 380 950 996 46
Total operating revenues........................ 3,550 3,550 3,878 328
Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes........covevivvviiirineinnnnn.. 2,490 2,646 2,576 70
Contract services........o.ovvvvviniininiinnn.n. 605 433 371 62
Materials and supplieS............coveirninnann, 375 469 414 55
Capital outlay and equipment................. 202 161 162 (1)
Miscellaneous..........cooveviveiiiiiiiinninan. - - - -
Total operating expense........................ 3,672 3,709 3,523 186
Operating income (1088).........c.ccevvvnennnn., (122) (159) 355 514
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement..................ccccven.. (56) (56) (56) -
Interest and fiscal charges.................... (87) (87) (87) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... (143) (143) (143) -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (265) (302) 212 ‘ 514
Transferin.....ccooovviveiiiiininnn.., - - - -
Net income (108S)....ccovvviviiiiiiiniiiiiiieienen. (265) (302) 212 514
Net assets at beginning of year..................... 1,152 1,152 1,152 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 151 151 151 -
Net assets atendofyear...............co.ceoeeni. $ 1,038 $ 1,001 $ 1,515 $ 514
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SOLID WASTE-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services.........occveuvviinninnnnn.. $ 1,922 $ 1,922 $ 1,847 $ (75)
Miscellaneous..........ccooviviviiiiiniiiean, - - - -

Total operating revenues....................... 1,922 1,922 1,847 (75)
Operating expenses:

Personal services............ccoeveiiiiiinn., 537 538 504 34
Contract services.......coovvvieiiinineininnnnn. 1,178 1,105 1,037 68
Materials and supplieS......c..c.coocvvininnnnn, 21 21 18 3
Capital outlay and equipment................. 170 169 167 2
Miscellaneous............coevveviiiiviiiinnn, - 73 72 1
Total operating expense........................ 1,906 1,906 1,798 108
Operating income (l0SS)..........cccoevvven..n. 16 16 49 33

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement...............cccovvuvunan.. - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges.................. - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense).. - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. 16 16 49 33
Transferin.....oooovivviii - - - -

Net income (l0SS)....cccvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiine, 16 16 49 33
Net assets at beginning of year................... 189 189 189 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 70 70 70 -
Net assets atendof year..............c..ooeunenls $ 275 $ 275 $ 308 $ 33
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PARKING FACILITIES-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services............c..ccceeiivninnn, $ 290 $ 290 $ 325 $ 35
Miscellaneous..........ccoceveiviiinciiniinninee. - - - -

Total operating revenues....................... 290 290 325 35

Operating expenses:
Personal Services.......coovveeeeiinniciininn., - - -
Contract services.........oovveeeiiiivininiaii.. 255 255 44 211

Materials and supplies.......................... 10 10 - 10
Capital outlay and equipment................. 10 10 - 10
Miscellaneous...........ooocviiiin i, - - - -
Total operating expense........................ 275 275 44 231
Operating income (10SS)..........c..ccevvennnnnn. 15 15 281 266

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement..................cc....o..... - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges.................... - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. 15 15 281 266
Transferin...ocoooiiiiiiii i - - - -

Net income (10SS)...eeviviininiiniiiiinnnnn. 15 15 281 266
Net assets at beginning of year......... 823 823 823 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 3 3 3 -
Net assets atendof year........................ $ 841 $ 841 $ 1,107 $ 266
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
December 31, 2001

Internal Service Funds- Internal Service funds account
for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of
the governmental unit, or to other governmental units on
a cost-reimbursement basis. The following are the
Internal Service funds which Lucas County operates:

Central Supplies- To account for supplies, mailing and
copying services provided to various County departments
and other governmental units. Users are billed for costs
incurred.

Vehicle Maintenance- To account for vehicle
maintenance services provided to various County
departments and other governmental units. Users are
billed for costs incurred.

County-City Telephone- To account for inter-
departmental charges for the use of the telephone system.
Users are billed for costs incurred.

Self-Funded Health Insurance - To account for claims
and administration of the health insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.

Self-Funded Dental Insurance- To account for claims
and administration of the dental insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.

Centralized Drug Testing- To account for drug testing
charges incurred by the jail and other criminal justice
system departments.

Risk Retention Insurance- To account for claims and
administration of liability insurance for county
departments. The departments are billed based on the
cost of insurance policies.

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation- To account for
claims and administration of workers’ compensation for
county departments. The departments are billed based on
their portion of total covered payroll and usage of the
program.
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Internal Service Funds

Combining Chart of Operating Revenues and Expenses

Self-funded Health

Risk Retention Ins. .

Self-funded Workers Comp. .

Self-funded Dental

All Other Funds

Millions

15 20

25

®m Total Operating Revenues 3 Total Operating Expenses

!Year Ended December 31, ZOOﬂ
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone insurance
Assets:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...................... $ - $ 28 $ 108 $ 1,985
Pooled investments.........ccccecerervrrrnversenecnirenrnens 1 77 294 5,437
Accounts receivable..... 2 1 1
Due from other funds.........ceeeunnne. 17 32 108
Inventory: materials and supplies........cccvceeecnenn. 116 21
Total current assets... 136 159 511 7,422
Noncurrent assets-capital assets
LANG..c ittt snieresres st essens 83
Buildings, structures and
IMPIOVEMENES....cvveeirerieierrerereseerensesesesessesneseanen. 30
Furniture, fixtures and equipment... 207 116 832 22
Less: accumulated depreciation............... (194) (130) (782) (13)
Total noncurent assets.......cceevveviiveennennn.n. 73 99 50 9
Total assets.... . 149 258 561 7,431
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable.......ccccccnvevmmrvvnnnenenenerenen. 12 23 14 60
Accrued wages and benefits 5 54 8 13
Due to other funds.... crertrsseeseerseenrseesnens 360
Claims payable-current.................. 1,623
Total current iabilities............ueeeceercervreennes 17 77 22 2,056
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Claims payable-noncurrent..........ccoeeveveereevnreneen.
Obligations under capital leases..........ce.vvvereenene 19
Total noncurrent liabilities.................... 19
Total liabilities....... rrersrenisatstrereanasnans 36 77 22 2,056
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..... 13 99 50 9
UNrestricted. ... .occcmerivencceeciiecienennereee e s enaa 100 82 489 5,366
Total net aSSets........cucueeceevveereeenneeensnn $ 113 $ 181 $ 539 $ 5,375
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Self- Self-

Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing insurance Comp. insurance Total

$ 33 $ 2,220 $ 4,118 $ 98 $ 8,590
89 6,081 11,278 267 23,524

4

24 360 541

137

146 8,301 15,396 725 32,796

83

30

10 1,187
(10) (1,129)

- 171

146 8,301 15,396 725 32,967

76 584 6 13 788

36 15 22 153

360

1,639 356 3,618

112 599 1,667 369 4,918

3,223 3,223

19

3,223 3,242

112 599 4,890 369 8,161

171

34 7,702 10,506 356 24,635

$ 34 3 7,702 $ 10,506 $ 356 $ 24,806
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Vehicle County-
Central Mainten- City
Supplies ance Telephone
Operating revenues:
Charges for SErVICE........ccccvvvvinriiinicinecneie $ 794 $ 494 $ 1,746
MISCEIENEOUS......ieivrerreecreiereieeeeserree e st erce e eesenanas 32
Total operating revenues..........ccoccvveevennneneececreeneen, 794 526 1,746
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES......ovcruierriereciireniiieceneenremerse s cverersvecsanes 64 334 120
CONract SEIVICES.......ovcvirre et 58 65 1,406
Materials and SUPPHES....ccccvevrerererrrereeeriirer e cnecreeeesranes 854 282 4
9 17 42
Miscellaneous. .........covviviiiiiiiiiniiin e
Employee medical benefits.........cocoevciiniicenicinieneee
Total operating exXpenses.....c..ccccevveeeeieerrcnsnreenieeeneces 985 698 1,572
Operating inCome (I0SS).........oovririnicvirernreiereeeene (191) (172) 174
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INtErest INCOME......ccvivirieririceri et er e
Interest and fiscal charges........ccccoiiiinciicinnn (2)
Total nonoperating revenues
ANd (EXPENSES).c.coceeerieiineiiiieiiier e resess s esie s, (2) 0 0
Change in net @ssets .....cccovvvevricieieeicnrerneerecee e (193) (172) 174
Net assets at
DeginniNg Of YEaN. .....ccvcccririiiii e 306 353 365
Net assets at
ENA Of YBAN ..ottt ettt ere s st es $113 $181 $539
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Self- Self- Self-

Funded Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Health Drug Retention Workers' Dentai
Insurance Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Totai
$ 19,642 $ 476 $ 1,462 $ 1,434 $ 1,967 $ 28,015
149 181
19,791 476 1,462 1,434 1,967 28,196
148 257 178 138 1,239
462 15 1,224 56 46 3,332
18 244 8 2 1,412
4 2 74
1 3 4
18,645 142 2,213 1,833 22,833
19,277 517 1,555 2411 1,879 28,894
514 (41) (93) (977) 88 (698)
291 291
(2)
291 0 0 0 0 289
805 (41) (93) (977) 88 (409)
4,570 75 7,795 11,483 268 25,215
$5,375 $34 $7.702 $10,506 $356 $24,806

— 151 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers..................
Cash paid to suppliers...c.ccceeceeveeerervenrenen
Cash paid to employees........cccvevceercennns

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities........ccovvinniciennne

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:

Purchase of capital assets.........cccceveernnnne.

Interest and fiscal charges

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments...........
Payments for investments.....c....ccceeeneeenn.

Interest received.......oovcerceniineerivnrninieennns
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents........c.ccceeevveeeerricnnnn.
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1......

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

Proceeds of capital lease transaction........

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
.................. $ 792 $ 648 $ 1638 $ 19,792
................... (831) (353) (1,600) (19,294)
................... (63) (334) (117) (146)
.................. (102) (39) (79) 352
.................. - (20) - -
.................. 2 - - -
.................. (7) - - -
................ 9 (20) - -
.................. 243 281 754 9,316
................. (148) (217) (635) (8,938)
............... - - - 291
....... 95 64 119 669
................. (16) 5 40 1,021
.................. 16 23 68 964
.................. $ -8 28 $ 108 $ 1,985
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total
$ 472 $ 1,462 $ 1,434 $ 1,957 $ 28,195
(187) (804) (1,887) (1,861) (26,817)
(255) (182) (144) - (1,241)
30 476 (597) 96 137
- - - - (20)
: : - - (2)
- - - - 7
- - - - (29)
111 10,948 23,528 319 45,500
(121) (10,317) (21,087) (355) (41,818)
- - - - 291
(10) 631 2,441 (36) 3,973
20 1,107 1,844 60 4,081
13 1,113 2,274 38 4,509
$ 33 $ 2,220 $ 4,118 $ 98 $ 8590
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(continued)
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Activities

Vehicle County-
Central Mainten- City
Supplies ance Telephone
Operating INCOME (I0SS)....cccverierernrerrrienernnneeesree e seaens $ (191) $ (172) $ 174

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation eXpense..........vcovvveirreeneenvrisionneiieenseesan 9 17 42
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable

....................................................... - 1 -
Due from other funds.. 2) 120 (108)
IVENEOTY .ttt cete e e e rr e st et v rn e enaes 76 3 -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

AccoUNtS payable........cccovvenrircninnsineeieneee e 5 8) (190)
Due to other funds.......c.ccoceeeeiiviniercereecn e, - -
Accrued wages and benefits..........cocoecccvivevevenricierenens e 1 - 3

Total adjustments........coccecveeieiernnecicc e 89 133 (253)

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities..........cccocceieiiine et 102 $ (39) $ (79)

Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Central Supplies fund had a capital lease obligation remaining of $19 thousand.
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Self- Self- Seif-

Funded Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Health Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Insurance Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total

$ 514 3 (1) $ (93) $ (@17 S 88 $  (698)

4 - - 2 - 74

1 . - - - 2
- 4) - - (10) (4)

- - - - - 79

(179) 73 573 384 18 676

10 - . - - 10
2 2 4) (6) - (2)

(162) 71 569 380 8 835

$ 352 3 30 $ 476 $ {597) $ 96 $ 137
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CENTRAL SUPPLIES-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services.........ovcoevvvivineeenenn.... $ 952 $ 952 $ 792 $ (160)
Miscellaneous.............ccoooeciiiiiininn, - - - -
Total operating revenues......................... 952 952 792 (160)
Operating expenses:
Personal services............cccveeiiiinininnnn, 62 65 63 2
Contract Services.........covevviviniiniinenennn, 115 115 92 23
Materials and supplies...........ccccovvvneeneen. 768 785 724 61
Capital outlay and equipment................... 32 62 57 5
Miscellaneous............cocovviviiinininn, - - -
Claim payments.........c.cooeeeiiiiiniinneennnn, - -
Employee medical benefits..................... -
Total operating expense.......................... 977 1,027 936 91
Operating income (10SS).......cccoviuviniinnnnn. (25) (75) (144) (69)
Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome........cccveveveviiiieiiiiinaniin, -
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)..... - -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.... (25) (75) (144) (69)
Operating transferin..........cc.coooeeiiiiinnnn.. - - - -
Change in netassets...........ccccceeiivinnnnn, (25) (75) (144) (69)
Net assets at beginning of year...................... 86 86 86 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 26 26 26 -
Net assets atendof year..............oooiiinils $ 87 $ 37 $ (32) $ (69)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services.............ccocoevireinnn, $ 607 $ 747 $ 614 $ (133)
Miscellaneous......c.c.cooovviviiiiiiinininennnn, 145 5 34 29
Total operating revenues....................... 752 752 648 (104)
Operating expenses:
Personal services........c..ccoevivininnennnnn, 360 347 344 3
Contract ServiCes.........vcvvveivviniiniinnnn.. 97 108 92 16
Materials and supplies..................cc.... 385 387 323 64
Capital outlay and equipment................. 21 21 18 3
Miscellaneous...........c.covveviiiiniinnnnn, - - -
Claim payments..........ccoeviiiinininnnnn. - - - -
Employee medical benefits................... - - - -
Total operating expense........................ 863 863 777 86
Operating income (10SS)..........cocovvveennnen. (111) (111) (129) (18)
Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome.........ccccovvvveiininiinin.n. - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues ................ - - - -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (111) (111) (129) (18)
Operating transfer in.............coccooevnienee - - - -
Change in netassets.........c.ccocevveieninnnn.. (111) (111) (129) (18)
Net assets at beginning of year................... 53 53 53 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 111 111 111 -
Net assetsatend of year........................... $ 53 $ 53 3 35 $ (18)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COUNTY-CITY TELEPHONE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services............cceveiieiieiiinn. $ 1,800 $ 1,800 $ 1,639 $ (161)
Miscellaneous.........cocvviiiiiiiiiiieii e, - - - -

Total operating revenues. ...................... 1,800 1,800 1,639 (161)
Operating expenses:

Personal services. ......c.cooeveieiiiiieneinnnen.. 125 125 118 7

Contract Services.......ccovveiiiveninininenn. 1,782 2,068 1,691 377

Materials and supplieS......c.cccevvviveninnnn. - 1 1 -

Capital outlay and equipment................. 2 5 4

Miscellaneous......ccccovveiiiiiiiiiinnnnn. - 10 0 10

Claim payments........cceeevereniinecrinnnennes - - - -
Employee medical benefits.................. - - - -

Total operating expense...........c............ 1,909 2,209 1,814 395

Operating income (10SS)............coeeeeennnn. (109) (409) (175) 234

Non-operating revenues:
InterestinCoOmMe. .......cccoeveiveviininananan. - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues ............... - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (109) (409) (175) 234

Operating transferin...................c.ooiew - - - -

Changeinnetassets.............ccoeenininnnn, (109) (409) (175) 234
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 309 309 309 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 171 171 171 -
Net assets atendofyear.............cocevevvenenes $ 371 $ 71 $ 305 $ 234
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SELF-FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:
Charges forservices...........cooovvviiiiinns.
Miscellaneous...........cocoeviiiiiiiinininnn,

Total operating revenues.......................
Operating expenses:

Personal services.............covvvveniiiinnnns
Contract services.......c.ooevvviiiiinininnnnnn.
Materials and supplies...........c...cc..ooal.
Capital outlay and equipment.................
Miscellaneous...........coceeveviniiinnnnnn,
Claimpayments........c.coooieiiiiiinininnenn.
Employee medical benefit....................
Total operating expense........................
Operating income (10S8).......c...ccoevevunnnn.

Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome...........cccovvveiivnenennnn.n.

Total nonoperating revenues ...............
Income (loss) before operating transfers..
Operating transferin............ccccoecevnnnnnnn.
Changeinnetassets...........ccocoicviinnnnn.
Net assets at beginning of year.........

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......
Net assets atend of year........................

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 23,500 $ 23,500 $ 19,642 $ (3,858)
400 50 149 99
23,900 23,550 19,791 (3,759)
170 171 146 25
25,138 763 587 176
13 24 19 5
45 38 - 38
- 24,371 23,929 442
25,366 25,367 24,681 686
(1,466) (1,817) (4,890) (3,073)
- 350 291 (59)
- 350 291 (59)
(1,466) (1,467) (4,599) (3,132)
(1,466) (1,467) (4,599) (3,132)
3,018 3,018 3,018 -
3,761 3,761 3,761 -
$ 5,313 $ 5312 $ 2,180 $ (3,132)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CENTRALIZED DRUG TESTING-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services.........cocovvvvvieininnnn. $ 519 $ 519 $ 472 $ (47)
Miscellaneous........ccccoeveviiiiiiiiiiini, - - - -
Total operating revenues....................... 519 519 472 (47)
Operating expenses:
Personal services..........ocooeiiiiniininn, 272 271 256 15
Contract Services........ccvvvvveiiceeiniinnnnns 26 24 17 7
Materials and supplies......... TR 224 224 193 31
Capital outiay and equipment................. 4 7 2 5
Miscellaneous..........cocoevviviiiiiiiininn - 1 1
Claim payments........ccocoovviviiininnnn., - -
Employee medical benefit.................... - -
Total operating expense........................ 526 527 469 58
Operating income (1088)......c.cccceevinvninnnnn (7) (8) 3 11
Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome. .........ccoevveiivninnnin.n.
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (7) (8) 3 11
Operating transfer in............coeeeveveieninnn - -
Changeinnetassets.........c.ccecoeeeniininn., (7) (8) 3 11
Net assets at beginning of year................... 62 62 62
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 30 30 30 -
Net assets atend of year..............cccovenee. $ 85 $ 84 3 95 $ 11
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RISK RETENTION INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services..........ccceeveeiiinninnnn., $ 1,400 $ 1,400 $ 1,461 $ 61
Miscellaneous..........c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie, - - - -

Total operating revenues........................ 1,400 1,400 1,461 61

Operating expenses:

Personal ServiCes.........cccvviiiiicininaninnnns 182 186 182 4
Contract ServiCes.....c.ovvvvvvviieieeineenn., 1,665 1,153 661 492
Materials and supplies.............cccoevinnen. 8 9 8 1
Capital outlay and equipment................. 5 4 - 4
Miscellaneous..........ccceviiiiiniiiiiiinn, - 8 3 5
Claim payments.........cocoovviiiinininss - - - -
Employee medical benefit.................... - 500 145 355
Total operating expense........................ 1,860 1,860 999 861
Operating income (loss)............ RTTRTR (460) (460) 462 922
Non-operating revenues:
Interest income........cccovviveivviiiiiininnnn, - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... - - - -
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (460) (460) 462 922
Operating transferin.............cocooivieninnn - - - -
Change innetassets.......c.cccvvveviveneeennnns, (460) (460) 462 922
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 7,820 7,820 7,820 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 5 5 5 -
Net assets atend of year............c.cc.cennn.o. $ 7,365 $ 7,365 $ 8,287 $ 922
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF FUNDED WORKERS COMP.-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
' Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services........c..coevvevinieninnannn. $ 2,640 $ 2,640 $ 1,434 $ (1,206)
Miscellaneous........ccocvvieviiiiiiiiii, - - - -

Total operating revenues........................ 2,640 2,640 1,434 (1,206)
Operating expenses:

Personal services............cccoevvviinnn. 151 151 145 6

Contract services...........cccovvviiivinininnnnen, 2,331 131 61 70

Materials and supplies........cccooveveinineninn 3 3 1 2

Capital outlay and equipment.................. 9 9 - 9

Miscellaneous..........ccovvvviiieniininniininn - - - -
Claim payment........ccoovvvviiiieinniniinnn, - - -
Employee medical benefit...................... - 2,200 1,832 368

Total operating expense........................ 2,494 2,494 2,039 455
Operating income (10SS).........cccoveniunenen. 146 146 (605) (751)

Non-operating revenues:
InterestinCome. ........ccevvvvevviviiinennnnnnn, - - - -

Total nonoperating revenues.................. - - - -

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. 146 146 (605) (751)

Operating transfer in...........c..cooceiinienn. - - - -

Change in net assets..............cccccivenenenen. 146 146 (605) (751)
Net assets at beginning of year..................... 15,988 15,988 15,988 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 5 5 5 -
Net assets atend of year..........c..coeevvininnnnn, $ 16,139 $ 16,139 $ 15,388 $ (751)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF-FUNDED DENTAL INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services.........ooveeviivininnnnnn. $ 2,100 $ 2,100 $ 1,958 $ (142)
Miscellaneous.......cccevevvviiiiiiiiiiiiininin, - - - -

Total operating revenues....................... 2,100 2,100 1,958 (142)

Operating expenses:
Personal services..........ccovvviiiininin., - - - -
Contract services.......cooovvveviviineiniinann.. 2,160 109 82 27
Materials and supplies.............ccovvvvnn. - - - -
Capital outlay and equipment.................
Miscellaneous............ccveeeviiiiiniininnnn,
Claim payment........ccooovvviiiiinininn, - - - -
Employee medical benefit.................... - 2,081 2,054 27

Total operating expense........................ 2,160 2,190 2,136 54
Operating income (10SS)...........ccvivvinnnn. (60) (90) (178) (88)

Non-operating revenues:
Interest income...........c.covvvvevinvnnnnn...

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (60) (90) (178) (88)

Operating transfer in.............ccoeevveeinennnn.

Change in netassets.............o..oeveevenennnn. (60) (90) (178) (88)
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 109 109 109
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 160 160 160 -
Net assets atendof year........................... $ 209 $ 179 $ 91 $ (88)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS
December 31, 2001

Agency Funds- Agency funds maintain assets held by
Lucas County as an agent for individuals, private
organizations,-other governmental units and/or other funds.
The following are the Agency funds which Lucas County
maintains:

Payroll Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation of payroll withholdings until payment is
remitted to third parties.

Real Estate Fund, General Personal Fund, Estate
Tax Fund and Hotel Lodging Tax Fund- These various
and separate funds maintain and account for the accu-
mulation and disbursement of taxes for: real property,
intangible property, estate tax and hotel lodging tax.

Local Government Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumulation and disbursement of state revenue
sharing monies.

Auto License Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of automobile license and
registration fee collections.

Gasoline Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of gasoline tax collections.

Trailer Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of mobile home tax
collections.

Subdivision Advance Fund- To maintain and account
for tax advance distributions to subdivisions within Lucas
County.

Undivided Interest Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumuiation and disbursement of the County
investment earnings.

Tax Installment Payment Plan (T.LP.P.) Fund- To
account for real estate taxes paid on an installment basis
until they can be applied to a current tax bill.

Other Agency Funds- To maintain and account for
resources and uses for: taxes, research, deposits, licenses
and estate. Other Agency funds include:

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Computer Legal Research
Grain Tax

Cigarette Licenses
Escheated Estates

Law Library

Coroner Escrow

Advance Fund

When compared to combined Agency funds, Other
Agency funds comprise less than 10% in assets and
liabilities.

— 165 —



Payroll Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabitities:
Payroll withholdings.....

Real Estate Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

General Personal Fund

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Estate Tax Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Hotel Lodging Tax Fund

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2001 Additions Deductions 2001

equivalents....... $ 2,358 $ 169,356 171,413 301
......................... $ 2,358 $ 169,356 171,413 301
equivalents....... $ 10,155 $ 373,112 368,747 14,520
......................... $ 10,155 $ 373,112 368,747 14,520
equivalents....... $ 4,272 $ 89,697 92,268 1,701
......................... $ 4,272 $ 89,687 92,268 1,701
equivalents....... $ 5,919 $ 13,205 15,155 3,969
......................... $ 5,919 $ 13,205 15,155 3,969
equivalents....... $ 227 $ 3,801 3,429 599
......................... $ 227 $ 3,801 3,429 599
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

Local Government Fund

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Auto License Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Gasoline Tax Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Trailer Tax Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Subdivision Advance Fund

Assets:
Pooled cash and cash

Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2001 Additions Deductions 2001
equivalents....... $ - $ 40,705 40,667 38
......................... $ - $ 40,705 40,667 38
equivalents....... $ - $ 3,485 3,485 -
......................... $ - $ 3,485 3,485 -
equivalents....... $ - $ 577 577 -
......................... $ - $ 577 577 -
equivalents....... $ 171 $ 875 864 182
......................... $ 171 $ 875 864 182
equivalents....... $ 3 $ 360,860 361,174 (311)
......................... $ 3 $ 360,860 361,174 (311)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2001 Additions Deductions 2001
Undivided Interest Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents....... $ 11 $ 14,202 3 14,210 $ 3
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies..........c.ceeernnen. $ 11 $ 14,202 $ 14,210 $ 3
T..P.P. Program
Assets:
Segregated cash.........c.ccoevevvnvevinnienn. $ 1,644 $ 7,035 $ 6,859 $ 1,820
Liabilities:
DEPOSItS..c.corerrireieeeirirerere et $ 1,644 $ 7,035 $ 6,859 $ 1,820
Other Agency Funds
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents....... $ 1,232 $ 2,880 $ 2,803 $ 1,309
Liabilities:
Deposits held due to others.................. $ 28 $ 760 $ 780 $ 8
Unapportioned monies........ocoeveveivennen. $ 1,204 $ 2,120 $ 2,023 $ 1,301
Total Liabilities......ccecveveeereecrinnrnee $ 1,232 $ 2,880 3 2,803 $ 1,309
Total
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents....... $ 24,348 $ 1,072,755 $ 1,074,792 $ 22,311
Segregated cash..........cceceveeeivvniecnnnn, $ 1,644 $ 7,035 $ 6,859 $ 1,820
Total ASSetS....cccvveveieecereerireneeenen, $ 25,992 $ 1,079,790 $ 1,081,651 $ 24,131
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies.........c.ceeuvie.... $ 21,962 $ 902,639 $ 902,599 $ 22,002
DepoSitS.....ccveeriireriereesian e $ 1,672 $ 7,795 $ 7,639 $ 1,828
Payroll withholding $ 2,358 $ 169,356 $ 171,413 $ 301
Total Liabilities.......c.ccoecereevenrrennnnne. $ 25,992 $ 1,079,790 $ 1,081,651 $ 24,131
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Govern-
mental Funds- Capital Assets used in the Operation of
Governmental Funds accounts for the cost of the following
types of long-lived assets utilized by Governmental Fund
Types:

Land

Buildings, structures and improvements
Infrastructure

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Construction in-progress

Capital leases
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|Cap|tal Assets Used in Gov. Funds

All General Fixed Assets

(60.2%)

(23.8%)

(1.6%)
(2.1%)

(3.4%)

i Legis. and Exec ® Judicial

7 Public Safety

N Health B Human Services % Recreation

N Public Works

Year Ended December 31, 2001
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Balance
December 31,
Governmental funds capital assets: 2001
LB, 1ottt et r et e $ 16,935
Building, structures and
IMPIOVEMEBNES. ..ottt r ettt e st e ee e eeeeeneeeeenae e 160,221
INFraSTrUCIUNE. ..ot e s 280,717
Furniture, fixtures and
BQUIPIMENT ..ot et e st saes e eena e 26,268
COoNStrUCHON-IN-PIrOGIESS....c.viiiiiie ittt ettt e e s e seeenene 41,270
Total governmental funds
CAPIA @SSEES....eiieiii et e et r e e e a e $ 515,411
Balance
Investment in governmental funds December 31,
capital assets by source: 2001
Assets, other than infrastructure,
acquired before January 1, 1984...........c.ociviieiiiiiscie e $ 37,949
Infrastructure acquired before January 1, 2000.........ccccoceeivvieeiieiiieiceeeeere e, 266,370
General FUNG.......cocooiiiie et 115,684
Special Revenue FUNGS.........oocoiiviiieiierei e 37,856
Capital Projects FUNAS........coccoriiiiiiiiiieiicie ettt ee e 57,552
Total governmental funds
CAPIAl BSSEES...eiviviitiitie ettt ettt s $ 515,411
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Buildings Furniture,
Structures and Fixtures and
Function and Activity Land Improvements Equipment Infrastructure Total
General Government
Legislative and executive
COMMISSIONETS.......cvveveeeeeiireereereeneea, $ 11,905 $ 95,957 $ 664 $ - $ 108,526
Auditor-real estate.........ccceovveeveiinnnnnn. - - 11 - 1"
Data processing.........ccovevevvciiiecicnnnn - - 1,736 - 1,736
Other legislative and
EXECULIVE...covieneieiiete e, - 398 2,179 - 2,577
Judicial
COUMS. et - 497 1,347 - 1,844
Courts SUPPOTt......ccceevverrirereriiieeneenne 8 65 338 - 411
Courts administration...........ccccevereveenen. 647 12,653 339 - 13,639
Other JudiCial.......ccoeeeeereereenineireneneiinas - - 174 - 174
Total general government................ 12,560 109,570 6,788 0 128,918
Public safety
COTONEN....oieeeiieeeecireeirireeeeeaiereeeanrnee e - - 26 - 26
SHEriff.. e, 2,646 18,516 1,791 - 22,953
Other public safety.... - - 3,001 - 3,001
Total public safety.......cccoveeicvrnnnnn 2,646 18,516 4,818 0 25,980
Public works
Highways and streets.............c.ccecon - 465 4,292 280,717 285,474
Total public works 0 465 4,292 280,717 285,474
Health
Mental health.........c.cocciiinniiiiii, - - 3,544 - 3,544
Mental retardation..........cccoceeermreeccenenen. 685 5,969 4,877 - 11,531
Other health..........ccoooevieieveeiieceen. 67 407 408 - 882
Total health.......cccooveviiieieien, 752 6,376 8,829 0 15,957
Human services
Public assistance...........ccccvveeveenneennnnn. 810 8,434 656 - 9,900
Children Services.......ooocveeevvveccceeneecrennn. - - 185 - 185
Other human services - - 100 - 100
Total human services.........cccocueennn 810 8,434 941 0 10,185
Recreation
ReCreation........covverevecvcrniveeccienniecnnens 167 6,860 600 - 7,627
Total recreation..........cceoceeeenevneneens 167 6,860 600 0 7,627
Construction
Construction-in-progress.... - 41,270 - - 41,270
Total construction.........c.cccvevceeencne 0 41,270 0 0 41,270
Total general fixed assets..........cc.coeveeeeen. $ 16935 $ 191,491 $ 26,268 $ 280,717 $ 515,411
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE
OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Balance Balance
January 1, Current Year December 31,
Function and Activity 2001 Additions Deletions 2001
General Government
Legislative and executive
COMMISSIONETS......c..iicviieeieereieseeeeeeereseeesereesenn $ 80,879 $ 27,647 $ - $ 108,526
Auditor-real estate... 11 - - 11
Data processing......c.ccceeeeivvevecieiiieeeeeeeeeeeree 1,735 8 7 1,736
Other legislative and
EXECULIVE. ... 2,369 325 117 2,577
Judicial
COUMS..cooovereerrcnereeces st s 1,793 112 61 1,844
COUMS SUPPOM....c.eivieeeiereerceeeee et et eveeeeseens 411 - - 411
Courts administration.. 13,639 - 13,639
Other judicial.............ccoou..... . 166 8 174
Total general government...........ccccccoevunnninn, 101,003 28,100 128,918
Public safety
COTONET ...ttt 26 - - 26
Sheriff... ..o 22,796 240 83 22,953
Other public safety...... 3,695 52 746 3,001
Total public safety.........cooviveiivciicc, 26,517 292 829 25,980
Public works
Highways and streets............occovieeieevieerieeeeenn, 278,339 13,029 5,894 285,474
Total publtic Works........ccccccovmveiiiiiice, 278,339 13,029 5,894 285,474
Health
Mental health..........ccocovvviceniiiiiccee e 3,201 502 159 3,544
Mental retardation . 11,522 19 10 11,531
Other heaith.................... . 845 67 30 882
Totalhealth..........cccoovviiiicec e, 15,568 588 199 15,957
Human services
Public @sSiStance...........ooovvvvevoeeeeeeeeer e, 10,324 33 457 9,900
Children services......... 198 6 19 185
Other human services. 46 76 22 100
Total human Services...........ccoovvvveereiveevnn. 10,568 115 498 10,185
Recreation
ReCreation........ccoocvvveeeeiicieceeeeeeee e, 7,565 62 - 7,627
Total recreation............ccecoeveeeveriieennn, 7,565 62 0 7,627
Construction
Construction-in-progress..........cceceevveveveicce e, 36,053 32,808 27,591 41,270
Total construction...........ccceeeeenrennnn.. 36,053 32,808 27,591 41,270
Total general fixed assets............c...ccoveevvvevvennnnnn $ 475,613 $ 74,994 $ 35,196 $ 515,411
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Statistical Section

The Toledo Zoo opened its Wolf Exhibit in January, environment. Hands on exhibits along with informational
2002. Five gray sibling wolves born at the Wildlife Science kiosks provide insight from birth to adulthood in the life of
Center in Minnesota inhabit the 35,000 square foot natural a wolf.
environment. The cost of the wolf exhibit is approximately
$1 million dollars. The Zoo’s capital projects are supported by a county-

wide .95 mill permanent improvement levy.
Currently in the Toledo Museum Science building is

“Howl!”, an educational exhibit depicting the natural
habitat of the wolf, their relationship to man and the
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TABLE 1
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION?
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Fiscal General Public Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Heaith Services
1992 $ 45,805 $ 27,373 $ 11,229 $ 51,194 $ 67,334
1983 48,406 27,579 11,314 64,479 61,431
1994 57,480 29,531 10,126 69,735 64,307
1995 60,219 36,927 11,803 72,089 67,414
1996 65,572 39,990 13,233 81,577 72,418
1997 70,359 45,701 14,898 82,081 75,706
1998 73,476 44,937 15,151 84,043 72,653
1999 79,293 46,504 17,153 81,167 82,275
2000 82,611 51,138 15,772 87,651 97,555
2001 86,109 57,947 14,679 88,096 117,364

1 Inciudes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: “Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmentai Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds” in the Financial Section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

GOVERNMENT - WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

(Amounts in 000's)
Fiscal General Public Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Health Services
2001 $ 102,167 $ 61,840 3 29,134 $ 91,586 $ 123,391

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Conservation

and Capital Debt Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Outlay Service Total Year
4,370 $ 2,127 $ 9,377 $ 7,974 $ 226,783 1992
4,336 2,118 12,847 8,404 240,914 1993
4,706 2,451 21,656 9,098 269,100 1994
4,856 3,024 9,530 10,705 276,567 1995
4,828 3,573 13,634 23,115 317,940 1996
4,950 3,694 29,351 14,674 341,414 1997
5,730 4,275 11,050 16,309 327,624 1998
6,131 4,462 12,562 16,090 345,637 1999
6,276 4,599 41,516 15,593 402,711 2000
7,631 13,833 48,311 17,821 451,791 2001
Conservation Interest
and and Fiscal Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Charges Total Year
7,794 $ 13,858 $ 6,975 $ 436,745 2001
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TABLE 2
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

State

Charges Licenses Fines and Local
Fiscal All tor and and Government

Year Taxes Services Permits Forfeits Receipts
1992 $ 106,024 $ 15,161 $ 60 $ 512 $ 6,035
1993 110,250 19,894 60 561 6,322
1994 126,686 23,307 57 649 6,783
1995 123,809 23,068 50 583 7,258
1996 135,206 23,580 51 619 7,487
1997 141,051 25,182 53 693 7,852
1998 147,989 26,750 47 712 8,328
1999 157,224 22,641 44 808 8,815
2000 160,829 20,673 44 687 9,071
2001 164,396 24,608 34 666 9,064

* Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: "Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Govemmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds” in the Financial Section.
GOVERNMENT - WIDE REVENUES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(Amounts in 000's)
Program Revenues

Charges for

Services not

Charges Operating Capital Restricted to
Fiscal for Grants and Grants and Specific
Year Services Contributions Contributions Taxes Programs
2001 $ 25,022 $ 187,560 $ 5,467 $ 283,308 $ 286

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Depository

Other Inter- and

Governmental Investment Special Fiscal

Receipts Earnings Assessments Miscellaneous Total Year

$ 89,310 $ 3,881 $ 1,054 $ 12,488 $ 234,525 1992

93,153 4,265 1,624 12,896 249,025 1993

99,871 5,605 1,739 13,781 278,478 1994

106,201 8,196 1,356 15,749 286,270 1995

117,796 8,320 2,216 17,470 312,745 1996

124,563 9,871 1,801 23,741 334,807 1997

133,125 11,651 2,313 16,482 347,397 1998

144,563 7,527 2,122 18,912 362,656 1999

163,594 17,928 2,344 20,273 395,443 2000

185,689 13,625 2,581 43,382 443,945 2001

General Revenue

Intergovernmental
Revenue not
Restricted to

Specific Investment Fiscal
Programs Earnings Miscellaneous Total Year
$ 1,726 $ 13,814 $ 43,382 $ 560,565 2001
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Real General Governmental Expenditures and Revenues

l.ast Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 3
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES
ADJUSTED FOR INFLATION'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
Total Total Total Total
Fiscal Nominat Nominal Average? Real Real Fiscal
Year Expenditures Revenues CPI-U Expenditures Revenues Year
1992 $226,783 $234,525 420.3 $97,933 $101,276 1992
1993 240,914 249,025 432.9 101,007 104,408 1993
1994 269,100 278,478 4440 110,004 113,837 1994
1995 276,567 286,270 456.5 109,960 113,818 1995
1996 317,940 312,745 469.9 122,805 120,799 1996
1997 341,414 334,807 480.8 128,882 126,388 1997
1998 327,624 347,397 488.3 121,777 129,127 1998
1999 345,637 362,656 499.0 125,718 131,908 1999
2000 402,711 395,443 515.8 141,706 139,148 2000
2001 451,791 443,945 530.4 154,600 151,916 2001

' Between 1992 and 2001 real expenditures increased by 57.8% or $56.7 million, while real revenues increased by 50.0% or $50.6 million
over the same period.

* Average Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers. 1977 is the base year when the Average CPI-U was 181.5.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Tax Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 4
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
General Tangible’ Property County?

Fiscal Property Personal Transfer Sales Fiscal
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Total Year
1992 $47,729 $10,115 $1,930 $46,250 $106,024 1992
1993 52,926 9,915 2,272 45,137 110,250 1993
1994 53,491 10,308 2,341 60,546 126,686 1994
1995 54,563 10,523 2,562 56,161 123,809 1995
1996 62,206 12,034 2,785 58,181 135,206 1996
1997 63,821 12,289 3,006 61,935 141,051 1997
1998 66,516 12,799 3,629 65,045 147,989 1998
1999 69,124 14,021 3,638 70,441 167,224 1999
2000 69,697 15,960 3,598 71,574 160,829 2000
2001 76,203 13,953 3,760 70,480 164,396 2001

* Tangible Personal Tax includes: personal property tax, mobile home tax and grain tax.

? Includes county sales tax and hotel lodging tax. 1994 sales tax increase includes sales tax accrual attributed to implementation
of GASB #22.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 5
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS-REAL AND PUBLIC UTILITY'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current Taxes

Tax/Levy Current Current Collected as a Delinquent
Collection Taxes Taxes Percent of Taxes Taxes
Year Levied Collected Levied-Current Collected

1991/1992 $58,694 $55,208 94.06% $1,257
1992/1993 59,771 56,870 95.15% 2,045
1993/1994 60,952 57,852 94.91% 2,182
1994/1995 61,930 59,020 95.30% 2,422
1995/1996 68,897 66,619 96.69% 2,107
1996/1997 69,220 68,126 98.42% 2,268
1997/1998 73,217 72,021 98.37% 2,551
1998/1999 75,699 74,647 98.61% 2,467
1999/2000 78,647 77,499 98.54% 2,436
2000/2001 80,974 79,938 98.72% 1,846

* Includes all tax rates levied county-wide for: General Fund, Senior Services, Community Mental Health, Board of Mentai Retardation,
Children Services, Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority, Toledo Zoo, Toledo Lucas Gounty Library and 9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System.
Refer to: "Table 8 - Property Tax Rates of All Overlapping Governments” in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Delinquent Taxes Total Collections
Collected as a Total as a Percent of Tax/Levy
Percent of Total Taxes Taxes Levied- Accumulated Collection
Taxes Collected Collected Current Delinquencies Year
2.23% $56,465 96.20% $7,021 1991/1992
3.47% 58,915 98.57% 7,107 1992/1993
3.63% 60,034 98.49% 7,100 1993/1994
3.94% 61,442 99.21% 6,227 1994/1995
3.07% 68,726 99.75% 5,972 1995/1996
3.22% 70,394 101.70% 5,977 1996/1997
3.42% 74,572 101.85% 5,796 1997/1998
3.20% 77,114 101.87% 5,760 1998/1999
3.05% 79,935 101.64% 5,012 1999/2000
2.28% 81,784 101.00% 5,872 2000/2001
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TABLE 6
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Tax/Levy Real Property?* Personal Property*®
Coliection Estimated Estimated
Year Assessed Actual Assessed Actual

1991/1992 $4,090,020 $11,685,771 $781,574 $3,126,296
1992/1993 4,110,479 11,744,226 732,320 2,929,280
1993/1994 4,180,059 11,943,026 750,332 3,001,328
1994/1995 4,441,482 12,689,949 764,626 3,058,504
1995/1996 4,481,813 12,805,180 801,851 3,207,404
1996/1997 4,550,925 13,002,643 841,559 3,366,236
1997/1998 5,014,699 14,327,711 862,362 3,449,448
1998/1999 5,100,496 14,572,846 869,274 3,477,096
1999/2000 5,198,999 14,854,283 934,788 3,739,152
2000/2001 6,388,628 18,253,223 935,000 3,740,000

* Exempt properties are not included in the estimated actual values or in assessed valuations.

2 The estimated actual values for real estate property were derived by 35% of the assessed values of real estate property. Refer to "Note J-
Property Tax Revenues” in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

3 The estimated actual values for personal property and public utility were derived from an average rate of the assessed values (the average
rate consists of varying rates for manufacturing equipment, inventory and other equipment) for the ten fiscal years presented.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Billion

Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

1992 to 2001

B Real Property

vz Personal Property

Public Utilities

Assessed Value

Public Utility® as a Percent Tax/Levy
Estimated Estimated of Estimated Collection

Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Actual Value Year
$531,430 $1,890,351 $5,403,024 $16,702,418 32.35% 1991/1992
551,401 1,969,289 5,394,200 16,642,795 32.41% 1992/1993
552,586 1,973,518 5,482 977 16,917,872 32.41% 1993/1994
518,515 1,831,238 5,724,623 17,579,691 32.56% 1994/1995
494,129 1,764,746 5,777,793 17,777,330 32.50% 1995/1996
490,200 1,750,714 5,882,684 18,119,593 32.47% 1996/1997
483,823 1,727,940 6,364,073 19,516,528 32.61% 1997/1998
487,012 1,739,329 6,453,593 19,777,882 32.63% 1998/1999
453,059 1,812,236 6,586,846 20,405,671 32.28% 1999/2000
453,115 1,812,460 7,776,743 23,805,683 32.67% 2000/2001

— 185 ~—




Tax/Levy
Collection
Year

1991/1992
1992/1993
1993/1994
1994/1995
1995/1996
1996/1997
1997/1998
1998/1999
1999/2000
2000/2001

TABLE 7
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current
Assessments
Collected as
Current Current a Percent of
Assessment Assessments Assessment
Levies Collected Levies
$2,539 $2,368 93.27%
2,704 2,487 91.97%
2,809 2,584 91.99%
2,810 2,630 93.59%
2,755 2,528 91.76%
2,864 2,729 95.29%
2,914 2,785 95.57%
3,125 2,891 92.51%
3,168 2,974 93.88%
3,762 3,550 94.36%

' Assessment levies and collections include assessment districts outside the County entity.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Millions

Special Assessment Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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1992 to 2001

M Current Levied vz Current Collected & Total Collected

Delinquent Total
Assessments Collections
Collected as as a Percent
a Percent of Total of Current Tax/Levy
Assessment Assessments Assessment Accumuiated Coliection
Levies Collected Levies Delinquencies Year
6.30% $2,528 99.57% $404 1991/1992
6.80% 2,671 98.78% 466 1992/1993
9.54% 2,852 101.53% 433 1993/1994
9.22% 2,889 102.81% 362 1994/1995
6.24% 2,700 98.00% 362 1995/1996
9.85% 3,011 105.13% 246 1996/1997
5.90% 2,957 101.48% 209 1997/1998
4.90% 3,045 97.44% 291 1998/1999
7.32% 3,206 101.20% 268 1999/2000
4.84% 3,732 99.20% 316 2000/2001
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TABLE 8

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Taxable Year:
Collection Year:

Lucas County Entities:
General Fund..........cccceevvvveveeceieinen.
Board of Mental Retardation...............

Children Services Board......................

Community Mental Health...................

Emergency Medical Service................

Senior ServiCes......ccoovvvvereeeeeerverencnenn

9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System..

Zoo (improvements).........ccceeeveereeennnn.

Zoo (operating)......ccceeeeeveeeirrreienenieenn

Total Lucas County Entities.............

Other Entities:

Metroparks........ccoccvevvmivercieereenreeenen,
Toledo-Lucas County Port

AUhOTItY...c..eeeiiiiiieriirrr e,
Toledo-Lucas County Library..............
Toledo Area Regional

Transportation Authority>...................

Total Rates........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeieaireaannn,

1991 1992 1993 1994

1992 1993 1994 1995
$2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
3.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
12.45 13.45 13.45 13.45
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
0.35 0.35 0.40 0.40
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
$17.30 $18.30 $18.35 $18.35

' Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the school district, township

and municipality in which the propenrty is located.

2 Tarta is not levied in every county taxing district.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

— 188 —

continued



1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
$2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.45 0.45
0.50 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
1.00 0.85 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
13.95 14.10 14.10 14.10 14.30 14.30
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.40 1.40 1.40
0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
1.85 1.85 1.85 1.85 1.85 1.70
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
$19.70 $19.85 $19.85 $20.25 $20.45 $20.30

— 189 —

continued



TABLE 8
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS'-(continued)

Taxable Year:
Collection Year:

School Districts:

Anthony Wayne........cccccceeveercirneecennne
Evergreen.......cccceeiieiceiiecivecccenins
Maumee........ccoceveiieiiieneeee e,

Springfield.......cccoiiiiei e,
SWanton......coovevviere e
SylVania......coeeerrrriire e
ToledO......oceieeee e
Washington........ccccceienniieieciiennce.

Joint Vocational School Districts:
Four County.....cccocoiriieeniciiiiencirinnenn,
Penta County.......cccoceviveeiciiieniiiieeenn,

Townships:

Harding......cocccccevvinieeninnccinnennnne,
Jerusalem.........coccvvvvveieiieiiieinnen e,
MORNCIOVA........ccovreieeireriiiee e cereevraraeaes
Providence......c.cccoeeevevevvieeieevinvenrenannn.
Richfield......ccoooveeverieriieereeeeeeceereeee e,
SPENCET ..o eeeece e
Springfield........cccoviiiiciiiiee e,
SWaNtON....veeerirrrecreeeeeeee e e
Sylvania......cccceieirnennrre e
Washington........ccccccvmeeiiieniinncnn
Waterville.........oooovvveeeiiiiiiieeeeceeeeeeene,

Municipalities:

Village of Berkey.......ccceeeveiiiiininnnnn.
Village of Harbor View.........................
Village of Holland..........cccccooveiirnennnn.
City of Maumee.......cccoveeceeiiiniininnen
City of Oregon...........ccccvvnnineriniiiiinnnee,
Village of Ottawa Hills.........c.cccceeeeeei.
Village of Swanton............cccveiiriiinnns
City of Sylvania........cccocervrvnnicennncn,
City of Toledo......ccoovcvvrerevriniireenen
Village of Waterville.........c.ccccoenerreeen.
Village of Whitehouse.............c.coceee.

* Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the schoot district, township
or municipality in which the property is located.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

1991 1992 1993 1994

1992 1993 1994 1995
$56.10 $62.90 $62.90 $62.90
39.70 39.70 39.70 39.70
52.60 57.40 57.40 57.40
42.30 42.30 42.30 45.80
44.50 52.50 51.80 51.80
90.20 97.90 97.90 97.90
61.80 61.80 60.80 65.20
56.20 56.20 56.20 56.00
57.05 62.30 62.30 62.30
58.80 58.60 57.80 57.70
52.10 52.10 56.80 56.80
3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
4.90 4.90 4.90 5.20
4.45 6.45 6.45 6.45
5.30 5.30 5.30 5.30
4.50 6.00 6.00 6.00
6.30 6.30 6.30 6.30
5.40 5.40 4.70 4.90
15.30 16.40 16.40 16.40
17.20 19.20 19.20 19.20
8.10 9.30 9.30 9.30
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
4.20 4.40 4.20 4.10
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
5.75 575 5.75 6.25
4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
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1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
$66.80 $66.80 $64.50 $64.50 $64.50 $63.70
42.90 42.90 39.70 39.70 47.23 47.23
59.60 64.50 62.30 62.30 62.30 62.30
45.80 49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20
52.60 51.80 57.20 49.11 57.70 56.90
104.30 104.30 107.05 107.05 113.20 113.10
67.40 67.40 64.20 64.20 65.10 64.10
65.16 64.60 62.10 62.05 62.05 68.74
63.90 68.20 66.30 66.30 65.70 65.20
57.80 57.80 57.80 57.80 57.50 63.00
56.80 61.70 61.70 61.70 60.70 65.90
3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 4.30
9.75 9.756 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20
6.45 6.45 4.45 6.95 6.95 6.95
5.30 7.20 7.20 7.20 7.20 7.20
6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
6.30 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10
5.20 5.20 5.20 6.10 6.10 6.10
16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.72
19.20 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50
9.30 9.30 9.30 9.30 9.30 10.80
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80
4.00 4.00 4.00 3.85 3.70 3.70
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4.50 4.50
6.25 6.25 6.25 6.40 6.40 6.40
4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
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TABLE 9
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Less Debt (i)

Service
Fiscal Total(ii)(iii) Assessed’ Gross General(i) Fund
Year Population Values Bonded Debt Balance
1992 467,600 $5,403,024 $39,225 $446
1993 467,500 5,394,200 37,355 857
1994 467,500 5,482,977 47,542 914
1995 457,100 5,724,623 49,250 810
1996 452,691 5,777,793 68,325 1,029
1997 452,400 5,882,684 75,500 7,372
1998 448,300 6,364,073 67,900 6,652
1999 447,300 6,453,593 60,060 5,986
2000 455,054 6,586,846 52,590 6,139
2001 454,500 7,776,743 61,770 10,542

' Refer to: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor
Source (ii): Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
Source (jii): Sales Marketing Management 2001

TABLE 10
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Total? Total’
General General General General
Fiscal' Obligation Obligation Obligation Governmental
Year Principal Interest Debt Service Expenditures
1992 $1,650 $3,095 $4,745 $226,783
1993 1,870 2,724 4,594 240,914
1994 1,905 2,599 4,504 269,100
1995 2,942 3,288 6,230 276,567
1996 14,845 3,588 18,433 317,940
1997 6,425 3,971 10,396 341,414
1998 7,600 4,203 11,803 327,624
1999 7,840 3,815 11,655 345,637
2000 7,470 3,436 10,906 402,711
2001 7,820 3,538 11,358 451,791

* Refer to: "Table 1 - General Governmental Expenditures by Function" in this section.

2 General obligation bonds reported in the Enterprise funds and special assessment debt with governmental commitment have been
excluded.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Ratio of

Net General Per Capita

Net General Bonded Debt to Net General Fisca!l

Bonded Debt Assessed Value Bonded Debt Year

$38,779 0.718% 82.93 1992

36,498 0.677% 78.07 1993

46,628 0.850% 99.74 1994

48,440 0.846% 105.97 1995

67,296 1.165% 148.66 1996

68,128 1.158% 150.59 1997

61,248 0.962% 136.62 1998

54,070 0.838% 120.88 1999

46,451 0.705% 102.08 2000

51,228 0.659% 112.71 2001

Ratio of
Total Debt Service
to General

Governmental Fiscal
Expenditures Year
2.09% 1992
1.91% 1993
1.67% 1994
2.25% 1995
5.80% 1996
3.04% 1997
3.60% 1998
3.37% 1999
2.71% 2000
2.51% 2001
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TABLE 11
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED December 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Direct legal debt limitation':

3.0% of the first $100,000 assessed valuation..............c.o....... $3,000
1.5% on excess of $100,000-not in excess of
$300,000......ccoiiicriciieee et e 3,000
2.5% on the amount in excess of $300,000%.............c..ceuvneen. 186,836
Total direct legal debt limitation...............cccceceeeveevvecreerennne.. 192,836
Total of all county debt outstanding®................coeeeveevvennnns $79,526
Less:
Special assessment bonds and notes
(Self-supporting).......cccvvrrerrineeircenireren e rere e 12,752
Correctional facilities bonds (4).....c.cceeceeeeeeviieneeeerinreeere s 16,705
Total exempt debt.............cccocveeeiviiieeeveeeseeeeeeeees (29,457)
Less:
Available equity in debt service fund as of
December 31, 2007.....cccviiiieeieeenireccreerre e e (10,542)
Total net indebtedness (voted and unvoted) subject
to direct debt limitation.................cccccvvvvevereeceeiiiiieeeeeeeenn 39,527
Direct legal debt margin................ccccceevevvemveveeeceeceeeennn $153,309
Unvoted debt limitation (subject to 1% of County
assessed valuation)............ccccvee i 77,767
Total net indebtedness (unvoted - subject to the 1%
legai debt limitation)...........cceecvveerecvienr e, (34,514)
Total unvoted legal debt margin.............c.cccccovvvveevvvevvencnn.. $43,253

' Direct legal debt limitation is outlined by the Ohio Revised Code, codifications 133.02 and 133.05.
# Refer to: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

* Excludes Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) and Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans, and non-tax revenue bonds. Refer to: "Note G - Notes Pay
and to "Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations” in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

4 Excluded by state statute.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 12
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Percent Amount
Debt Applicable Applicable
Outstanding to County to County
Direct debt:
Lucas County™........ccovmmrnnecrnenns $70,495 100.0% $70,495
Overlapping debt:
Municipalities:?
Ali cities and villages within
Lucas County......ccceevenevnrecnennnen. 143,287 100.0% 143,287
Swanton Village..........cccceueen.... 1,260 5.56% 70
School districts:?
All school districts
within Lucas County............cc......... 46,588 100.0% 46,588
Evergreen local..............c....... 11,958 30.4% 3,635
Anthony Wayne local............cc........ 27,787 97.9% 27,203
Overlapping debt.........ccvvvvvernnnnn. 230,880 95.6% 220,783
Total direct and overlapping debt... $301,375 96.6% $291,278

' Excluding special assessment debt with governmental commitment, revenue bonds, general obligation bonds reported
in Enterprise funds and Regional Jail bonds.

2 The cities which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee, Oregon, Sylvania and Toledo.
The villages which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Berkey, Harbor View,
Holland, Ottawa Hills, Waterville and Whitehouse.

3 The school districts which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee (CSD),
Ottawa Hills (LSD), Oregon(CSD), Sprindfield (LSD), Sylvania (CSD), Toledo (CSD) and Washington (LSD).

Chart of Direct and Overlapping Debt

as of December 31, 2001

(49.2%)

mm Cities and Villages
1Lucas County
Bl | ocal School Districts

(10.6%)" — Overlapping School District

(24.2%)
(16.0%)
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TABLE 13
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY VALUES, BANK DEPOSITS AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Assessed Values of!

Real, Personal Total?

Fiscal and Utility Certified Valuation of? Permits
Year Property(i) Bank Deposits (ii) Construction (iii) Issued (iii)
1992 $5,410,519 $4,439,618 $258,451 10,163
1993 5,432,199 3,124,897 230,814 10,462
1994 5,482,977 2,768,305 251,899 10,073
1995 5,724,623 3,053,287 265,933 8,790
1996 5,777,793 3,810,869 347,064 11,524
1997 5,882,684 3,037,031 287,618 9,848
1998 6,360,884 5,302,858 163,312 7,484
1999 6,453,593 6,340,350 194,109 7,884
2000 6,586,846 2,413,149 201,872 7,527
2001 7,776,743 785,707 213,273 8,198

' Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property” in this section.

2 Represents all privately owned new construction including residential and nonresidential structures, and residential and nonresidential
garage and carport additions, aiterations and conversions.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor

Source (ii): Data Services Department-Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.

Source (iii): Lucas County Building Regulation Department, City of Toledo Building Department, City of Oregon
Inspection Department, City of Maumee Division of Building and the Village of Whitehouse Building Department.
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TABLE 14
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

TOP TEN PRIVATE SECTOR PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

2001

2001 Assessed Total 2001

Assessed Personal Assessed

Real Estate Property Property

Firm Values Values Values

General Motors Hydra-Matic..........ccceeccervennnn. $8,535 $48,665 $57.,200
Chrysler/Daimler...........ccccoevrrciiieeerecniieenniienenns 7,480 40,632 48,112
Sun RefiNiNg...cceevcniiiieeeereec e 4572 42,747 47,319
BP Ol ettt cveee s 6,603 35,714 42 317
The ANAErSOnS...........vviieeievveeererereeereeeeiesieenneens 13,034 13,377 26,411
General MillS........ccoooviiiiiiiiciiiineiiee s 3,209 22,909 26,118
OWENS LlINOIS........eeireeereiiriitrietrreieees e srareees 19,335 6,682 26,017
JONNS ManVille......cocoveeieieiie e eevesseeens 3,678 21,596 25,274
MEHET INC.treeeeeeietee ettt 14,455 8,211 22,666
Block Communications.......cccccevvevveeriireccrnnnenne. 1,525 20,991 22,516
TOAIS. ..o eenn $82,426 $261,524 $343,950

" Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

TABLE 15
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TOP FIVE PUBLIC UTILITY TAXPAYERS

FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

2001 2000 2001 Percent of
Assessed Assessed Utilities Assessed
Public Public Value to Total
Utility Utility 2001 Assessed
Utility Values Values Value
Toledo EQISON.....ivveeeieeeeeeeeitriiee i er e e eveneeenens $123,052 $240,506 1.58%
(0] 110X = 1<) | OO UPUO PR 63,888 64,049 0.82%
Columbia Gas......c.ccevoveiievreriieieiriinrerireeee e 22,500 76,384 0.29%
Buckeye Telesystem........cccovvviiiiiiiiiiinnnininnnnn, 11,593 11,798 0.15%
American Transmission System............ccc.ee. 31,657 8,180 0.41%
TOLAIS ... $252,690 $400,917 3.25%

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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2001 Percent’

Firms Assessed Rank of Top Ten
Value to Total Firms by Assessed

2001 Assessed Property Values

Property Values 2001 2000
0.74% 1 1
0.62% 2 2
0.61% 3 4
0.54% 4 3
0.34% 5 n/a
0.34% 6 n/a
0.33% 7 n/a
0.32% 8 n/a
0.29% 9 9
0.29% 10 n/a
4.42%

2000 Percent of
Utilities Assessed
Value to Total
2000 Assessed
Value

3.65%
0.97%
1.15%
0.18%
0.12%

6.07%
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TABLE 16
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

POPULATION DENSITY

Census Square Population in Population
Year Miles Lucas County Density
1970 343.3 483,551 1,408.5
1980 343.3 471,741 1,383.4
1990 341.0 462,361 1,355.9
2000 341.0 455,054 1,334.5

Source: Bureau of Census-United States Department of Commerce
EMPLOYMENT TRENDS

Ten Year Average Employment

County County Unemployment Rate

Year Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.S.

1992 211,400 19,100 8.3% 7.2% 7.4%
1993 212,500 15,600 6.8% 6.5% 6.8%
1994 215,800 13,300 5.8% 5.5% 6.1%
1985 214,400 11,500 5.0% 4.8% 5.6%
1996 215,700 11,500 5.1% 4.9% 5.4%
1997 218,300 11,900 5.2% 4.6% 4.9%
1998 218,000 12,700 5.5% 4.2% 4.5%
1999 222,000 12,100 5.2% 4.2% 4.2%
2000 219,000 11,200 4.9% 4.1% 4.0%
2001 220,500 11,500 5.0% 4.3% 4.8%

2001 Monthly Employment

County County Unemployment Rate
Month Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.s.
Jan. 216,100 13,100 57% 4.7% 4.7%
Feb. 217,200 12,400 5.4% 4.4% 4.6%
March 219,200 10,600 4.6% 4.1% 4.6%
April 220,000 9,500 4.1% 3.8% 4.2%
May 221,600 9,600 4.2% 3.8% 4.1%
June 220,700 11,600 5.0% 4.5% 4.7%
July 221,500 13,100 5.6% 4.5% 4.7%
Aug. 220,900 11,100 4.8% 4.1% 4.9%
Sept. 220,800 11,700 5.0% 4.3% 4.7%
Oct. 223,600 11,300 4.8% 4.3% 5.0%
Nov. 223,000 12,400 5.3% 4.5% 5.3%
Dec. 221,500 12,000 5.2% 4.5% 5.4%

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

HOSPITALS

Name

Toledo HOSPIAL..........cooieieceeecccct e

St. Vincent Mercy Medical Center

St. Charles Mercy Hospital............
Medical College of ONi0.........c..cceuiiriieeeereneieereeeereeeeese e
St. Lukes HOSPIAL........ccoeiirieecriccc e
Flower Hospital........c.ccceeeernevnnn....
Riverside Merch Hospital..............

Source: Lucas County Auditor

HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS

Name of Institution

University of Toledo.......................
Lourdes COllBgE........ovrvivuririirei ittt
Medical College of Ohio.........c.coeueeeiiriecricieeicieieee e

Stautzenberger College of Business and Technology............

Davis College.........ccomiieeeeceeeeteeee et

University of Toledo-College of Law........c.cccoevvevivevecnrecnienen.

Total enrollment.............c...........

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Number

of Beds

789
573
390
319
316
279
256

2001/2002
Fall/Winter

Enrollment

19,859
1,235
953
544
455
454

23,500
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TABLE 17

LUCAS COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL FIRM RANKINGS

Overali Overall Ohio 2001
Rank Rank Rank Gross Net Asset
Firm 2001 2000 2001 Sales Assets Rank
Dana Corporation............. 183 153 10 $10,469,000 $10,207,000 257
Owens-lllinois................... 301 306 18 6,013,000 10,106,000 259
Owens-Corning Fiberglas. 349 351 22 4,762,000 7,041,000 305
INDUSTRIAL RANKINGS
2001
Number of 2001 2000
Firm Employees Industry Rank Rank
Dana Corporation............. 70,000 Motor Vehicle & Parts 9 39
Owens-lllinois................... n/a Building Materials, Glass n/a 7
Owens-Corning Fiberglas. 19,000 Building Materials, Glass 1 7
*Source: Fortune magazine, "The Largest 500 U.S. Industrial Companies,” April 15, 2002 Volume 145, No. 8
— 202 — continued



TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

EMPLOYERS

Top Ten Private Employers

Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
ProMedica Health Systems™**............ 10,000 Medicine and health care
Merch Health Partners*.................... 6,854 Medicine and health care
Foodtown .......ccocoveiimriinieneeeeee, 4,300 Retail grocery
Daimler-Chrysler/Toledo Jeep.......... 4,100 Automatic manufacturing
General Motors/Power Train............. 4,092 Automatic transmissions
Medical Coliege of Ohio................... 3,500 Medicine and health care
ANErsoNS........ccveeviemreereveieeee e, 3,500 Grain storage/processing and retail
Kroger. vt 2,785 Retail Grocery
Elder Beerman.........ccccooeeeveenriienennns 2,174 Retail Service
Meijers.......ooiiieiniccin s 2,034 Retail Grocery

Top ten total employed 43,339

Percent of total work force’ 19.65%

‘Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment” within Table 16 of this Section.

*1997 Merger of Mercy, Riverside, St. Charles and St. Vincent Mercy Medical Centers.

**1998 Merger of Childrens Medical Center, Flower Hospital, Toledo Hosptial, Crestview Club Apt.

Goerlich Center, Caring Home Helath Serv. Lake Park, Golden Haven, Promedica Paramount & Promedica Phy. Support.
Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership

Top Five Public Employers

Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
Toledo Public Schools....................... 5,000 Education (primary-secondary)
University of Toledo............c.ccccceeee. 5,000 Education (advanced)
Lucas County......ococceeeeirinciirnnneen. 4,510 Government services (various)
City of Toledo........cooevrcrevereecroncenne. 3,000 Government services (various)
State of Ohio.......ccoovcveenricriiirneens 2,238 Government services (various)

Total employed 19,748

Percent of total work force’ 9.00%

‘Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment” within Table 16 of this Section.

Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

FINANCIAL CONDITION

LUCAS COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poublitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
DECEMBER 17, 2002
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